

**WSR 13-02-002****PROPOSED RULES****SUPERINTENDENT OF  
PUBLIC INSTRUCTION**

[Filed December 19, 2012, 12:22 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 11-23-095.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: WAC 392-121-570 and 392-121-578, Finance—Vocational indirect cost limit.

Hearing Location(s): Old Capitol Building, 600 South Washington Street, P.O. Box 47200, Wanamaker Conference Room, Olympia, WA, on February 5, 2012 [2013], at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Steve Shish, P.O. Box 47200, Olympia, WA 98504-7200, e-mail [steve.shish@k12.wa.us](mailto:steve.shish@k12.wa.us), fax (360) 664-3683, by February 5, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Wanda Griffin by February 1, 2013, TTY (360) 664-3631 or (360) 725-6133.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The rule revisions add middle school career and technical education programs to the indirect cost limit. The rule revisions also limit middle school and secondary carry over to the ensuing year to no more than the vocational enhancement allocation less recovery.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: Revisions are needed to implement legislative changes that add middle school career and technical programs to the vocational indirect cost limit.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 28A.150.290.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: [Office of superintendent of public instruction], governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Steve Shish, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, (360) 6307 [725-6307]; Implementation: T. J. Kelly, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, (360) 6301 [725-6301]; and Enforcement: JoLynn Berge, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, (360) 6292 [725-6292].

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. Not applicable - no small business impact.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. The superintendent of public instruction is not subject to RCW 34.05.328 per subsection (5)(a)(1)(i). Additionally, this rule is not a significant legislative rule per subsection (5)(c)(iii).

December 19, 2012

Randy Dorn  
State Superintendent  
of Public Instruction

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 04-01-058, filed 12/11/03, effective 1/11/04)

**WAC 392-121-570 Vocational indirect cost limit—Applicable code provisions—Purpose—Effective date.** (1) WAC 392-121-570 through 392-121-578 define the fifteen percent limit on indirect cost charges to school district state-funded vocational-secondary programs as required by the Biennial Operating Appropriations Act. These rules do not apply to federal vocational funding which is governed by federal policies.

(2) The purpose of these sections is to assure that state allocations for vocational education are expended by school districts to support state vocational programs. The minimum levels defined here are not to be construed as recommended expenditure levels.

(3) These sections are effective for the 2002-03 school year and thereafter.

(4) WAC 392-121-570 through 392-121-578 also apply to program 34, with program 34 substituted wherever program 31 appears. Running start does not apply to program 34.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 04-01-058, filed 12/11/03, effective 1/11/04)

**WAC 392-121-578 Vocational indirect cost limit—Recovery of state allocations.** (1) At the time of the January apportionment calculations after the close of the school year, the superintendent of public instruction shall recalculate each school district's minimum direct expenditures.

(2) If the district's program 31 expenditures are below the minimum program 31 expenditure amount, the district shall be allowed to carry over into the ensuing school year an amount equal to up to ten percent of the minimum expenditure amount excluding any carryover from the prior school year. The actual amount carried over to the ensuing year shall be no more than the vocational enhancement less the recovery.

(3) The superintendent of public instruction shall recover from the district's general apportionment allocation as a prior year adjustment an amount equal to the lesser of the district's enhancement allocation for vocational students or the following amount:

(a) The district's minimum program 31 expenditures; minus

(b) The district's program 31 expenditures plus any allowable carryover.

~~((2))~~ (4) Recoveries made pursuant to this section shall be adjusted after the January apportionment calculation if revised enrollment, staff mix, or expenditure data submitted by the district and accepted by the superintendent of public instruction materially affects the district's recovery amount.

**WSR 13-02-003**  
**PROPOSED RULES**  
**SUPERINTENDENT OF**  
**PUBLIC INSTRUCTION**

[Filed December 19, 2012, 12:25 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-17-050.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: WAC 392-139-115 and 392-139-310, Finance—Levies—Excess levy base.

Hearing Location(s): Old Capitol Building, 600 South Washington Street, P.O. Box 47200, Wanamaker Conference Room, Olympia, WA, on February 5, 2013, at 10:30 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Steve Shish, P.O. Box 47200, Olympia, WA 98504-7200, e-mail [steve.shish@k12.wa.us](mailto:steve.shish@k12.wa.us), fax (360) 664-3683, by February 5, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Wanda Griffin by February 1, 2013, TTY (360) 664-3631 or (360) 425-6133 [725-6133].

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The rule revisions add or revise the revenues in the levy base.

The rule revisions add the new hold harmless allocation to the levy base and subtract the ALE program revenue reduction from the levy base.

The rule revisions revise the revenue account 6124 allocation that is in the levy base to use, for the federal safety net portion, the amount that has been awarded rather than the amount that is included on the August report 1197.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: Revisions are required to add or revise the revenues in the levy base.

The hold harmless allocation and the ALE reduction are new parts of the district's basic education allocation.

Now that safety net awards are made in August, districts do not have sufficient time to enter the data in iGrants in time to appear on the August apportionment report.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 28A.150.290 and 84.52.0531.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: [Office of superintendent of public instruction], governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Steve Shish, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, (360) 6307 [725-6307]; Implementation: T. J. Kelly, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, (360) 6301 [725-6301]; and Enforcement: JoLynn Berge, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction, (360) 6292 [725-6292].

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. Not applicable - no small business impact.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. The superintendent of public instruction is not subject to RCW 34.05.328 per subsection (5)(a)(1)(i).

Additionally, this rule is not a significant legislative rule per subsection (5)(c)(iii).

December 19, 2012  
Randy Dorn  
State Superintendent  
of Public Instruction

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 92-07, filed 9/21/92, effective 10/22/92)

**WAC 392-139-115 Definition—Basic education allocation.** As used in this chapter, "basic education allocation" means the amount of state moneys calculated by the superintendent of public instruction which is the basis for the superintendent's distribution of moneys to school districts for the operation of a basic program of education pursuant to RCW 28A.150.200, et seq., RCW 28A.150.250, and 28A.150.260, chapter 392-121 WAC, and the Biennial Operating Appropriations Act. The amount of a school district's total guaranteed entitlement, plus skills center summer program funding, plus the hold harmless allocation, less the ALE program revenue reduction, as reported on the August Report 1191 before any proration due to less than one hundred percent funding is considered a school district's basic education allocation in determining the school district's excess levy base pursuant to WAC 392-139-310.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 10-19-030, filed 9/9/10, effective 10/10/10)

**WAC 392-139-310 Determination of excess levy base.** The superintendent of public instruction shall calculate each school district's excess levy base as provided in this section.

(1) Sum the following state and federal allocations from the prior school year(s) as determined in subsections (4) and (5) of this section:

(a) The basic education allocation as defined in WAC 392-139-115 and as reported on the August Report 1191;

(b) The state and federal categorical allocations for the following:

(i) Pupil transportation. Allocations for pupil transportation include allocations for the following accounts:

4199 Transportation - Operations;  
4399 Transportation - Operations;  
4499 Transportation - Depreciation;  
6199 Transportation - Operations;  
6299 Transportation - Operations; and  
6399 Transportation - Operations.

(ii) Special education. Allocations for special education include allocations for the following accounts:

4121 Special education;  
4321 Special education;  
6114 Federal Stimulus - IDEA;  
6124 Special education supplemental;  
6214 Federal Stimulus - IDEA;  
6224 Special education supplemental;  
6314 Federal Stimulus - IDEA; and  
6324 Special education supplemental.

(iii) Education of highly capable students. Allocations for education of highly capable students include allocations identified by account 4174 Highly capable.

(iv) Compensatory education. Allocations for compensatory education include allocations identified by the following accounts:

3100 Barrier reduction;  
4155 Learning assistance;  
4165 Transitional bilingual;  
4163 Promoting academic success;  
4166 Student achievement;  
4365 Transitional bilingual;  
6111 Federal Stimulus - Title 1;  
6151 Disadvantaged;  
6153 Migrant;  
6164 Limited English proficiency;  
6211 Federal Stimulus - Title 1;  
6251 Disadvantaged;  
6253 Migrant;  
6264 Limited English proficiency;  
6267 Indian education - JOB;  
6268 Indian education - ED;  
6311 Federal Stimulus - Title 1;  
6351 Disadvantaged;  
6353 Migrant;  
6364 Limited English proficiency;  
6367 Indian education - JOM; and  
6368 Indian education - ED.

(v) Food services. Allocations for food services include allocations identified by the following accounts:

4198 School food services (state);  
4398 School food services;  
6198 School food services (federal);  
6298 School food services;  
6398 School food services; and  
6998 USDA commodities.

(vi) Statewide block grant programs. Allocations for statewide block grant programs include allocations identified by the following accounts:

310004 Full-day kindergarten;  
4134 Middle school vocational;  
4175 Professional development;  
6113 Federal Stimulus - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund;  
6176 Targeted assistance;  
6213 Federal Stimulus - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund;  
6276 Targeted assistance;  
6313 Federal Stimulus - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund;

and

6376 Targeted assistance.

(c) General federal programs. Allocations for general federal programs identified by the following accounts:

5200 General purpose direct federal grants - Unassigned;  
6100 Special purpose - OSPI - Unassigned;  
6112 Federal Stimulus - School Improvement;  
6118 Federal Stimulus - Competitive Grants;  
6119 Federal Stimulus - Other;  
6121 Special education - Medicaid reimbursement;  
6138 Secondary vocational education;  
6146 Skills center;  
6152 School improvement;

6154 Reading first;  
6162 Math and science - Professional development;  
6200 Direct special purpose grants;  
6212 Federal Stimulus - School Improvement;  
6218 Federal Stimulus - Competitive Grants;  
6219 Federal Stimulus - Other;  
6221 Special education - Medicaid reimbursement;  
6238 Secondary vocational education;  
6246 Skills center;  
6252 School improvement;  
6254 Reading first;  
6262 Math and science - Professional development;  
6300 Federal grants through other agencies - Unassigned;  
6310 Medicaid administrative match;  
6312 Federal Stimulus - School Improvement;  
6318 Federal Stimulus - Competitive Grants;  
6319 Federal Stimulus - Other;  
6321 Special education - Medicaid reimbursement;  
6338 Secondary vocational education;  
6346 Skills center;  
6352 School improvement;  
6354 Reading first; and  
6362 Math and science - Professional development.

(2) Increase the result obtained in subsection (1) of this section by the percentage increase per full-time equivalent student in the state basic education appropriation between the prior school year and the current school year as stated in the state Operating Appropriations Act divided by 0.55.

(3) Revenue accounts referenced in this section are defined in the accounting manual for public school districts in the state of Washington.

(4) The dollar amount of revenues for state and federal categorical allocations identified in this section shall come from the following sources:

(a) The following state and federal categorical allocations are taken from the Report 1197 Column A (Annual Allotment Due):

3100 Barrier reduction;  
310004 Full-day kindergarten;  
4121 Special education;  
4134 Middle school vocational;  
4155 Learning assistance;  
4163 Promoting academic success;  
4165 Transitional bilingual;  
4166 Student achievement;  
4174 Highly capable;  
4175 Professional development;  
4198 School food services (state);  
4199 Transportation - Operations;  
4499 Transportation - Depreciation;  
6111 Federal Stimulus - Title 1;  
6112 Federal Stimulus - School Improvement;  
6113 Federal Stimulus - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund;  
6114 Federal Stimulus - IDEA, one-half the August 2010 amount will be used in the 2011 calculation, and one-half in the 2012;  
6118 Federal Stimulus - Competitive Grants;  
6119 Federal Stimulus - Other;  
6121 Special education - Medicaid reimbursements;

6124 Special education - Supplemental; however, for the federal safety net portion, the amount awarded rather than the amount included on report 1197 will be used;

6138 Secondary vocational education;  
6146 Skills center;  
6151 Disadvantaged;  
6152 School improvement;  
6153 Migrant;  
6154 Reading first;  
6162 Math and science - Professional development;  
6164 Limited English proficiency;  
6176 Targeted assistance;  
6198 School food services (federal); and  
6199 Transportation - Operations.

(b) For the 2004 calendar year, the following state and federal allocations are taken from the F-195 budget including budget extensions.

For the 2005 calendar year and thereafter, the following federal allocations shall be taken from the school district's second prior year F-196 annual financial report:

4321 Special education;  
4365 Transitional bilingual;  
4398 School food services;  
4399 Transportation - Operations;  
5200 General purpose direct federal grants - Unassigned;  
6100 Special purpose - OSPI - Unassigned;  
6200 Direct special purpose grants;  
6211 Federal Stimulus - Title 1;  
6212 Federal Stimulus - School Improvement;  
6213 Federal Stimulus - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund;  
6214 Federal Stimulus - IDEA;  
6218 Federal Stimulus - Competitive Grants;  
6219 Federal Stimulus - Other;  
6221 Special education - Medicaid reimbursement;  
6224 Special education supplemental;  
6238 Secondary vocational education;  
6246 Skills center;  
6251 Disadvantaged;  
6252 School improvement;  
6253 Migrant;  
6254 Reading first;  
6262 Math and science - Professional development;  
6264 Limited English proficiency;  
6267 Indian education - JOM;  
6268 Indian education - ED;  
6276 Targeted assistance;  
6298 School food services;  
6299 Transportation - Operations;  
6300 Federal grants through other agencies - Unassigned;  
6310 Medicaid administrative match;  
6311 Federal Stimulus - Title 1;  
6312 Federal Stimulus - School Improvement;  
6313 Federal Stimulus - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund;  
6314 Federal Stimulus - IDEA;  
6318 Federal Stimulus - Competitive Grants;  
6319 Federal Stimulus - Other;  
6321 Special education - Medicaid reimbursement;  
6324 Special education supplemental;  
6338 Secondary vocational education;

6346 Skills center;  
6351 Disadvantaged;  
6352 School improvement;  
6353 Migrant;  
6354 Reading first;  
6362 Math and science - Professional development;  
6364 Limited English proficiency;  
6367 Indian education - JOM;  
6368 Indian education - ED;  
6376 Targeted assistance;  
6398 School food services;  
6399 Transportation - Operations; and  
6998 USDA commodities.

(5) Effective for levy authority and local effort assistance calculations for the 2005 calendar year and thereafter:

(a) District revenues determined in subsection (4) of this section shall be reduced for revenues received as a fiscal agent. School districts shall report fiscal agent revenues pursuant to instructions provided by the superintendent of public instruction.

(b) The amount determined in subsection (4)(b) of this section, after adjustment for fiscal agent moneys, shall be inflated for one year using the percentage change in the implicit price deflator for personal consumption expenditures for the United States as published for the most recent twelve-month period by the Bureau of Economic Analysis of the Federal Department of Commerce.

(6) State and federal moneys generated by a school district's students and redirected by the superintendent of public instruction to an educational service district at the request of the school district shall be included in the district's levy base.

(7) State basic education moneys generated by a school district's students and allocated directly to a technical college shall be included in the district's levy base.

(8) Funding which the district would have received calculated pursuant to RCW 84.52.0531 shall be included in the district's levy base.

## WSR 13-02-005

### PROPOSED RULES

### SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

[Filed December 19, 2012, 1:39 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-21-127.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Chapter 392-124 WAC, National guard youth challenge apportionment.

Hearing Location(s): Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI), Old Capitol Building, 600 South Washington, Olympia, WA, on February 5, 2013, at 11:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Becky McLean, Old Capitol Building, P.O. Box 47200, Olympia, WA 98504-7200, e-

mail becky.mclean@k12.wa.us, fax (360) 664-3631, by February 5, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Wanda Griffin by February 1, 2013, TTY (360) 664-3631 or (360) 725-6270.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: Chapter 392-124 WAC requires updating the following:

- Allow for state agencies to operate the national guard youth challenge program, and report enrollment and receive apportionment directly from OSPI.
- Adjust the AAFTE and headcount averaging calculation due to the new June enrollment reporting requirement, and
- Make a few other technical adjustments.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: National guard youth challenge program which previously reported through the Bremerton school district began to report directly their enrollment through the Washington state military department.

These WAC changes were adopted through the CR-103E emergency rule process which was filed on October 24, 2012.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 28A.150.290 (1).

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: OSPI, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Becky McLean, Old Capitol Building, 600 South Washington, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-6306; Implementation: T. J. Kelly, Old Capitol Building, 600 South Washington, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-6301; and Enforcement: JoLynn Berge, Old Capitol Building, 600 South Washington, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-6292.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328.

December 19, 2012

Randy Dorn

State Superintendent  
of Public Instruction

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-21-020, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09)

**WAC 392-124-010 Purpose.** The purpose of this chapter is to establish policies and procedures for the distribution of state moneys to school districts or state agencies for the National Guard youth challenge program authorized by RCW 28A.150.310.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-21-020, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09)

**WAC 392-124-040 Definition—Form P-223YC.** "Form P-223YC" means the report of (~~school district~~) enrollment for students enrolled in a National Guard youth

challenge program submitted monthly by the hosting school district(s) or state agency to the superintendent of public instruction for the school year for the purpose of calculating the program allocations.

~~((+))~~ The count dates for the National Guard youth challenge program shall be:

~~((+))~~ (1) The fourth day of school in the months of January and July, or the start of the term of the educational program; and

~~((b))~~ (2) The first day of school in the months of February through June and the months of August through December.

~~((2)) This report shall indicate the enrollment by resident school district and serving school district.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-21-020, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09)

**WAC 392-124-060 Definition—Annual average full-time equivalency.** For the purposes of this chapter, annual average full-time equivalency shall be calculated by taking the annual total of full-time equivalent students enrolled on the twelve count dates of the school year and reported to the superintendent of public instruction Form P-223YC for the months of September through August divided by (~~nine~~) ten. This calculation applies to the reporting of basic education and vocational students.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-21-020, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09)

**WAC 392-124-080 Definition—Annual average headcount.** For the purposes of this chapter, annual average headcount shall be calculated by taking the (~~sum~~) annual total of the monthly headcounts as reported on Form P-223YC for the months of September through August divided by (~~twelve~~) ten. This calculation applies to the reporting of basic education, special education, and bilingual education students.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-21-020, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09)

**WAC 392-124-100 Definition—Apportionment.** Apportionment shall be paid to the school district or state agency operating the National Guard youth challenge program (~~is operating within~~) pursuant to chapter 28A.510 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 09-21-020, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09)

**WAC 392-124-110 Definition—Apportionment allocation.** The apportionment allocation shall be based and made consistent with state funding formulas with the following items set as:

(1) The basic education funding rate shall be the basic state average rate as defined in WAC 392-124-030.

(2) The vocational education funding rate shall be the vocational state average rate as defined in WAC 392-124-030.

(3) The special education rate shall be 93.09% of the basic state average rate as defined in WAC 392-124-030 with the number of funded special education headcount limited to 12.7% of the reported basic education headcount.

(4) Funding under the following categorical programs shall use the legislative provided formulas and rates. Categorical programs are subject to legislative allotment and program standards and include:

- (a) Highly capable;
- (b) Bilingual;
- (c) Learning assistance - Shall use the statewide average for the free and reduced price lunch rate(;
- ~~(d) Student achievement)).~~

(5) Funding for categorical programs and vocational education is subject to program approval by the superintendent of public instruction.

### WSR 13-02-027

#### PROPOSED RULES

#### DEPARTMENT OF

#### SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Aging and Disability Services Administration)

[Filed December 20, 2012, 4:03 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 11-09-067.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: The department proposes to adopt a new chapter 388-877 WAC to establish administrative standards, and support the specific requirements for the licensing and certification of behavioral health agencies that provide mental health, chemical dependency, and/or problem and pathological gambling treatment services. This rule supports the program-specific rules the department is proposing, at the same time, for a new chapter 388-877A WAC for mental health, chapter 388-877B WAC for chemical dependency, and chapter 388-877C WAC for problem and pathological gambling.

SECTIONS IN NEW CHAPTER 388-877 WAC:

Section One—Behavioral health services—Purpose and scope.

WAC 388-877-0100 Behavioral health services—Purpose and scope.

Section Two—Behavioral health services—Definitions.

WAC 388-877-0200 Behavioral health services—Definitions.

Section Three—Behavioral health services—Agency licensure and certification.

WAC 388-877-0300 Agency licensure—General information, 388-877-0305 Agency licensure—Application, 388-877-0310 Agency licensure—Deeming, 388-877-0315 Agency licensure—Renewals, 388-877-0320 Agency licensure—On-site reviews and plans of correction, 388-877-0325 Agency licensure and program-specific certification—Approvals and provisional approvals, 388-877-0330 Agency licensure—Effective dates, 388-877-0335 Agency licensure and program-specific certification—Denials, suspensions, restrictions, revocations, and penalties, 388-877-0340

Agency licensure—Adding a branch site, 388-877-0345 Agency licensure and program-specific certification—Adding a new service, 388-877-0350 Agency licensure—Change in ownership, 388-877-0355 Agency licensure—Change in location, 388-877-0360 Agency licensure and program-specific certification—Facility remodel, 388-877-0365 Agency licensure and program-specific certification—Fee requirements, and 388-877-0370 Agency licensure and program-specific certification—Appealing a department decision.

Section Four—Behavioral health services—Agency administration.

WAC 388-877-0400 Agency administration—Governance body requirements, 388-877-0410 Agency administration—Administrator key responsibilities, 388-877-0420 Agency administration—Policies and procedures, and 388-877-0430 Agency administration—Treatment facility requirements.

Section Five—Behavioral health services—Personnel.

WAC 388-877-0500 Personnel—Agency policies and procedures, 388-877-0510 Personnel—Agency record requirements, 388-877-0520 Personnel—Agency requirements for supervision of trainees and interns, and 388-877-0530 Personnel—Agency requirements for volunteers and student practicum.

Section Six—Behavioral health services—Clinical.

WAC 388-877-0600 Clinical—Individual rights, 388-877-0610 Clinical—Initial assessment, 388-877-0620 Clinical—Individual service plan, 388-877-0630 Clinical—Individual clinical record system, 388-877-0640 Clinical—Record content, and 388-877-0650 Clinical—Access to clinical records.

Hearing Location(s): Office Building 2, Lookout Room, DSHS Headquarters, 1115 Washington, Olympia, WA 98504 (public parking at 11th and Jefferson. A map is available at <http://www1.dshs.wa.gov/msa/rpau/RPAU-OB-2directions.html>), on February 26, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: Not earlier than February 27, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: DSHS Rules Coordinator, P.O. Box 45850, Olympia, WA 98504, e-mail DSHS RPAURulesCoordinator@dshs.wa.gov, fax (360) 664-6185, by 5:00 p.m. on February 26, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Jennisha Johnson, DSHS rules consultant, by January 15, 2013, TTY (360) 664-6178 or (360) 664-6094 or by e-mail at [jennisha.johnson@dshs.wa.gov](mailto:jennisha.johnson@dshs.wa.gov).

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The new rules in chapter 388-877 WAC allow for a single set of agency administrative, personnel, and clinical policies and procedures that address specific treatment populations and levels of care. The rules will provide standardization to all behavioral health services programs, provide an agency with a streamlined certification and/or licensure process for mental health, chemical dependency, and/or problem and pathological gambling treatment programs, and eliminate the need for multiple audits when the agency provides more than one behavioral health service.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: The rules support the following: Clinical staff competency, individual rights, an ini-

tial assessment, a treatment service plan and treatment service plan review, clinical documentation, a discharge plan, a continuing care plan, patient records, a complaint procedure, and quality management. In addition, the rules merge and place into one section definitions that apply to the general behavioral health services administrative rules and the program-specific rules for mental health, chemical dependency, and problem and pathological gambling services.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: Chapters 70.02, 70.96A, 71.05, 71.24, 71.34, 74.50 RCW; RCW 74.08.090, 43.20A.890; 42 C.F.R. Part 8.

Statute Being Implemented: Chapters 70.02, 70.96A, 71.05, 71.24, 71.34, 74.50 RCW; RCW 74.08.090, 43.20A.890; 42 C.F.R. Part 8.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: Department of social and health services, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Kathy Sayre, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, (360) 725-1342; Implementation and Enforcement: Pete Marburger, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, (360) 725-1513.

A small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW.

#### Small Business Economic Impact Statement

See Reviser's note below.

A copy of the statement may be obtained by contacting Kathy Sayre, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, phone (360) 725-1342, fax (360) 725-2280, e-mail [kathy.sayre@dshs.wa.gov](mailto:kathy.sayre@dshs.wa.gov).

A cost-benefit analysis is required under RCW 34.05.-328. A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting Kathy Sayre, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, phone (360) 725-1342, fax (360) 725-2280, e-mail [kathy.sayre@dshs.wa.gov](mailto:kathy.sayre@dshs.wa.gov).

December 20, 2012  
Katherine I. Vasquez  
Rules Coordinator

**Reviser's note:** The material contained in this filing exceeded the page-count limitations of WAC 1-21-040 for appearance in this issue of the Register. It will appear in the 13-03 issue of the Register.

### WSR 13-02-028

#### PROPOSED RULES

#### DEPARTMENT OF

#### SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Aging and Disability Services Administration)

(Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery)

[Filed December 20, 2012, 4:03 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 11-09-067.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: The department proposes to adopt new chapters 388-877A, 388-877B, 388-877C WAC to establish the specific requirements

for the licensing and certification of behavioral health agencies that provide mental health, chemical dependency, and/or problem and pathological gambling treatment services. These rules support the general requirements in proposed chapter 388-877 WAC which will establish general behavioral health services administrative standards for behavioral health agencies.

See Reviser's note below.

Hearing Location(s): Office Building 2, Lookout Room, DSHS Headquarters, 1115 Washington, Olympia, WA 98504 (public parking at 11th and Jefferson. A map is available at <http://www1.dshs.wa.gov/msa/rpau/RPAU-OB-2directions.html>), on February 26, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: Not earlier than February 27, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: DSHS Rules Coordinator, P.O. Box 45850, Olympia, WA 98504, e-mail [DSHSRPAURulesCoordinator@dshs.wa.gov](mailto:DSHSRPAURulesCoordinator@dshs.wa.gov), fax (360) 664-6185, by 5 p.m. on February 26, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Jennisha Johnson, DSHS rules consultant, by January 15, 2013, TTY (360) 664-6178 or (360) 664-6094 or by e-mail at [jennisha.johnson@dshs.wa.gov](mailto:jennisha.johnson@dshs.wa.gov).

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The new rules in chapters 388-877A, 388-877B, and 388-877C WAC will establish program-specific rules for mental health, chemical dependency, and problem and pathological gambling services and replace the current rules in chapters 388-865, 388-816, and 388-805 WAC. The new rules support the department's proposed chapter 388-877 WAC, which will establish general administrative standards for agencies that provide behavioral health services.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: The new rules provide agencies with program-specific rules for mental health, chemical dependency, and/or problem and pathological gambling treatment programs that support the department's proposed chapter 388-877 WAC, which will establish general administrative standards for agencies that provide behavioral health services. The rules cross reference to the definitions in proposed WAC 388-877-0200 that merges and places into one section definitions for terms and phrases that apply to both the general behavioral health services administrative rules and the behavioral health services program-specific rules.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: Chapters 70.02, 70.96A, 71.05, 71.24, 71.34, 74.50 RCW; RCW 74.08.090, 43.20A.890; 42 C.F.R. Part 8.

Statute Being Implemented: Chapters 70.02, 70.96A, 71.05, 71.24, 71.34, 74.50 RCW; RCW 74.08.090, 43.20A.890; 42 C.F.R. Part 8.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: Department of social and health services, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Kathy Sayre, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, (360) 725-1342; Implementation and Enforcement: Pete Marburger, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, (360) 725-1513.

A small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement

See Reviser's note below.

A copy of the statement may be obtained by contacting Kathy Sayre, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, phone (360) 725-1342, fax (360) 725-2280, e-mail kathy.sayre@dshs.wa.gov.

A cost-benefit analysis is required under RCW 34.05.-328. A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting Kathy Sayre, P.O. Box 45330, Olympia, WA 98504-5330, phone (360) 725-1342, fax (360) 725-2280, e-mail kathy.sayre@dshs.wa.gov.

December 20, 2012  
Katherine I. Vasquez  
Rules Coordinator

**Reviser's note:** The material contained in this filing exceeded the page-count limitations of WAC 1-21-040 for appearance in this issue of the Register. It will appear in the 13-03 issue of the Register.

**WSR 13-02-049**  
**PROPOSED RULES**  
**DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING**

[Filed December 26, 2012, 8:42 a.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-11-060.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Chapter 308-56A WAC, Vehicle licenses, to include but not limited to WAC 308-56A-530 Vehicle brands and comments.

Hearing Location(s): Highways-Licenses Building, Conference Room 413, 1125 Washington Street S.E., Olympia, WA 98501 (check in at counter on first floor), on February 5, 2013, at 1:00 p.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Carol Marie Andrew, P.O. Box 9020, 1125 Washington Street S.E., Olympia, WA 98507-9020, e-mail candrew@dol.wa.gov, fax (360) 570-7081, by February 4, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Carol Marie Andrew by January 23, 2013, TTY (360) 664-0116.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: To incorporate statutory changes made by SSB 5800 and ESSB 5585 which passed the 2011 legislature.

This amendment clarifies the comments that will print on the titles and registrations of off-road motorcycles that have been modified for road use, street rods, and custom vehicles.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: Comments are used for consumer protection, to inform any subsequent owners and vehicle licensing personnel of the current tax liability, type of ownership, or title transaction type or other pertinent information.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 46.01.110.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 46.04.161, 46.04.-572, 46.16A.435.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: Department of licensing, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Carol Marie Andrew, 1125 Washington Street S.E., Olympia, WA, (360) 902-3822; Implementation and Enforcement: Toni Wilson, 1125 Washington Street S.E., Olympia, WA, (360) 902-3811.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. A small business economic impact statement is not required because these rules do not apply to small businesses.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. RCW 34.05.328 does not apply to this proposed rule under the provisions of RCW 34.05.328 (5)(a)(i).

December 26, 2012  
Damon Monroe  
Rules Coordinator

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-20-034, filed 9/23/08, effective 10/24/08)

**WAC 308-56A-530 Vehicles brands and comments.**

(1) **What is a brand?** For the purposes of this section a brand is a notation on the certificate of ownership or vehicle registration certificate that records a special circumstance or condition involving a vehicle.

(2) **What brands are assigned to vehicles by the department?** Brands used by the department include, but are not limited to:

(a) Former exempt, as defined in RCW (~~46.16.020~~) 46.16A.170;

(b) Former for hire, as defined in RCW 46.72.010;

(c) Former taxicab, as described in RCW 46.72.010;

(d) Rebuilt as required in RCW (~~46.12.075~~) 46.12.540, when a vehicle reported destroyed under RCW (~~46.12.070~~) 46.12.600 or 46.80.090 and WAC 308-56A-460 meets the definition of salvage vehicle in RCW (~~46.12.005~~) 46.04.-514;

(e) Street rod as formerly defined in repealed section RCW 46.04.571;

(f) Nonconformity uncorrected or safety defect uncorrected as defined in RCW 19.118.021 (~~((+3))~~) (14) and (~~((+8))~~) (19);

(g) Nonconformity corrected or safety defect corrected as defined in RCW 19.118.021 (~~((+3))~~) (14) and (~~((+8))~~) (19);

(h) Returned to manufacturer;

(i) Odometer - Not actual;

(j) Odometer - Exceeds mechanical limits;

(k) Repaired - Wrecker/insurance bill of sale;

(l) Contaminated - Vehicles described in chapter 64.44 RCW;

(m) Decontaminated - Vehicles described in chapter 64.44 RCW.

(3) **What brands are carried forward from the other states/jurisdictions by the department?**

(a) Brands for states/jurisdictions participating in the National Motor Vehicle Title Information System (NMVTIS) program (known as "Standard Brands,") are



maintained in the brands list by NMVTIS and include, but are not limited to:

- (i) Rebuilt;
- (ii) Junk;
- (iii) Destroyed;
- (iv) Salvage - Damaged;
- (v) Salvage - Retention;
- (vi) Salvage - Stolen;
- (vii) Salvage - Other;
- (viii) Flood damage;
- (ix) Hail damage;
- (x) Saltwater damage;
- (xi) Totaled.

(b) Brands from states/jurisdictions not participating in NMVTIS that do not appear on the brands list maintained by NMVTIS (known as "unique brands") will be carried forward on Washington certificates of ownership and registration certificates exactly (or abbreviated if too long) as they appear on the foreign title.

More than one brand may appear on the vehicle registration or certificate of ownership.

**(4) Will a brand be applied to destroyed vehicles that have been sold on an out-of-state wrecker or insurance bill of sale, then repaired, and inspected?** Yes. Vehicles not reported to DOL as destroyed and then sold using an insurance or wrecker bill of sale in lieu of a certificate of ownership/title, then brought into Washington from another jurisdiction that is not subject to reporting under RCW ((46-12-070)) 46.12.600 repaired, and inspected will be branded. The brand will appear as "repaired-wrecker/insurance bill of sale."

The jurisdiction code will be identified as "WA."

**(5) Why is a brand used?** A brand is used in the circumstances above for consumer protection. The brand is used to inform any subsequent owners of the current or former condition or use of the vehicle.

**(6) Will the department remove a brand?** Brands stay on vehicle records indefinitely. The department will only remove a brand if the brand was applied to a Washington certificate of ownership in error; or

(a) If a former rental brand was applied prior to the effective date of this rule, it will remain on the certificate of ownership and/or vehicle registration unless applied in error.

(b) If a nonstandard brand was applied prior to the effective date of this rule, it will remain on the certificate of ownership and/or vehicle registration unless applied in error.

**(7) Where are brands located on the documents?** Brands are located in the brands section of the certificate of ownership and vehicle registration. Brands will display beginning with Washington issued brands, followed by unique brands, then standard brands. If applicable, "WA REBUILT" will show as a banner across the certificate of ownership.

**(8) What is a comment?** For the purposes of this section a comment is an indication on the certificate of ownership, vehicle title/registration application or vehicle registration certificate that relates to tax liability, type of ownership, title transaction type.

**(9) What comments could the department print on certificates of ownership?**

(a) Comments relating to the ownership that include: Bonded, leased, JTWROS.

(b) Comments relating to tax liability that include: Use tax waived - Gift, value code, value year.

(c) Comments relating to the type of title transaction, which include duplicate, and reprint.

(d) Miscellaneous comments that include: Not eligible for road use.

**(10) What comments could the department print on vehicle registration certificates?** Comments printed on vehicle registration certificates may include, but are not limited to:

(a) "CVSEF PAID" or "commercial vehicle safety enforcement fee paid";

(b) "Because scale weight exceeds gross weight, D.O.T. permit also required";

(c) "Commercial vehicle safety enforcement fee not paid";

(d) "Display tab on back license plate" only - front plate is still required;

(e) "\*Check vehicle data base record for actual expiration date";

(f) "Replica";

(g) "Proof of FHVUT verified";

(h) "No title issued" or "no title issued - ownership in doubt";

(i) "Excise exempt NRM";

(j) "Excise exempt Native American";

(k) "Excise exempt van pool";

(l) "Excise exempt rideshare";

(m) "Registration only";

(n) "Prorated gross weight to be more than 16,000";

(o) "Additional owners on record";

(p) "Not eligible for road use";

(q) "Perm plt";

(r) "Use tax waived: Gift";

(s) "Permanent fleet vehicle";

(t) "\*Perm";

(u) "Color";

(v) Comments relating to the ownership; bonded, leased, JTWROS, registration only;

(w) Tax liability DAV, Native American, NRM, value code/year, use tax option, rideshare, POW, tax code 95, double transfer;

(x) Title transaction type duplicate, reprint, NTI, dual registration, corrected title data, corrected registration;

(y) Miscellaneous gift, ride, previous plate VIN flag, farm vehicle restrictions, Federal Drug Program (Title 49 C.F.R. Part 382) vehicle color, odometer code, RETURN TO MFG, not eligible for road use (NEFRU), custom vehicle and street rod.

**(11) What comments would the department carry forward from other jurisdictions?** The department does not carry forward comments assigned by other jurisdictions.

**(12) Why are comments used?** Comments are used for consumer protection, to inform any subsequent owners and vehicle licensing personnel of the current tax liability, type of

ownership, or title transaction type or other pertinent information.

(13) **Will the department remove a comment?** The department will remove a comment if:

- (a) The comment was applied in error; or
- (b) The comment no longer applies.

**WSR 13-02-055**  
**PROPOSED RULES**  
**HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY**

(Medicaid Program)

[Filed December 26, 2012, 3:18 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-22-058.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: WAC 182-551-1200 Client eligibility for hospice care.

Hearing Location(s): Health Care Authority (HCA), Cherry Street Plaza Building, Sue Crystal Conference Room 106A, 626 8th Avenue, Olympia, WA 98504 (metered public parking is available street side around building. A map is available at <http://maa.dshs.wa.gov/pdf/CherryStreetDirectionsNMap.pdf> or directions can be obtained by calling (360) 725-1000), on February 5, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: Not sooner than February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: HCA Rules Coordinator, P.O. Box 45504, Olympia, WA 98504-5504, delivery 626 8th Avenue, Olympia, WA 98504, e-mail [arc@hca.wa.gov](mailto:arc@hca.wa.gov), fax (360) 586-9727, by 5:00 p.m. on February 5, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Kelly Richters by January 28, 2013, TTY (800) 848-5429 or (360) 725-1307 or e-mail [kelly.richters@hca.wa.gov](mailto:kelly.richters@hca.wa.gov).

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: During the revision of the hospice rules under WSR 12-09-079, the agency incorrectly added "medical care services" as an eligible program under WAC 182-551-1200 [(1)](d). To comply with the agency's federal Transitional Bridge 1115 Waiver, the agency must remove medicare care services from the list of eligible programs for hospice services.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: See Purpose above.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 41.05.021.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 41.05.021.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: HCA, medicaid program, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Wendy L. Boedigheimer, P.O. Box 45504, Olympia, WA 98504-5504, (360) 725-1306; Implementation and Enforcement: Ellen Silverman, P.O. Box 45506, Olympia, WA 98504-5506, (360) 725-1570.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. The agency has analyzed the proposed rules and concludes that they do not impose more than minor costs for affected small businesses.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. RCW 34.05.328 does not apply to health care authority rules unless requested by the joint administrative rules [review] committee or applied voluntarily.

December 26, 2012

Kevin M. Sullivan

Rules Coordinator

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 12-09-079, filed 4/17/12, effective 5/18/12)

**WAC 182-551-1200 Client eligibility for hospice care.** (1) A client who elects to receive hospice care must be eligible for one of the following medical assistance programs, subject to the restrictions and limitations in this chapter and other WAC:

- (a) Categorically needy (CN);
- (b) Children's health care as described in WAC ~~((388-505-0210))~~ 182-505-0210;
- (c) Medically needy (MN); or
- (d) ~~((Medical care services as described in WAC 182-508-0005 (within Washington state or designated border cities); or~~
- (e)) Alien emergency medical (AEM) as described in WAC ~~((388-438-0110))~~ 182-507-0110, when the medical services are necessary to treat a qualifying emergency medical condition.

(2) A hospice agency is responsible to verify a client's eligibility with the client or the client's department of social and health services (DSHS) home and community services (HCS) office or community services office (CSO).

(3) A client enrolled in one of the medicaid agency's managed care organizations (MCO) must receive all hospice services, including facility room and board, directly through that MCO. The MCO is responsible for arranging and providing all hospice services for an MCO client.

(4) A client who is also eligible for medicare hospice under part A is not eligible for hospice care through the medicaid agency's hospice program. The medicaid agency does pay hospice nursing facility room and board for these clients if the client is admitted to a nursing facility or hospice care center (HCC) and is not receiving general inpatient care or inpatient respite care. See also WAC 182-551-1530.

(5) A client who meets the requirements in this section is eligible to receive hospice care through the medicaid agency's hospice program when all of the following is met:

- (a) The client's physician certifies the client has a life expectancy of six months or less.
- (b) The client elects to receive hospice care and agrees to the conditions of the "election statement" as described in WAC 182-551-1310.
- (c) The hospice agency serving the client:
  - (i) Notifies the medicaid agency's hospice program within five working days of the admission of all clients, including:
    - (A) Medicaid-only clients;
    - (B) Medicaid-medicare dual eligible clients;
    - (C) Medicaid clients with third party insurance; and
    - (D) Medicaid-medicare dual eligible clients with third party insurance.

(ii) Meets the hospice agency requirements in WAC 182-551-1300 and 182-551-1305.

(d) The hospice agency provides additional information for a diagnosis when the medicaid agency requests and determines, on a case-by-case basis, the information that is needed for further review.

**WSR 13-02-073**  
**PROPOSED RULES**  
**HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY**  
 (Medicaid Program)

[Filed December 31, 2012, 11:34 a.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-11-101.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: WAC 182-537-0100 School-based health care services for children in special education—Purpose, 182-537-0200 School-based health care services for children in special education—Definitions, 182-537-0350 School-based health care services for children in special education—Provider Qualifications, 182-537-0400 School-based health care services for children in special education—Covered services, 182-537-0500 School-based health care services for children in special education—Noncovered services, 182-537-0600 School-based health care services for children in special education—School district requirements for billing and payment, 182-537-0700 School-based health care services for children in special education—School district documentation requirements, and 182-537-0800 School-based health care services for children in special education—Program monitoring/audits.

Hearing Location(s): Health Care Authority (HCA), Cherry Street Plaza Building, Sue Crystal Conference Room 106A, 626 8th Avenue, Olympia, WA 98504 (metered public parking is available street side around building. A map is available at <http://maa.dshs.wa.gov/pdf/CherryStreetDirectionsNMap.pdf> or directions can be obtained by calling (360) 725-1000, on February 5, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: Not sooner than February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: HCA Rules Coordinator, P.O. Box 45504, Olympia, WA 98504-5504, delivery 626 8th Avenue, Olympia, WA 98504, e-mail [arc@hca.wa.gov](mailto:arc@hca.wa.gov), fax (360) 586-9727, by 5:00 p.m. on February 5, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Kelly Richters by January 29, 2013, TTY (800) 848-5429 or (360) 725-1307 or e-mail [kelly.richters@hca.wa.gov](mailto:kelly.richters@hca.wa.gov).

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The agency is amending chapter 182-537 WAC to update the school-based services program to be compliant with the current state plan amendment (SPA), expand the requirements for documentation of healthcare-related services, clarify the school districts' monitoring/auditing requirements, clarify the authority to implement the program and scope of covered and noncovered services, and make housekeeping changes throughout.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: Implementation of these rules is necessary to maintain funding for the program and to comply with federal rules.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: [RCW 41.05.021].

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: HCA, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Jason R. P. Crabbe, P.O. Box 45504, Olympia, WA 98504-5504, (360) 725-1346; Implementation and Enforcement: Jim Harvey, P.O. Box 45504, Olympia, WA 98504-5530, (360) 725-1153.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. The agency has analyzed the proposed rule amendments and concludes that they do not impose a disproportionate cost impact on small businesses. As a result, the preparation of a small business economic impact statement is not required.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. RCW 34.05.328 does not apply to HCA rules unless requested by the joint administrative rules [review] committee or applied voluntarily.

December 31, 2012  
 Kevin M. Sullivan  
 Rules Coordinator

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0100 School-based health care services for children in special education—Purpose.** ~~((+))~~ ~~The department of social and health services (DSHS))~~ The medicaid agency pays school districts for school-based health care services provided to children in special education ~~((# accordance))~~ consistent with ~~((the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA))~~ Section 1905(c) of the Social Security Act. ~~((The))~~ Covered services must:

~~((a))~~ (1) Identify, treat, and manage the education-related disabilities (i.e., mental, emotional, and physical) ((and/or mental disabilities)) of a child in special education;

~~((b))~~ (2) Be prescribed or recommended by ((a physician)) licensed physicians or other ((qualified)) licensed health care providers within ((his or her)) their scope of practice under state law; ((and

~~((c))~~ (3) Be medically necessary;

(4) Be diagnostic, evaluative, habilitative, or rehabilitative in nature; and

(5) Be included in the child's current individualized education program (IEP).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0200 School-based health care services for children in special education—Definitions.** The following definitions and those found in ~~((WAC 388-500-0005))~~ chapter 182-500 WAC apply to this chapter:

"Agency"—See WAC 182-500-0010.

"Amount, duration, and scope"—A written statement within the individualized education program (IEP) that

addresses sufficiency of services to achieve a particular goal (a treatment plan for *how much* of a health care related service will be provided, *how long* a service will be provided, and *what* the service is).

**"Assessment"**—For purposes of this chapter an assessment is made-up of medically necessary tests given to an individual child by ((qualified professionals)) a licensed professional to evaluate whether a child is determined to be a child with a disability, and in need of special education and related services. Assessments are a part of the evaluation and re-evaluation processes and must accompany the IEP.

**"Child with a disability"**—For purposes of this chapter, a child with a disability ((means)) is a child evaluated and determined to need special education and related services because of a disability in one or more of the following eligibility categories:

- Autism;
- Deaf/blindness;
- Developmental delay for children ages three through nine, with an adverse educational impact, the results of which require special education and related direct services;
- Hearing loss (including deafness);
- Mental retardation;
- Hearing impairment (including deafness);
- Speech or language impairment;
- Serious emotional disturbance (emotional behavioral disability);
- Orthopedic impairment;
- Autism;
- Visual impairment (including blindness);
- Traumatic brain injury;
- Other health impairment;
- Specific learning disability;
- Deaf/blindness;)
- Multiple disabilities; ((or))
- ((A developmental delay for children ages three through nine, with an adverse educational impact, the results of which require special education and related direct services;)) Orthopedic impairment;
- Other health impairment;
- Serious emotional disturbance (emotional behavioral disturbance);
- Specific learning disability;
- Speech or language impairment;
- Traumatic brain injury; and
- Visual impairment (including blindness).

**"Core provider agreement"**—The basic contract the agency holds with providers serving medical assistance clients.

**"Direct health care related services"**—Services provided directly to a child either one-on-one or in a group setting. This does not include specially designed instruction.

**"Educational staff associate (ESA) certification"**—The ESA certificate is an official document that attests to minimum prerequisites of age, moral character/fitness, education, experience, competence, and preparation program, depending on the certificate types. The ESA certification is required to serve in a Washington public school.)

**"Evaluation"**—Procedures used ((according to WAC 392-172A-03005 through 392-172A-03080)) to determine

whether a ((student)) child has a disability, and the nature and extent of the special education and related services are needed. (See WAC 392-172A-03005 through 392-172A-03080.)

**"Face-to-face supervision" or "direct supervision"**—Supervision that is conducted on-site, in-view, by an experienced licensed health care professional to assist the supervisee to develop the knowledge and skills to practice effectively, including administering the treatment plan.

**"Fee-for-service"**—((For the purpose of this section, the general payment method the department uses to reimburse providers for covered medical services provided to medical assistance clients when those services are not covered under the department's managed care plans or state children's health insurance program (SCHIP).

**"Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)"**—The IDEA is a United States federal law that governs how states and public agencies provide early intervention, special education, and related services to children with disabilities. It addresses the educational needs of children with disabilities from birth to age of twenty-one.) See WAC 182-500-0035.

**"Health care related services"**—Developmental, corrective, and other supportive services required to assist an eligible child to benefit from special education. For the purposes of the school-based health care services program, related services include:

- Audiology;
- Counseling;
- Nursing;
- Occupational therapy;
- Physical therapy;
- Psychological assessments; and
- Speech-language therapy.

**"Individualized education program (IEP)"**—A written statement of an educational program for a ((student)) child eligible for special education. (See WAC 392-172A-03090 through 392-172A-03135.)

**"Medically necessary"**—See WAC 182-500-0070.

**"National provider identifier (NPI)"**—See WAC 182-500-0075.

**"Plan of care" or "treatment plan"**—A written document that outlines the health care related needs of a child in special education. The plan is based on input from the health care professional and written approval from the parent or guardian.

**"Provider"**—See WAC 182-500-0085.

**"Qualified health care provider"**—See WAC ((388-537-0350)) 182-537-0350.

**"Reevaluation"**—Procedures used to determine whether a ((student)) child continues to be in need of special education and related services. (See WAC 392-172A-03015.)

**"Related services"**—Developmental, corrective, and other supportive services as may be required to assist a child with a disability to benefit from specially designed instruction. For purposes of this program, related services include: physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech-language therapy, audiology services, psychological assessments, counseling, and nursing services.) **"Regular consulta-**

**tion"**—Face-to-face contact between the supervisor and supervisee that occurs no less than once per month.

**"Revised Code of Washington (RCW)"**—Washington state law.

**"School-based health care services program" or "SBS"**—School-based health care services for children in special education that are diagnostic, evaluative, habilitative, rehabilitative in nature, and must be based on medical necessity. The agency pays school districts for school-based health care services delivered to medicaid-enrolled children in special education in accordance with Section 1905(c) of the Social Security Act.

**"Special education"**—Specially designed instructions at no cost to the parent, which meet the unique needs of a child with a disability.

**"Washington Administrative Code (WAC)"**—Codified rules of the state of Washington.

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0350 School-based health care services for children in special education—Provider qualifications.** The ~~((department))~~ medicaid agency pays school districts to provide certain health care related services (see WAC ~~((388-537-0400))~~ 182-537-0400). These services must be ~~((provided))~~ delivered by qualified health care providers who ~~((meet Washington state and federal requirements and operate within the scope of their practitioner's))~~ hold a current professional license:

- (1) Audiology services must be delivered by ~~((~~
  - (a) A licensed audiologist; or
  - (b) A school-based audiologist who:
    - (i) Meets the education and work experience necessary for a state professional license;
    - (ii) Holds a valid school audiologist educational staff associate certificate; and
    - (iii) Limits their audiology services to the school setting))
  - (2) Counseling services must be delivered by:
    - (a) A licensed independent social worker (LiCSW);
    - (b) A licensed advanced social worker (LiACSW);
    - (c) A licensed mental health counselor (LMHC); or
    - (d) ~~((A school-based social worker or mental health counselor who:~~
      - (i) Meets the education and work experience necessary for a state professional license;
      - (ii) Holds a valid school social worker or school counselor educational staff associate certificate; and
      - (iii) Limits their counseling services to the school setting-))
  - (e) A licensed mental health counselor associate (LMHCA) under the supervision of a department of health-approved licensed supervisor.
  - (3) Nursing services must be delivered by:
    - (a) A licensed registered nurse (RN);
    - (b) A licensed practical nurse (LPN) who is supervised by an RN; or
    - (c) A noncredentialed school employee who is delegated certain limited health care tasks by ~~((a registered nurse))~~ an

RN and ~~((, trained and))~~ is supervised according to professional practice standards (see RCW 18.79.260).

- (4) Occupational therapy services must be delivered by:
  - (a) A licensed occupational therapist (OT); or
  - (b) A ~~((certified))~~ licensed occupational ~~((therapy))~~ therapist assistant (OTA) who is supervised by a licensed occupational therapist ~~((in accordance with professional practice standards))~~.
  - (5) Physical therapy services must be delivered by:
    - (a) A licensed physical therapist (PT); or
    - (b) A licensed physical therapist assistant (PTA) who is supervised by a licensed physical therapist ~~((in accordance with professional practice standards))~~.
    - (6) Psychological services must be delivered by ~~((~~
      - (a)) a licensed psychologist ~~((or~~
        - (b) A school-based psychologist who:
          - (i) Holds a masters degree in school psychology;
          - (ii) Holds a valid school psychologist educational staff associate certificate; and
          - (iii) Limits their psychological services to the school setting;
        - (c) A school-based psychologist who:
          - (i) Holds a doctoral degree in psychology;
          - (ii) Holds a valid school psychologist educational staff associate certificate; and
          - (iii) Limits their psychological services to the school setting))
        - (7) Speech therapy services must be delivered by:
          - (a) A licensed speech-language pathologist (SLP); or
          - (b) A speech-language pathology assistant ~~((;))~~ (SLPA) who:
            - (i) Has graduated from a speech-language pathology assistant program, board-approved institution; and ~~((is))~~
            - (ii) Is directly supervised ~~((by))~~ a speech-language pathologist with a current certificate of clinical competence (CCC) ~~((in accordance with professional practice standards; or~~
              - (c) A school-based speech-language pathologist who:
                - (i) Meets the education and work experience necessary for a state professional license;
                - (ii) Holds a valid school speech-language pathologist educational staff associate certificate; and
                - (iii) Limits their speech therapy services to the school setting))
              - (8) For services provided under the supervision of a physical therapist, occupational therapist or speech-language pathologist, nurse, or counselor/social worker, the following requirements apply:
                - (a) The nature, frequency, and length of the supervision must be provided in accordance with professional practice standards, and ~~((adequate to assure the))~~ be sufficient to ensure a child receives quality therapy services ~~((;))~~;
                - (b) The supervising therapist must see the child face-to-face at the beginning of services and periodically during the school year;
                - (c) At a minimum, supervision must be ~~((one-on-one))~~ face-to-face communication between the supervisor and the ~~((supervised professional-~~

~~(e))~~ supervisee once per month. Supervisors are responsible for approving and cosigning all treatment notes written by the supervisee before submitting claims for payment; and

~~(d)~~ Documentation of supervisory activities must be ~~(on record)~~ recorded and available to the ~~((department))~~ agency or its designee upon request.

(9) It is the responsibility of the school district to assure providers meet the professional licensing and certification requirements ~~((necessary for reimbursement))~~.

(10) Licensing exemptions found in the following regulations do not apply to federal medicaid reimbursement for the services indicated below:

(a) Counseling as found in RCW 18.225.030;

(b) Psychology as found in RCW 18.83.200;

(c) Social work as found in RCW 18.320.010; and

(d) Speech therapy as found in RCW 18.35.195.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0400 School-based health care services for children in special education—Covered services.** Covered services include:

(1) Evaluations~~(-)~~ when the child is determined to ~~((be a child with))~~ have a disability, and is in need of ~~((special education and))~~ specialized instruction and health care related services;

(2) Direct health care services including:

(a) Audiology;

(b) Counseling;

(c) Nursing;

(d) Occupational therapy;

(e) Physical therapy;

(f) Psychological assessments; and

(g) Speech-language therapy.

(3) Reevaluations, to determine whether ~~((the))~~ a child continues to need special education and health care related services.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0500 School-based health care services for children in special education—Noncovered services.** Noncovered services include, but are not limited to the following:

(1) Applied behavior analysis (ABA);

(2) Attending meetings;

~~((2))~~ (3) Charting;

~~((3))~~ (4) Equipment preparation;

~~((4))~~ (5) Instructional assistant contact;

~~((5))~~ (6) Parent consultation;

~~((6))~~ (7) Parent contact;

~~((7))~~ (8) Planning;

~~((8))~~ (9) Preparing and sending correspondence to parents or other professionals;

~~((9))~~ (10) Professional consultation;

~~((10))~~ (11) Report writing;

~~((11))~~ (12) Review of records;

~~((12))~~ (13) School district staff accompanying a child in special education to and from school on the bus;

(14) Set-up;

~~((13))~~ (15) Teacher contact;

~~((14))~~ (16) Telehealth;

(17) Test interpretation;

~~((15))~~ (18) Travel and transporting; and

~~((16))~~ Observation; and

~~(17) For the purposes of this chapter, the department does not reimburse school districts for a RN or LPN to monitor a child continuously throughout the school day.)~~ (19) Continuous observation of a child when direct school-based health care services are not actively provided. The agency pays for the act of watching carefully and attentively only if it involves actual interventions.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0600 School-based health care services for children in special education—School district requirements for billing and payment.** To receive payment from the ~~((department))~~ medicaid agency for providing school-based health care services to eligible children, a school district must:

(1) Have a current, signed core provider agreement (CPA) with the ~~((department))~~ agency. A copy of the CPA must be on-site within the school district;

(2) Have a current, signed, and executed interagency agreement with the agency. A copy of the agreement must be on-site within the school district;

(3) Meet the applicable requirements in chapter ~~((388-502))~~ 182-502 WAC; and

~~((3))~~ (4) Comply with the agency's current, published ProviderOne billing and resource guide;

(5) Bill according to the ~~((department's))~~ agency's current, published school-based health care services ~~((billing instructions))~~ for children in special education medicaid provider guide, the school-based health care services fee schedule, and the intergovernmental transfer (IGT) process;

(6) Meet the applicable requirements in chapter 182-537 WAC;

(7) Provide only health care related services identified through a current individualized education program (IEP);

(8) Use only licensed health care professionals, as described in WAC 182-537-0350 and the school-based care services for children in special education medicaid provider guide;

(9) Meet documentation requirements in WAC 182-537-0700; and

(10) Give parents or guardians prior, informal, written notification on an annual basis, that the school district may be submitting claims for third-party insurance or medicaid reimbursement.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0700 School-based health care services for children in special education—School district documentation requirements.** (1) ~~((The school districts must maintain sufficient documentation to support and justify the paid claims, to))~~ For the purposes of this chapter, provid-

ers must document all health care related services as specified in the medicaid agency's current, published school-based health care services for children in special education medic-aid provider guide. Assistants, as defined in WAC 182-537-0350, who provide health care related services must have their supervisor cosign any documentation in accordance with the supervisory requirements for the provider type.

(2) Health care related documentation must include, at a minimum:

- (a) Professional assessment reports;
- (b) Evaluation and reevaluation reports;
- (c) Individualized education program (IEP); and
- (d) Treatment notes for each date of service the provider billed ~~((to))~~ the ~~((department))~~ agency.

~~((2))~~ All provider licenses and other credentials must be current and on file with the school district and available for review upon request.)) Treatment notes must include the following information:

- (i) Activity and intervention involved;
- (ii) Child's name;
- (iii) Child's ProviderOne client ID;
- (iv) Date of birth;
- (v) Date of service, actual time-in and time-out, and the number of billed units for the service;

(vi) Indication if the treatment note was for individual or group therapy; and

(vii) Original signature of the licensed provider, title, and National provider identifier (NPI) number.

(3) As described in WAC 182-502-0020, all records must be legible and easily and readily available to the ~~((department))~~ agency upon request.

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending WSR 11-14-075, filed 6/30/11, effective 7/1/11)

**WAC 182-537-0800 School-based health care services for children in special education—Program monitoring/audits.** (1) School districts must participate in ~~((the))~~ all monitoring ~~((process))~~ and auditing activities.

(2) ~~((The department monitors school-based health care services as established by the school-based health care services program manager and in compliance with the department's monitoring policy and plan.))~~ School districts are responsible for the accuracy, compliance, truthfulness, and completeness of all claims submitted for medicaid reimbursement.

(3) The ~~((department))~~ medicaid agency conducts ~~((audits of school-based health care services in accordance with))~~ monitoring activities annually according to chapter ((388-502A)) 182-502A WAC. The agency conducts a minimum of ten school-based medicaid program reviews annually. During this time frame, the agency:

(a) Completes a minimum of five record reviews as a desk review;

(b) Conducts a minimum of five record reviews on-site; and

(c) Bases the monitoring and auditing activities on usage and payment data from the previous school year.

(4) The ~~((department authority to))~~ agency conducts audits and recovers any overpayments if a school district is

found ~~((it))~~ not in compliance with agency requirements according to RCW 74.09.200, 74.09.220 and 74.09.290, which concern audits and investigations of providers.

(5) On or before October 31st of each year, school districts must submit to the school-based health care services program manager the following information:

(a) A provider update Form 12-325, to include all new health care professionals; and

(b) Copies of all new health care professionals' licenses issued by the Washington state department of health (DOH), and verification of the National provider identifier (NPI) number.

## WSR 13-02-082

### PROPOSED RULES

### SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

[Filed December 31, 2012, 12:25 p.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-23-040.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: WAC 392-121-262 Finance—General apportionment—Certificated instructional staff.

Hearing Location(s): Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI), Wanamaker Conference Room, 600 Washington Street, Olympia, WA 98504, on February 6, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Ross Bunda, P.O. Box 47200, Olympia, WA 98504-7200, e-mail ross.bunda@k12.wa.us, fax (360) 753-4201, by February 6, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Wanda Griffin by February 2, 2013, TTY (360) 664-3631 or (360) 725-6132.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: These rule revisions add a seventh criteria to the list of additional criteria for all credits earned by certificated instructional staff, pursuant to ESHB [ESSB] 5895, section 6 (2012 legislative session).

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 28A.150.290 (1) and 28A.415.023.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: [OSPI], governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Ross Bunda, OSPI, (360) 725-6308; Implementation: T. J. Kelly, OSPI, (360) 725-6301; and Enforcement: JoLynn Berge, OSPI, (360) 725-6292.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. Not applicable, no small business impact.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. OSPI is not subject to RCW 34.05.328 per sub-

section (5)(a)(i). Additionally, this rule is not a significant legislative rule per subsection (5)(c)(iii).

December 31, 2012  
Randy Dorn  
State Superintendent  
of Public Instruction

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 06-19-045, filed 9/15/06, effective 10/16/06)

**WAC 392-121-262 Definition—Additional criteria for all credits.** Credits earned after September 1, 1995, must satisfy the following criteria in addition to those found in WAC 392-121-255, 392-121-257, and 392-121-259:

(1) At the time credits are recognized by the school district the content of the course must meet at least one of the following:

(a) It is consistent with a school-based plan for mastery of student learning goals as referenced in RCW 28A.655.110, the annual school performance report, for the school in which the individual is assigned;

(b) It pertains to the individual's current assignment or expected assignment for the following school year;

(c) It is necessary for obtaining endorsement as prescribed by the Washington professional educator standards board;

(d) It is specifically required for obtaining advanced levels of certification;

(e) It is included in a college or university degree program that pertains to the individual's current assignment or potential future assignment as a certificated instructional staff; ~~((f))~~

(f) It addresses research-based assessment and instructional strategies for students with dyslexia, dysgraphia, and language disabilities when addressing learning goal one under RCW 28A.150.210, as applicable and appropriate for individual certificated instructional staff; or

(g) Beginning in the 2011-12 school year, it pertains to the revised teacher evaluation system under RCW 28A.405.100, including the professional development training provided in RCW 28A.405.106.

(2) Credits which have been determined to meet one or more of the criteria in subsection (1) of this section shall continue to be recognized in subsequent school years and by subsequent school district employers; and

(3) Credits not recognized in a school year may be recognized in a subsequent school year if there is a change in the qualifying criteria such as a change in professional educator standards board rules, a change in the district's strategic plan, a change in the school-based plan for the school in which the individual is assigned, a change in the individual's assignment, or a change in the individual's employer.

**WSR 13-02-089**

**PROPOSED RULES**

**OFFICE OF  
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER**

[Insurance Commissioner Matter No. R 2012-26—Filed January 2, 2013, 7:42 a.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-22-067.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Travel agent licensing.

Hearing Location(s): Insurance Commissioner's Office, TR 120, 5000 Capitol Boulevard, Tumwater, WA 98504-0255, on February 7, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 10, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Kacy Scott, P.O. Box 40258, Olympia, WA 98504-0258, fax (360) 586-3109, e-mail rulescoordinator@oic.wa.gov, by February 6, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Lorrie [Lorie] Villaflora by February 6, 2013, TTY (360) 586-0241 or (360) 725-7087.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) recently revised the state licensing handbook. This proposed amendment will bring the agency rules into alignment with the guidelines for issuing travel licenses.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: The proposed amendment would bring the agency in line with the uniform limited line travel licensing guidelines adopted by the NAIC.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 48.17.005.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 48.17.170.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Name of Proponent: Mike Kreidler, insurance commissioner, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Kacy Scott, P.O. Box 40258, Olympia, WA 98504-0258, (360) 725-7041; Implementation: John Hamje, P.O. Box 40255, Olympia, WA 98504-0255, (360) 725-7262; Enforcement: Carol Sureau, P.O. Box 40255, Olympia, WA 98504-0255, (360) 725-7050.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. Any additional costs due to this change in licensing requirements for travel insurance easily fall within the definition of "minor costs" found in RCW 19.85.020.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. This proposed rule does not add any new requirements for those selling travel insurance; instead it provides an option to not license all employees selling travel insurance as long as the agency is licensed and there is one primary agent licensed.

January 2, 2013

Mike Kreidler

Insurance Commissioner



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Matter No. R 2012-23, filed 10/29/12, effective 11/29/12)

**WAC 284-17-001 Definitions.** For purposes of this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise:

(1) "Affiliation" is a type of appointment whereby a business entity authorizes an individual insurance producer or surplus line broker to represent it when conducting insurance business.

(2) "Business entity" has the meaning set forth in RCW 48.17.010(2) and includes a sole proprietorship having associated licensees authorized to act on its behalf in the business or trade name of the sole proprietorship.

(3) "Days" means calendar days including Saturday and Sunday and holidays, unless otherwise specified.

(4) "Electronic submission" or "submitted electronically" means submission of a licensing process by an applicant, licensee, insurer, or education provider by means of the commissioner's web site or a third-party licensing provider or other state agency.

(5) "File" means a record in any retrievable format, and unless otherwise specified, includes paper and electronic formats.

(6) "Home state" has the meaning set forth in RCW 48.17.010(4).

(7) "Insurer" has the meaning set forth in RCW 48.17.010(7).

(8) "Licensee" means a person licensed by the commissioner under Title 48 RCW to sell, solicit or negotiate insurance and includes adjusters and surplus line brokers.

(9) "Line of authority" means a license issued in one or more lines of insurance listed in RCW 48.17.170.

(10) "NAIC" means the National Association of Insurance Commissioners.

(11) "Third-party licensing provider" is designated on the commissioner's web site at: [www.insurance.wa.gov](http://www.insurance.wa.gov).

(12) "Reinstatement" means the reissuance by the commissioner of a license that was not renewed more than sixty days but fewer than twelve months after its expiration date.

(13) "Resident" means a person who has elected to make Washington his or her home state, or, in the case of a business entity, has a place of business in this state.

(14) "Sending written notice" or "sending a copy of the written notice" means transmitting the required information in writing and, where required, on forms designated by the commissioner for that purpose, via first class mail, commercial parcel delivery company, telefacsimile, or electronic transmission, unless a specific method of transmission is specified.

(15) "Surety" means that limited line of authority of insurance or bond that covers obligations to pay the debts of, or answer for the default of another, including faithlessness in a position of public or private trust.

(16) "Travel insurance" means ~~((that limited line of authority of insurance coverage for trip cancellation, trip interruption, baggage, life, sickness and accident, disability, and personal effects when limited to a specific trip and sold in connection with transportation provided by a common carrier.~~

(17)) insurance coverage for personal risks incident to planned travel including, but not limited to:

(a) Interruption or cancellation of trip or event;

(b) Loss of baggage or personal effects;

(c) Damages to accommodations or rental vehicles; or

(d) Sickness, accident, disability, or death occurring during limited duration travel.

Travel insurance does not include major medical plans, which provide comprehensive medical protection for travelers with trips lasting six months or longer, including those working overseas as an expatriate or military personnel being deployed.

(17) "Travel insurance producer" means a licensed limited lines producer of travel insurance.

(18) "Travel retailer" means a business entity that offers and disseminates travel insurance on behalf of and under the direction and supervision of a licensed travel insurance producer.

(19) "Written" or "in writing" means any retrievable method of recording an agreement or document, and, unless otherwise specified, includes paper and electronic formats.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Matter No. R 2011-12, filed 9/13/11, effective 10/14/11)

**WAC 284-17-011 Limited line of travel insurance.**

(1) Travel insurance is a limited line of authority ((and is defined in WAC 284-17-001(16)).

(1) Insurers must ensure that their licensed and appointed insurance producers who transact the limited line of travel insurance are qualified by education or experience to offer their travel insurance products)). A person must not sell, solicit, or negotiate travel insurance in this state unless that person is licensed as an insurance producer with the travel limited line of authority.

(2) A business entity acting as a travel insurance producer is required to:

(a) Be licensed as a producer with the travel limited line of authority; and

(b) Designate an individual licensed as a producer with the travel limited line of authority to act as a designated licensed responsible person (DLRP) who is responsible for the business entity's compliance with the laws of this state.

((2)) (3) The requirements of this chapter for passing an insurance producer examination and for prelicensing and continuing insurance education do not apply to insurance producers that transact only the limited line of travel insurance.

(4) A travel retailer may offer and disseminate travel insurance on behalf of and under a travel insurance producer business entity license only if the travel insurance producer holds a business entity license, and:

(a) Clearly identifies the licensed business entity as the licensed producer on marketing materials and fulfillment packages distributed by travel retailers to customers, identification shall include the entity's name and contact information;

(b) Keeps a register of each travel retailer that offers travel insurance on the licensed business entity's behalf. The register must include the name and contact information of the travel retailer and an officer or person who directs or controls the travel retailer's operations, and the travel retailer's federal

Employer Identification Number. The licensed business entity must also certify that the travel retailer registered complies with United States Code, Title 18, section 1033. The licensed business entity must submit the register within thirty days upon request by the commissioner:

(c) Complies with the fingerprinting requirements applicable to insurance producers in the resident state of the business entity;

(d) Has paid all applicable insurance producer licensing fees as set forth in Washington state law; and

(e) Requires each employee whose duties include offering and disseminating travel insurance to receive a program of instruction or training, which is subject to review by the commissioner.

(5) An employee of a travel retailer may sell or offer travel insurance without being individually licensed as an insurance producer if the travel retailer is licensed and acting in compliance with this chapter, and the employees are under the supervision of a licensed travel producer.

(6) A travel retailer whose activities, and those of its employees, are limited to offering and disseminating travel insurance on behalf of and under the direction of a licensed business entity meeting the conditions stated in this section, is authorized to do so, upon registration by the licensed business entity.

(7) As the insurer designee, the travel insurance producer is responsible for the acts and supervision of the travel retailer.

#### WSR 13-02-090

#### WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSED RULES HORSE RACING COMMISSION

[Filed January 2, 2013, 8:21 a.m.]

The Washington horse racing commission would like to withdraw from publication our proposed rule making (CR-102), WSR 12-24-023, filed on November 28, 2012.

Douglas L. Moore  
Deputy Secretary

#### WSR 13-02-094

#### PROPOSED RULES DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE

[Filed January 2, 2013, 9:51 a.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-18-008 on August 23, 2012.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Rules for recreational marine and freshwater salmon fishing: WAC 220-55-220 Two-pole endorsement, 220-56-235 Possession limits—Bottomfish, 220-56-240 Daily limits forage fish and other food fish not otherwise provided for, 220-56-250 Lingcod—Areas and seasons, 220-56-265 Forage fish—Lawful gear, 220-56-282 Sturgeon—Areas, seasons, limits and unlawful acts, 220-56-310 Shellfish—Daily limits, and 232-

28-619 Washington food fish and game fish—Freshwater exceptions to statewide rules.

Hearing Location(s): Natural Resources Building, Room 172, 1111 Washington Street S.E., Olympia, WA 98504, on February 8, 2013, at 8:30 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: On or after March 1, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Lori Preuss, Rules Coordinator, 600 Capitol Way North, Olympia, WA 98501-1091, e-mail Lori.Preuss@dfw.wa.gov, fax (360) 902-2155, by January 29, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Tami Lininger by January 30, 2013, TTY (360) 902-2207 or (360) 902-2267.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: The purpose of this proposal is to make necessary adjustments to recreational fishing rules based on department data, public feedback, and changes in fish and shellfish populations. The department makes similar adjustments to recreational rules annually, to maximize conservation and recreational-fishing opportunity.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: WAC 220-55-220 Two-pole endorsement, these amendments will provide more opportunity for recreational fishing, particularly in quality waters.

WAC 220-56-235 Possession limits, these changes are for conservation of certain shark species and bottomfish such as cabezon, rockfish, and lingcod.

WAC 220-56-240 Daily limits forage fish and other food fish not otherwise provided for, these changes are to provide opportunity to fish for anchovy and sardine and to conserve yellowfin, skipjack, and northern bluefin tuna.

WAC 220-56-250 Lingcod—Areas and seasons, this amendment is to reduce the lingcod season in Marine Area 4B for conservation.

WAC 220-56-265 Forage fish—Lawful gear, this change will allow the use of cast-net gear to collect anchovy and sardines, to provide greater fishing opportunity.

WAC 220-56-310 Shellfish—Daily limits, this amendment will increase the daily harvest quota for spot shrimp, to provide greater fishing opportunity.

WAC 220-56-282 Sturgeon—Areas, seasons, limits and unlawful acts, these changes will limit the annual harvest of sturgeon per person to two per year, statewide, for conservation purposes.

WAC 232-28-619 Washington food fish and game fish—Freshwater exceptions to statewide rules, these changes are for housekeeping and conservation and will provide greater fishing opportunity.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 77.04.012, 77.04.055, and 77.12.047.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 77.04.012, 77.04.-055, and 77.12.047.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, as to Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, and Fiscal Matters: Dates related to these proposed rules:

January 29, 2013, deadline for the public to submit written comments on the rules.

March 1-2, 2013, commission meeting: Staff will ask the commission to adopt the rules.

Name of Proponent: Washington department of fish and wildlife, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Charmane Ashbrook, 1111 Washington Street, Olympia, (360) 902-2672; Implementation: Jim Scott, 1111 Washington Street, Olympia, (360) 902-2736; and Enforcement: Bruce Bjork, 1111 Washington Street, Olympia, (360) 902-2373.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. The proposed rule amendments do not affect small business; i.e., there is no direct regulation of small business. The rules apply to recreational fishers.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. These proposals do not affect hydraulics.

January 2, 2013

Joanna M. Eide

Administrative Regulations Analyst

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending Order 12-190, filed 8/23/12, effective 9/23/12)

**WAC 220-55-220 Two-pole endorsement.** Anglers (~~in possession of~~) possessing a valid two-pole endorsement may fish with two lines in all lakes and ponds open to fishing, with the following exceptions:

Water Body	County	
Para-juvenile Lake	Adams	
<del>((Quail Lake</del>	<del>Adams))</del>	
Headgate Pond	Asotin	
Columbia Park Pond	Benton	
Blackbird Island Pond	Chelan	
Lake Wenatchee	Chelan	
Aldwell Lake	Clallam	
Beaver Lake	Clallam	
Carrie Blake Pond	Clallam	
Dickey Lake	Clallam	
Lake Pleasant	Clallam	
Lincoln Pond	Clallam	
Sutherland Lake	Clallam	
Vancouver Lake	Clark	Includes all other waters west of Burlington-Northern Railroad from Columbia River drawbridge near Vancouver downstream to Lewis River
Big Four Lake	Columbia	
Dayton Pond	Columbia	
Blue Lake	Cowlitz	
Castle Lake	Cowlitz	
Coldwater Lake	Cowlitz	
Lewis River Power Canal	Cowlitz	Includes old Lewis River streambed between Swift No. 1 powerhouse and Swift No. 2 powerhouse
Merrill Lake	Cowlitz	
Silver Lake	Cowlitz	
<del>((Grimes Lake</del>	<del>Douglas))</del>	

Water Body	County	
Pit Lake	Douglas	
<del>((Long Lake</del>	<del>Ferry</del>	
<del>Beda Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Brookies Lakes</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Dry Falls Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Dusty Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Homestead Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Leniee Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Lenore Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Merry Lake</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>Nunnally Lake</del>	<del>Grant))</del>	
<del>Ping Pond</del>	<del>Grant</del>	
<del>((Damon Lake</del>	<del>Grays Harbor))</del>	
Mill Creek Pond	Grays Harbor	
<del>((Promised Land Pond</del>	<del>Grays Harbor))</del>	
Quigg Lake	Grays Harbor	Located at Friends Landing near Montesano
<del>((Shye Lake</del>	<del>Grays Harbor))</del>	
Vance Creek Pond #1	Grays Harbor	
<del>((Vance Creek Pond #2</del>	<del>Grays Harbor</del>	
Wynoochee Reservoir	Grays Harbor	
<del>Anderson Lake</del>	<del>Jefferson))</del>	
Gibbs Lake	Jefferson	
Horseshoe Lake	Jefferson	
Teal Lake	Jefferson	
Lake Sammamish	King	
Lake Union	King	
Lake Washington	King	Including that portion of Sammamish River from 68th Ave. NE bridge downstream
Lake Washington Ship Canal	King	(Including Lake Union, Portage Bay, and Salmon Bay) Waters east of a north-south line 400' west of the Chittenden Locks to the Montlake Bridge
Mill Pond	King	Auburn
Old Fishing Hole Pond	King	Kent
Portage Bay	King	
<del>((Rattlesnake Lake</del>	<del>King</del>	
<del>Ravensdale Lake</del>	<del>King))</del>	
Salmon Bay	King	
Swans Mill Pond	King	
Koeneman Lake	Kitsap	Formerly Fern Lake
<del>((Easton Lake</del>	<del>Kittitas))</del>	
Kachess Lake	Kittitas	
Keechelus Lake	Kittitas	
Kiwanis Pond	Kittitas	
Naneum Pond	Kittitas	
Cowlitz Falls Reservoir	Lewis	
<del>((Fort Borst Park Pond</del>	<del>Lewis))</del>	
Mayfield Lake	Lewis	Mayfield Dam to Mossyrock Dam
Packwood Lake	Lewis	

Water Body	County
Scanewa Lake	Lewis
Walupt Lake	Lewis
Willame Lake	Lewis
((Coffeepot Lake	Lincoln))
Cady Lake	Mason
Cushman Reservoir	Mason
Prices Lake	Mason
Stump Lake	Mason
((Aeneas Lake	Okanogan
Big Twin Lake	Okanogan
Black Lake	Okanogan
Blue Lake	Okanogan
Blue Lake	Okanogan
Campbell Lake	Okanogan
Chopaka Lake	Okanogan
Cougar Lake	Okanogan
Davis Lake	Okanogan
Ell Lake	Okanogan
Green Lake	Okanogan
Green Lake	Okanogan
Hidden Lake	Okanogan
Rat Lake	Okanogan))
Silvernail Lake	Okanogan
Cases Pond	Pacific
((Middle Nemah Pond	Pacific
Mooses Pond	Pacific
Owens Pond	Pacific))
South Bend Mill Pond	Pacific
((Browns Lake	Pend Oreille
Muskegon Lake	Pend Oreille))
Bradley Lake	Pierce
De Coursey Pond	Pierce
Ohop Lake	Pierce
Tanwax Lake	Pierce
Wapato Lake	Pierce
Granite Lakes	Skagit
Northern State Hospital Pond	Skagit
Pass Lake	Skagit
Vogler Lake	Skagit
Swift Reservoir	Skamania
Ebey Lake	Snohomish
Fortson Mill Pond #2	Snohomish
Jennings Park Pond	Snohomish
Monte Cristo Lake	Snohomish
North Gissburg Pond	Snohomish
Spada Lake	Snohomish
((Amber Lake	Spokane))
Bear Lake	Spokane
((Medical Lake	Spokane))
North Silver Lake	Spokane
((Bayley Lake	Stevens))
Lucky Duck Pond	Stevens
((McDowell Lake	Stevens
Rigley Lake	Stevens

Water Body	County
Cowlitz Falls Reservoir	Thurston))
Kennedy Creek Pond	Thurston
Long's Pond	Thurston
((McLane Creek Ponds	Thurston))
Munn Lake	Thurston
Jefferson Park Pond	Walla Walla
Lions Park Pond	Walla Walla
Diablo Lake	Whatcom
Gorge Lake	Whatcom
Lake Whatcom	Whatcom
Ross Lake	Whatcom
Squalicum Lake	Whatcom
Garfield Juvenile Pond	Whitman
Bumping Lake	Yakima
Clear Lake	Yakima
Leech Lake	Yakima
Mud Lake	Yakima
Myron Lake	Yakima
Rimrock Lake	Yakima
Sarge Hubbard Park Pond	Yakima
Yakima Sportsmen's Park Ponds	Yakima

Note: The two-pole endorsement is not valid in the Columbia and Snake rivers except as noted in Lake Roosevelt and Rufus Woods Lake.

Anglers ((in possession of)) possessing a valid two-pole endorsement may ((also)) fish with two lines in the following river sections:

River	County	Section
Spokane	Spokane and Stevens	Lower Spokane River from mouth (SR 25 bridge) to 400' below Little Falls Dam
Pend Oreille	Pend Oreille	From Priest Rapids Dam to Wanapum Dam
Columbia		From Wanapum Dam to Wells Dam
		From Wells Dam to Highway 173 Bridge at Brewster
		From Highway 173 Bridge at Brewster to Chief Joseph Dam
Cowlitz River	Lewis	Lexington Bridge Drive in Kelso upstream to the Highway 505 Bridge in Toledo
Lewis	Clark/Skamania	From mouth to Colvin Creek
Wind	Skamania	Mouth to Burlington Northern Railroad Bridge

Anglers ((in possession of)) possessing a valid two-pole endorsement may ((also)) fish with two lines in the following marine areas:

Description	Marine Area
Willapa	2-1. East of a line from Cape Shoalwater to Ledbetter Point
Port Susan and Port Gardner	Tulalip Terminal Area

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending Order 12-17, filed 2/16/12, effective 3/18/12)

**WAC 220-56-235 Possession limits—Bottomfish.** It is unlawful to fish for, retain, or possess sixgill, sevengill, or thresher sharks. It is unlawful for any person to take in any day more than the following quantities of bottomfish for personal use. The possession limit at any time ~~((shall))~~ may not exceed the equivalent of two daily limits in fresh, frozen or processed form. Unless otherwise provided bottomfish fishing is open the entire year.

(1) Coastal (Catch Record Card Areas 1 through 4)~~((—))~~; Limit 12 fish ((in the aggregate)) total, except limit 10 fish total east of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line((—10 fish in the aggregate)), of all species and species groups of bottomfish, which may include no more than:

(a) Lingcod~~((—))~~; 2 fish~~((+))~~; Minimum length is 22 inches in Catch Record Card Areas 1 through (3) 4.

~~((ii))~~ Minimum length 24 inches in Catch Record Card Area 4.)

(b) Rockfish~~((—))~~; 10 fish. Release all canary and yelloweye rockfish.

(i) In Marine Area 4 east of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line: 6 fish. Only black or blue rockfish may be retained.

(ii) In Marine Area 4 west of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line: Only black, blue, or yellowtail rockfish may be retained.

(c) Wolf-eel~~((—))~~; 0 fish from Catch Record Card Area 4.

(d) Cabezon~~((—))~~; 2 fish. In Marine Area 4, the minimum size limit is 18 inches.

(2) Inner Puget Sound (Catch Record Card Areas 5 through 13):

(a) Catch Record Card Areas 5 and 6~~((—))~~; 15 fish ~~((in the aggregate))~~ total of all species and species groups of bottomfish, which may include no more than:

Rockfish in Marine Area 5 except 1 fish May 1 through September 30. Only black or blue rockfish may be retained.

in Marine Area 5 west of Slip Point 3 fish. Only black or blue rockfish may be retained.

in Marine Area 6. 0 fish

Surfperch 10 fish

Pacific cod 2 fish

Pollock 2 fish

Flatfish (except halibut) 15 fish

Lingcod 1 fish

Wolf-eel 0 fish

Cabezon 2 fish

Pacific hake 2 fish

(b) Catch Record Card Area 7~~((—))~~; 15 fish ~~((in the aggregate))~~ total of all species of bottomfish, which may include no more than:

Rockfish 0 fish

Surfperch 10 fish

Pacific cod 2 fish

Flatfish (except halibut) 15 fish

Lingcod 1 fish

Wolf-eel 0 fish

Cabezon 2 fish

Pollock 2 fish

Pacific hake 2 fish

(c) Catch Record Card Areas 8-1 through 11 and 13~~((—))~~; 15 fish ~~((in the aggregate))~~ total of all species and species groups of bottomfish, which may include no more than:

Rockfish 0 fish

Surfperch 10 fish

Pacific cod 0 fish

Pollock 0 fish

Flatfish (except halibut) 15 fish

Lingcod 1 fish

Wolf-eel 0 fish

Cabezon 2 fish

Pacific hake 0 fish

(d) Catch Area 12: Closed.

(e) It is unlawful to possess lingcod taken by angling ~~((less than))~~ that are under 26 inches in length or ~~((greater than))~~ over 36 inches in length. It is unlawful to possess lingcod taken by spear fishing ~~((greater than))~~ that are over 36 inches in length.

~~((f))~~ (It is unlawful to retain cabezon taken from Catch Record Card Areas 5 through 11 and 13 from December 1 through April 30.

~~((g))~~ It is unlawful to retain six-gill shark taken from Catch Record Card Areas 5 through 13.

~~((h))~~ In Marine Areas 5 through 11 and 13, the minimum size limit for cabezon is 18 inches. All cabezon must be released in Catch Record Card Areas 5 through 11 and 13 from December 1 through April 30.

~~((g))~~ In Catch Record Card Area 5, the daily limit for rockfish is the first legal rockfish caught, except west of Slip Point the daily limit for rockfish is the first three legal rockfish caught. Only black or blue rockfish may be retained. After the daily limit of rockfish is caught, all subsequent rockfish must be released.

~~((h))~~ (h) In Catch Record Card Area 5, it is unlawful to take rockfish by spear fishing except when this area is open to spear fishing for lingcod.

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending Order 11-184, filed 8/3/11, effective 9/3/11)

**WAC 220-56-240 Daily limits forage fish and other food fish not otherwise provided for.** It is unlawful for any

person to retain more than the following quantities and sizes of food fish taken for personal use. Unless otherwise provided, other food fish fishing is open the entire year:

(1) Forage fish:

(a) Catch Record Card Areas 5 through 13: 10 pounds ~~((in the aggregate))~~ total. The possession limit is two daily limits in fresh form. Additional forage fish may be possessed in frozen or processed form~~((-))~~;

(b) Catch Record Card Areas 1 through 4, 2.1 (Willapa Bay) and 2.2 (Grays Harbor), excluding sardines and anchovies: 10 pounds total;

(c) Catch Record Card Areas 1 through 4, 2.1 (Willapa Bay) and 2.2 (Grays Harbor), sardines and anchovies: 25 pounds total;

(d) The possession limit is two daily limits in fresh form. Additional forage fish may be possessed in frozen or processed form.

(2) Shiner perch: Daily limit 15 fish.

(3) All other marine food fish not otherwise provided for in this chapter except albacore~~((, yellowfin, skipjack, and northern bluefin))~~ tuna and all mackerel: Daily limit two fish.

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending Order 12-28, filed 3/29/12, effective 4/29/12)

**WAC 220-56-250 Lingcod—Areas and seasons.** It is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess lingcod for personal use except during the following seasons and areas:

(1) Coastal area:

(a) Catch Record Card Areas 1 through 3: Open the Saturday closest to March 15, through the Saturday closest to October 15~~((;))~~;

(b) Catch Record Card Area 4 west of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line: Open April 16 through October 15~~((;))~~ or the Saturday closest to October 15 if that Saturday comes before October 15, whichever is earlier; and

(c) Catch Record Card Area 4 east of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line: ~~((April 16 through October))~~ Open May 1 through June 15.

(d) It is unlawful to fish for, retain, or possess lingcod in Catch Record Card Area 1 seaward of a line extending from 46°38.17'N. lat., 124°21.00'W. long. to 46°25.00'N. lat., 124°21.00'W. long. year-round.

(e) It is unlawful to fish for, retain, or possess lingcod in Catch Record Card Area 2 seaward of a line extending from 47°31.70'N. lat., 124°45.00'W. long. south to 46°38.17'N. lat., 124°30.00'W. long. year-round, except that lingcod may be taken, retained and possessed seaward of the line on days open during the primary halibut season.

(2) Catch Record Card Areas 5 through 13: Open May 1 through June 15 by angling, and May 21 through June 15 by spear fishing.

**AMENDATORY SECTION** (Amending Order 10-64, filed 3/19/10, effective 5/1/10)

**WAC 220-56-310 Shellfish—Daily limits.** It is unlawful for any one person to take ~~((in any one day for personal use))~~ more than the following quantities and sizes of shellfish for personal use in any one day:

(1) Cockles, borers and clams in the shell, other than razor clams, geoduck clams and horse clams, 40 clams ~~((in the aggregate))~~ total, or 10 pounds, whichever is achieved first except:

(a) In Skagit Bay, east of a line projected from Browns Point to Swinomish Slough entrance~~((—))~~; Diggers may additionally retain up to 20 pounds of eastern softshell clams in the shell.

(b) In Willapa Bay~~((—))~~; Diggers may additionally retain up to ~~((twenty-four))~~ 24 cockles.

(2) Razor clams: 15 clams.

(3) Geoduck clams: 3 clams.

(4) Horse clams: 7 clams.

(5) Oysters: 18 oysters, shucked and the shells left on the beach. Minimum size before shucking two and one-half inches along the longest dimension of the shell.

(6) Rock scallops: 6 scallops.

(7) Weathervane scallops: 12 scallops (over 4 inches).

(8) Spiny and pink scallops: 10 pounds or 5 quarts in the shell, in the aggregate.

(9) Shrimp:

(a) In Areas 1~~((-))~~ through 3 and Area 4 west of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line~~((—))~~; Total weight ~~((+0))~~ 25 pounds, maximum ~~((80))~~ 200 spot shrimp as part of the ~~((+0))~~ 25-pound limit.

(b) In Area 4 east of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line and Areas 5~~((-))~~ through 13~~((—))~~; First Saturday in May through May 31, daily limit 80 shrimp~~((-))~~; during all other open periods total weight 10 pounds, maximum 80 spot shrimp as part of the 10-pound limit.

(10) Octopus: 1 octopus.

(11) Pinto abalone: Closed statewide.

(12) Crawfish: 10 pounds in the shell. Minimum size is 3 1/4 inches from tip of rostrum to tip of tail. Female crawfish with eggs or young attached to the abdomen must be released immediately.

(13) Squid other than Humboldt squid: 10 pounds or 5 quarts. In addition a person may retain up to 5 Humboldt squid per day.

(14) Sea cucumbers: 25 sea cucumbers.

(15) Red sea urchins: 18 sea urchins.

(16) Purple sea urchins: 18 sea urchins.

(17) Green sea urchins: 36 sea urchins.

(18) Dungeness crabs:

(a) In Area 1 except when fishing from the north jetty of the Columbia River and Areas 2, 3, and 4 west of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line - 6 male crabs.

(b) In Area 4 east of the Bonilla-Tatoosh line, and Areas 5, 6, 7, 8-1, 8-2, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 - 5 male crabs.

(c) In the Columbia River upstream of a line from the outermost end of the north jetty to the exposed end of the south jetty, or when fishing from the north jetty of the Columbia River - 12 male crabs.

(19) Red rock crabs: 6 crabs.

(20) Mussels: 10 pounds in the shell, in the aggregate.

(21) Goose barnacles: 10 pounds of whole barnacles or 5 pounds of barnacle stalks.

(22) Ghost and mud shrimp: 10 dozen.

(23) King and box crab: Closed statewide.

(24) Tanner crabs: 6 crabs.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 10-64, filed 3/19/10, effective 5/1/10)

**WAC 220-56-265 Forage fish—Lawful gear.** (1) It ~~((shall be))~~ is unlawful to take, fish for ~~((and)), or~~ possess herring, candlefish, ~~((pilehards))~~ sardines, anchovies ~~((and))~~ or smelt, except eulachon smelt, taken for personal use except:

(a) With hand dip net gear not exceeding 36 inches across the bag frame ~~((having))~~ with a maximum mesh size of ~~((five eighths))~~ 5/8 inch stretched mesh size ~~((, and))~~; or

(b) Forage fish jigger gear ~~((having))~~ with not more than ~~((three))~~ 3 treble or ~~((nine))~~ 9 single hooks;

(c) It is permissible to take, fish for, or possess 25 pounds of anchovies or sardines in the aggregate taken by dip net, cast net, angling, or jigs in Marine Areas 1 through 4, Willapa Bay and Grays Harbor.

(2) It is unlawful to take eulachon smelt.

(3) It is unlawful to use a dip bag net to take forage fish unless the operator of the net holds the handle at all times the netting is in the water.

~~((3))~~ (4) It is unlawful to operate a dip bag net to harvest forage fish from a vessel under power, or to use more than one forage fish dip net at a time.

~~((4))~~ (5) Only persons with ~~((a reduced fee license or))~~ WDFW disability status and a designated harvest companion card may use a hand-operated gate on a dip net while fishing for forage fish.

~~((5))~~ (6) Forage fish jigger gear hooks may not have a gap between the shank and the point exceeding 3/8 inch.

~~((6))~~ (7) Cast net must be in immediate control of the fisher. Mesh size is limited to 1 inch maximum, no larger than 10 feet in diameter. Fisher must have retrieval cord in their hand at all times when the cast net is deployed.

(8) Use of gear in violation of this section is an infraction, punishable under RCW 77.15.160.

~~((7))~~ (9) It is unlawful to possess forage fish taken with gear in violation of the provisions of this section. Possession of forage fish while using gear in violation of the provisions of this section is a rebuttable presumption that the forage fish were taken with such gear. Violation of this subsection is punishable under RCW 77.15.380 Unlawful recreational fishing in the second degree—Penalty, unless the forage fish are taken in the amounts or manner to constitute a violation of RCW 77.15.370 Unlawful recreational fishing in the first degree—Penalty.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 12-190, filed 8/23/12, effective 9/23/12)

**WAC 220-56-282 Sturgeon—Areas, seasons, limits and unlawful acts.** (1) It is unlawful to retain green sturgeon.

(2) It is ~~((permissible))~~ unlawful to retain white sturgeon ~~((in Puget Sound and all Puget Sound tributaries from June 1 through June 30 and September 1 through October 15, except that in the Union River, white sturgeon may only be retained from June 1 through June 30.~~

~~((3))~~ except in the following areas:

(a) Columbia River and its tributaries from Bonneville Dam to Priest Rapids Dam; and

(b) The Snake River and its tributaries from the Confluence Protection Area to the Lower Granite Dam.

(3) The following limits and requirements apply in areas where it is permissible to retain sturgeon:

(a) The daily limit is one white sturgeon;

(b) The possession limit is 2 daily limits of fresh, frozen, or processed white sturgeon;

(c) An annual personal-use limit of two white sturgeon from April 1 through March 31 applies, regardless of where the angler takes the sturgeon;

(d) Once the annual limit of white sturgeon is reached, it is permissible to continue to catch and release sturgeon in the mainstem Columbia River and its tributaries downstream from where the river forms the common boundary between Oregon and Washington, so long as the angler releases the sturgeon immediately;

(e) It is unlawful to possess sturgeon eggs in the field without retaining the intact carcass from which the eggs have been removed;

(f) It is unlawful to fail to return undersize or oversize sturgeon to the river immediately.

(i) The maximum fork length is 54 inches.

(ii) The minimum fork length is 38 inches, except on the mainstem Columbia and its tributaries from The Dalles Dam to Priest Rapids Dam and the Snake River from the Confluence Protection Area to Lower Granite Dam where the minimum fork length is 43 inches.

(4) It is unlawful to fish for sturgeon in the Columbia River and tributaries upstream of Chief Joseph Dam.

(5) For all saltwater waterways, ~~((excluding))~~ except Puget Sound and ~~((Puget Sound))~~ its tributaries, it is permissible to ~~((fish for))~~ catch and release white sturgeon the entire year. However, for freshwater waterways, it is permissible to ~~((fish for))~~ catch and release white sturgeon only when the season is open for salmon or game fish, unless otherwise provided.

~~((4))~~ The daily limit is one white sturgeon, with the following size restrictions:

(a) Minimum size is 43 inches in fork length in the Columbia River and tributaries upstream from The Dalles Dam.

(b) Minimum size is 38 inches in fork length in all other state waters.

(c) Maximum size is 54 inches in fork length.

(5) Once the daily limit has been retained, it is permissible to continue to fish for sturgeon in the mainstem of the Columbia River downstream from where the river forms the boundary between Oregon and Washington, provided that all subsequent sturgeon are released immediately.

(6) The possession limit is two daily limits of fresh, frozen, or processed white sturgeon.

(7) There is an annual personal-use limit of five white sturgeon from April 1 through March 31, regardless of where the sturgeon were taken. After the annual limit of sturgeon has been taken, it is permissible to continue to fish for white sturgeon in the mainstem Columbia River downstream from where the river forms the common boundary between Oregon and Washington, provided that all subsequent sturgeon are released immediately.

~~(8))~~ (6) It is permissible to catch and release sturgeon year-round in the following waters:

(a) The mainstem Columbia River and its tributaries downstream from where the river forms the boundary between Oregon and Washington:

(b) The mainstem Columbia and its tributaries from Priest Rapids Dam to Chief Joseph Dam;

(c) The Snake River and tributaries from Lower Granite Dam upstream.

(7) It is unlawful to fish for sturgeon with terminal gear other than bait and one single-point barbless hook. It is permissible to use artificial scent with bait when fishing for white sturgeon.

~~((9))~~ (8) It is unlawful to fish for or possess sturgeon ~~((taken for personal use))~~ from freshwater, except the Chehalis River, from one hour after official sunset to one hour before official sunrise.

~~((10))~~ ~~It is unlawful to possess in the field sturgeon eggs without having retained the intact carcass of the fish from which the eggs have been removed.~~

~~(11))~~ (9) It is unlawful to use a gaff or other fish landing aid that penetrates the fish while restraining, handling, or landing a sturgeon.

~~((12))~~ ~~It is unlawful to fail to immediately return to the water any undersize or oversize sturgeon.~~

~~(13))~~ (10) Violation of this section is an infraction, punishable under RCW 77.15.160, unless the person has harvested sturgeon. If the person has harvested sturgeon, the violation is punishable under RCW 77.15.380, Unlawful recreational fishing in the second degree—Penalty, unless the sturgeon are taken in the amounts or manner to constitute a violation of RCW 77.15.370, Unlawful recreational fishing in the first degree—Penalty.

~~((14))~~ (11) It is unlawful to possess sturgeon taken with gear in violation of the provisions of this section. Possession of sturgeon while using gear in violation of the provisions of this section is a rebuttable presumption that the sturgeon were taken with such gear. Possession of such sturgeon is punishable under RCW 77.15.380, Unlawful recreational fishing in the second degree—Penalty, unless the sturgeon are taken in the amounts or manner to constitute a violation of RCW 77.15.370, Unlawful recreational fishing in the first degree—Penalty.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 12-190, filed 8/23/12, effective 9/23/12)

**WAC 232-28-619 Washington food fish and game fish—Freshwater exceptions to statewide rules.** (1) All freshwater streams and lakes not listed as open for salmon fishing are closed to fishing for salmon.

(2) Waters listed as open during a specific date range that do not reference any particular species are open during the date range for all game fish only.

(3) Rivers, streams, and beaver ponds that drain into Puget Sound, the Strait of Juan de Fuca, or the Pacific Ocean (excluding the Columbia River) are closed to fishing unless listed as open.

(4) The limits listed below are daily limits, unless otherwise provided.

(5) Within Puget Sound, beaver ponds located within or adjoining streams that are listed as open to trout and other game fish follow the same rules and regulations as the stream, except as otherwise provided.

(6) As used in this section, "lead jig" means a lure consisting of a hook permanently or temporarily attached directly to a lead weight by any method. "Lead weight" means material constructed of lead and applied to a fishing line or lure and designed to help keep the hook, bait, or lure underwater.

~~((7))~~ (7)(a) Violation of this section is an infraction, punishable under RCW 77.15.160, unless the person has harvested fish. If the person has harvested fish, the violation is punishable under RCW 77.15.380, Unlawful recreational fishing in the second degree—Penalty, unless the fish are taken in the amounts or manner to constitute a violation of RCW 77.15.370, Unlawful recreational fishing in the first degree—Penalty.

(b) Freshwater terminal gear restrictions: In all waters with freshwater terminal gear restrictions, including, but not limited to, selective gear rules, whitefish gear rules, single-point barbless hooks required, fly-fishing only, and anti-snagging rules, violation of the gear rules is an infraction, punishable under RCW 77.15.160. It is unlawful to possess fish taken with gear in violation of the freshwater terminal gear restrictions. Possession of fish while using gear in violation of the freshwater terminal gear restrictions is a rebuttable presumption that the fish were taken with such gear. Possession of such fish is punishable under RCW 77.15.380, Unlawful recreational fishing in the second degree, unless the fish are taken in the amounts or manner to constitute a violation of RCW 77.15.370, Unlawful recreational fishing in the first degree.

~~((4))~~ (8) County freshwater exceptions to statewide rules:

(a) Adams and Grant counties: All seasons in specific freshwater exceptions to statewide rules apply to inlet and outlet streams of named lakes in Grant and Adams counties.

(b) Adams, Douglas, Franklin, Grant, and Okanogan counties, except Zosel Dam (Okanogan River): Permissible to fish to base of all dams.

(c) Ferry and Lincoln counties: Except those tributaries listed under specific water exceptions to statewide rules, all tributaries to Lake Roosevelt between Grand Coulee Dam and the State Highway 25 Bridge at Northport except Barnaby and Nancy creeks: Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no minimum size.

(d) Kitsap County and Mason County on Tahuya Peninsula west of Belfair-Bremerton Highway (S.R. 3): Beaver ponds: Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: No minimum length.

(e) Kitsap County and Mason County east of Belfair-Bremerton Highway (S.R. 3): Beaver ponds: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: No minimum length.

~~((5))~~ ~~Rivers, streams, and beaver ponds that drain into Puget Sound, the Strait of Juan de Fuca, or the Pacific Ocean (excluding the Columbia River) are closed to fishing unless listed as open below.~~



(6)) (9) Specific freshwater exceptions to statewide rules:

Aberdeen Lake (Grays Harbor County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: No more than two over 15 inches in length may be retained per day.

Abernathy Creek (Cowlitz County):

From mouth to a point five hundred feet downstream from salmon hatchery: The first Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through March 15 season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

From Abernathy falls to posted markers five hundred feet downstream from salmon hatchery: Closed waters.

Aeneas Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit one.

Ahtanum Creek, including North and Middle Forks (Yakima County): Selective gear rules. North Fork from Grey Rock Trailhead Bridge crossing to Shellneck Creek and Middle Fork from the A2000 Road Bridge at Tree Phones Campground downstream to the A2000 Spur Road Bridge in NE Section 34: Closed waters.

Alder Creek (Cowlitz County): Closed waters.

Alder Creek (Pacific County) (Naselle River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31. Selective gear rules.

Alder Lake (Thurston County): Kokanee not included in trout daily limit. Kokanee daily limit 10. All tributaries: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

Aldrich Lake (Mason County): ~~((Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.))~~ Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31:

(1) Trout daily limit 5.

(2) No more than 2 trout over 14 inches in length may be retained.

Aldwell Lake (Clallam County): Closed waters.

Alexander Lake (Kitsap County): Closed waters.

Alkali Lake (Grant County): Crappie: Not more than five greater than eight inches in length. Bluegill: Not more than five greater than six inches in length.

All Creek (Skagit County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Alma Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Amon Creek (Benton County): Selective gear rules.

Alta Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Amber Lake (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length fourteen inches; release rainbow trout with a clipped adipose fin and a healed scar at the site of the clipped fin. Additional season October 1 through November 30 and March 1 through Friday before fourth Saturday in April. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

American Lake (Pierce County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee. Chumming permitted.

American River (Yakima County): ~~((Closed waters: From Highway 410 Bridge at river mile 5.4 to the Mesatchee Creek Trail crossing at river mile 15.8 July 16 through September 15. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Open first Saturday in June through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Closed waters from Highway 410 Bridge at river mile 5.4 to the Mesatchee Creek Trail crossing at river mile 15.8 from July 16 through September 15.

Anderson Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Anderson Creek (Whatcom County) (Nooksack River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Anderson Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. From September 1 through October 31, selective gear rules and trout: Release all trout.

Armstrong Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Asotin Creek, mainstem and forks (Asotin County): Closed to fishing for steelhead.

From SR 129 Bridge upstream to the forks: Permissible to fish up to base of Headgate Dam.

North Fork from mouth upstream to USFS boundary: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

North Fork from USFS boundary upstream and all other tributaries: Closed waters.

South Fork and tributaries: Closed waters.

Bacon Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Bacus Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

B.C. Mill Pond (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Badger Lake (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Bainbridge Island - All streams (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Baker Lake (Whatcom County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season, except closed waters in an area two hundred feet in radius around the pump discharge at the south end of the lake. Chumming permitted. Trout: Minimum length six inches and maximum length eighteen inches. Salmon: July 1 through September 4 season. Daily limit three sockeye only. Minimum length 18 inches.

Baker River (Skagit County): Mouth to Highway 20 Bridge: September 1 through October 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of the trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.

Highway 20 Bridge to Baker River fish barrier dam: Closed waters.

From fish barrier dam to headwaters, including all tributaries and their tributaries except Channel Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Banks Lake (Grant County): Chumming allowed. Perch: Daily limit twenty-five. Crappie: Daily limit 10, minimum size 9 inches in length.

Barnaby Slough (Skagit County): Closed waters.

Battle Ground Lake (Clark County): ~~((Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout 20 inches or greater in length may be retained.))~~

(1) Closed the Monday before Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving Day.

(2) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(3) No more than 2 trout 20 inches or greater in length may be retained.

Bay Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Bayley Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through July 4 season. Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit one, minimum length fourteen inches. Additional season, July 5 through October 31. Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. All species: Release all fish. Inlet stream: Closed waters.

Bear Creek (Clallam County) (Bogachiel River tributary): ~~((From mouth upstream: First))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Other game fish: Selective gear rules:))

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Bear Creek (Clallam County) (Sol Duc River tributary): ~~((From mouth upstream: First))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Other game fish: Selective gear rules:))

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Bear Creek (Yakima County): Tributary to South Fork Tieton River: From the mouth to the falls (approximately 3/4 mile): Closed waters.

Bear Lake (Spokane County): ~~((Juveniles, holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards, and licensed adults accompanied by a juvenile only.))~~ Open to juvenile anglers, licensed adults accompanied by a juvenile, and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

Bear River (Pacific County): The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 16 through November 30.

From mouth (Highway 101 Bridge) to Lime Quarry Road (approximately two river miles): All game fish: Release all fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: September 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult fish and of these no more than one may be a wild adult coho. Release chum and wild Chinook.

From the Lime Quarry Road upstream to the Longview Fiber Bridge: Selective gear rules. All game fish: Release all fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Beaver Creek (Clallam County) (Sol Duc River tributary):

(1) From the mouth upstream to Beaver Falls: ((First))

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules: Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(2) From Beaver Falls upstream to Beaver Lake: ((First)) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

Beaver Creek (Pierce County) (South Prairie Creek tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Beaver Creek (Thurston County)((:)) from the mouth to I-5: ~~((First))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules ((and)) apply.

(3) Night closure in effect. ((Trout: Minimum length 14 inches:))

(4) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Beaver Creek (tributary to Elochoman River) (Wahkiakum County): Closed waters.

Beaver Lake (Clallam County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Maximum size 12 inches in length.

Beaver Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited.

Beaver Lake (King County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than 2 over 15 inches in length.

Beda Lake (Grant County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one fish.

Beehive (Lake) Reservoir (Chelan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. July 5 through October 31, selective gear rules, and all species: Release all fish. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Bennington Lake (Mill Creek Reservoir) (Walla Walla County): Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Benson Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Bertrand Creek (Whatcom County) (Nooksack River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Big Bear Creek (tributary of Sammamish River) (Snohomish/King counties): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Big Beaver Creek (Whatcom County):

~~From one-quarter mile upstream of closed water markers on Ross Lake upstream including tributary streams, and beaver ponds that are tributary to Big Beaver Creek: July 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.~~ from 1/4 mile upstream of closed water markers on Ross Lake upstream, including tributary streams and beaver ponds:

(1) Open July 1 through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Catch and release only.

Big Beef Creek (Kitsap County): From Seabeck Highway Bridge to Lake Symington: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Closed waters August 1 through August 31: Waters within 100 feet of the Seabeck Highway NW Bridge. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

From Lake Symington upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules. Release all trout.

Big Creek (Grays Harbor County): First Saturday in June through last day in October season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Big Creek (Skagit County) (Suiattle River tributary): From TeePee falls to source: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Big Four Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: Daily limit two.

Big Lake (Skagit County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Big Meadow Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Big Mission Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Big Quilcene River (Jefferson County): See Quilcene River.

Big River (Clallam County): Outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ~~((season))~~, and January 1 through the last day of February. ~~((All species:))~~

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. ~~((Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))~~

(4) Trout:

(a) Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release kokanee.

Big Scandia Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Big Tiffany Lake (Okanogan County): Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Release all cutthroat.

Big Twin Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Bingham Creek (Mason County) (Satsop River tributary): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Bird Creek (Klickitat County): ~~((Trout: Daily limit five.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Trout daily limit 5.

Black Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Black Creek (Snohomish County) (South Fork Stillaguamish River tributary): ~~((Above the confluence of Black and Bear creeks. First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~  
Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 from the Bear Creek confluence upstream.

Blackjack Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Blackbird Island Pond (Chelan County): July 1 through September 30 season. Juveniles only.

Black Lake (Okanogan County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Black Lake (Pacific County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Black Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Black Lake (Thurston County): ~~((Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee. Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.))~~

(1) Crappie daily limit 10; minimum length 9 inches.

(2) Trout daily limit 5; no more than 2 trout over 14 inches in length may be retained.

Black Lake Ditch (Thurston County): From the confluence with Percival Creek upstream to Black Lake: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Black River (Grays Harbor/Thurston counties): ~~((First))~~

(1) From the mouth to State Highway 12:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 (season). ~~((From mouth to State Highway 12:))~~

(b) Selective gear rules ~~((Trout: Minimum length 14 inches))~~ apply.

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(2) From Highway 12 to bridge on 128th Ave. SW:

(a) Anti-snagging rule ~~((;))~~ applies.

(b) Night closure ~~((, and))~~ in effect.

(c) Barbless hooks are required. ~~((Trout minimum length 14 inches:))~~

(d) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through October 31; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(e) Salmon ~~((;))~~ open October 1 through ~~((November 30 season:))~~ January 31:

(i) From October 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit ~~((six fish of which only two may be adults))~~ 6. Only 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(ii) From December 1 through January 31 ~~((additional season:))~~:

(A) Daily limit ~~((six fish of which only two may be adults))~~ 6; only 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be ~~((a))~~ an adult wild coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(3) From ~~((Highway 12 to))~~ bridge on 128th Avenue SW (west of Littlerock) to Black Lake:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Blackman's Lake (Snohomish County): Trout: Daily limit 3.

Blockhouse Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Daily limit five.

Bloodgood Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Daily limit five.

Blooms Ditch (Thurston County) (Black River tributary) ~~((;))~~, from mouth to I-5: ~~((First))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 (season).

~~((Night closure and))~~ (2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Night closure in effect. ~~((Trout: Minimum length 14 inches:))~~

(4) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Blue Creek (Lewis County), from the mouth to Spencer Road: ~~((From mouth to Spencer Road: Closed waters except December 1 through December 31 season from mouth to posted sign at rearing pond outlet. Closed waters: Upstream from cable crossing to posted signs at fence. Anti-snagging rule and night closure. Only anglers who permanently use a wheelchair may fish from posted signs above rearing pond to posted signs approximately 40 feet downstream at fence including the rearing pond outlet. Trout: Daily limit five. Minimum size 12 inches no more than two fish over 20 inches. Release wild cutthroat.))~~

(1) From posted sign above rearing pond outlet to Spencer Road: Closed.

(2) Night closure in effect.

(3) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(4) Open June 1 through April 14 for trout only:

(a) Daily limit 5.

(b) Minimum size 12 inches; no more than 2 trout over 20 inches may be retained.

(c) Release wild cutthroat.

Blue Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Blue Lake (Cowlitz County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to

fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Blue Lake (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Blue Lake (near Sinlahekin) (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Blue Lake (near Wannacut Lake) (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Bobcat Creek and Ponds (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Bogachiel River (Clallam County):

(1) From mouth to Highway 101 Bridge:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(b) Trout:

(i) From the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From April 1 through April 30, trout minimum length 14 inches.

(iii) November 1 through last day in February, daily limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead.

(iv) February 16 through April 30, wild steelhead retention allowed.

(c) Salmon(=) open July 1 through November 30:

(i) From July 1 through August 31(=):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((fish of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(ii) From September 1 through November 30(=):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((fish. Up to two adults plus up to two additional adult hatchery coho may be retained)).

(B) Two salmon may be adults, plus 2 additional adult hatchery coho may be retained.

(2) From Highway 101 Bridge to Olympic National Park boundary: ((The))

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season. Unlawful)).

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. ((Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

Boise Creek (King County) (White River tributary): Upstream of Highway 410 crossing: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Bonaparte Creek (Okanogan County):

(1) Closed Waters from the mouth to the falls one mile upstream.

(2) From the falls upstream, including all tributaries not listed elsewhere in this section: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Bonaparte Lake (Okanogan County): Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis. Trout: No more than one over twenty inches in length may be retained.

Bone River (Pacific County): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Bosworth Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Boulder Creek and tributaries (Okanogan County): ((~~Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten, no minimum size. Release all cutthroat.~~))

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31, including tributaries not mentioned elsewhere within this section.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit 10; eastern brook trout do not count toward the daily trout limit.

(3) Release all cutthroat.

Boulder Creek (Skagit County) (Cascade River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Boulder River (Snohomish County) (NF Stillaguamish River tributary): ((~~Mouth to Boulder Falls. First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~))

~~From Boulder Falls upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.~~)

(1) From the mouth to Boulder Falls:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(2) From Boulder Falls upstream: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Bowman Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Daily limit five.

Box Canyon Creek (Kittitas County): ((~~From mouth to waterfall approximately 2 miles upstream (including the portion flowing through the dry lakebed): Closed waters. From waterfall approximately 2 miles upstream of mouth to USFS Road #4930 Bridge: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~))

(1) Closed waters from the mouth to the waterfall approximately 2 miles upstream, including the portion flowing through the dry lakebed.

(2) From the waterfall approximately 2 miles upstream of the mouth to the USFS Road #4930 Bridge: Selective gear rules apply.

Boxley Creek (North Bend) (King County): ~~Upstream from the falls located at approximately river mile 0.9 ((upstream: First))~~. Open the Saturday ((in June)) before Memorial Day through October 31 ((season)).

Boyle Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. The inlet and outlet streams to Boyle Lake are closed waters.

Bradley Lake (Pierce County): Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. May 15 through the last day of Free Fishing Weekend (as defined in WAC 220-55-160): Juveniles only.

Bridges Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. The inlet and outlet streams to Bridges Lake are closed waters.

Brookies Lake (Grant County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one fish.

Browns Creek (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Fly fishing only.))~~  
(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day until October 31.

(2) Fly fishing only.

Browns Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: No more than one fish greater than 11 inches in length may be retained.

Buck Creek (Skagit County) (Suiattle River tributary): From upstream boundary of Buck Creek campground to source: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Buck Lake (Kitsap County): ~~((Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.))~~

(1) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

(2) Trout daily limit 5; no more than 2 trout over 14 inches in length may be retained.

Buckskin Creek and tributaries (Yakima County): From mouth to the west boundary of Suntides Golf Course: Closed waters.

Bumping Lake (Reservoir) (Yakima County): Chumming permitted. Trout: Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit sixteen.

Bumping River (Yakima County): ~~((From mouth to Bumping Reservoir: Permissible to fish to base of Bumping Dam. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through October 31. Whitefish: Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.))~~

(1) It is permissible to fish up to the base of Bumping Dam.

(2) From the mouth to Bumping Reservoir:

(a) Open from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.

(3) From Bumping Lake upstream: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Bunker Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. All species: Selective gear rules.

Burbank Slough (Walla Walla County): ~~((Fishing from any floating device prohibited.))~~ It is unlawful to fish in the area east and north of Highway 12, except for the channel east of Highway 12 up to the Number 3 Pumping Station.

Burke Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Burley Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Butte Creek (Pacific County) (Smith River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All game fish: Selective gear rules.

Butter Creek (Lewis County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length ten inches.

Buttermilk Creek, mouth to confluence of East and West Forks (Okanogan County): Closed waters.

Buzzard Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit 1.

Cadet Creek (Snohomish County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Cady Lake (Mason County): Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. All species: Release all fish.

Cain Lake (Whatcom County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Calawah River (Clallam County):

(1) From the mouth to the Highway 101 Bridge:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season)).

(b) Trout: ((Minimum length fourteen inches.))

(i) From the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From April 1 through April 30, trout minimum length 14 inches.

(iii) From November 1 through the last day in February, the daily limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead.

(iv) From February 16 through April 30, it is permissible to retain wild steelhead ((retention allowed)).

(c) Salmon open July 1 through November 30:

(i) From July 1 through August 31(=):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((fish of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(ii) From September 1 through November 30(=):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((fish)).

(B) Up to two salmon may be adults, plus up to two additional hatchery coho may be retained.

(2) From the Highway 101 Bridge to forks: ((First))

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season. Unlawful)).

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. ((Trout: Minimum length of fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

Calawah River, North Fork (Clallam County): ((From mouth upstream:))

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through ((last day in) October ((season)) 31((. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Calawah River, South Fork (Clallam County)((=)), from the mouth to the Olympic National Park boundary:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Caldwell Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches.

Caliche Lakes, Lower, Upper and West (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

California Creek (Whatcom County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Calispell Creek (Calispell River) (Pend Oreille County):

(1) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(2) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

(3) From mouth to Calispell Lake: ((Year around season)) Open year-round.

(4) From Calispell Lake upstream to source:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Calispell Creek ((and)) tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit.))

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit ((ten)) is 10.

(3) Once the ((daily limit of) an angler has retained 2 trout other than eastern brook trout ((has been achieved)), the entire trout daily limit ((for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout)) has been taken.

Calligan Lake (King County): June 1 through October 31 season. All tributary streams, and the upper third of the outlet are closed waters. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Camas Slough: Waters of the Columbia River downstream from the mouth of the Washougal River, north of Lady Island, and downstream of the Highway 14 Bridge at the upstream end of Lady Island. Season: Open when the adjacent mainstem Columbia or Washougal rivers are open to fishing for salmon. All species: Anglers in possession of a valid two-pole endorsement may use up to two lines while fishing from August 1 through December 31. Daily limit same as most liberal regulation of either area, except for salmon, only hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho may be retained.

Camp Creek (Snohomish County) (Whitechuck River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Campbell Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Campbell Lake (Okanogan County): April 1 through August 31: Selective gear rules and all species: Release all fish. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Campbell Lake (Skagit County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Canyon Creek (Clark County): ((Trout: Daily limit five.))

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Trout daily limit 5.

Canyon Creek (Snohomish County) (Suiattle River tributary): ((First))

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

Canyon Creek (S.F. Stillaguamish River) (Snohomish County)((=)), from the mouth to the forks: ((The))

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Release all fish, except up to ((two)) 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Canyon Creek (Whatcom County) (North Fork Nooksack River): From Canyon Creek Road Bridge upstream including tributaries: ((First Saturday in June))

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 season.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

Capitol Lake (Thurston County): Closed to all fishing.

Carbon River (Pierce County): From its mouth to Voight Creek: September 1 through January 15 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches September 1 through November 30. December 1 through January 15 selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained. Salmon: Open September 1 through November 30. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 4 may be adult salmon and of these 4 fish, no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook. Release chum and wild adult Chinook salmon. Voight Creek to Highway 162 Bridge: November 1 through January 15: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Carlisle Lake (Lewis County): Fourth Saturday in April through last day in February season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Carl's Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Carney Lake (Pierce County):

(1) Open the fourth Saturday in April through June 30 and September 1 through November 30 ((seasons: Fishing)).

(2) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. ((Trout: Daily limit 5;))

(3) No more than ((two)) 2 trout over 14 inches in length may be retained ((except no size restriction for kokanee)).

(4) Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Carson Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Cascade Creek (San Juan County):

(1) Open from the mouth to Cascade Lake from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Daily limit 10 brook trout only; release all other fish.

Cascade Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Cascade Lake (San Juan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Cascade River (Skagit County):

(1) From the mouth to the Rockport-Cascade Road Bridge:

(a) Open June 1 through July 15 and September 16 through February 15 ((season: All species;)).

(i) Anti-snagging rule and night closure June 1 through July 15 and September 16 through November 30. ((Trout;))

(ii) Trout, except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout ((;)): Minimum length ((fourteen)) 14 inches. ((Legal))

(iii) It is permissible to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout with a minimum length of 20 inches as part of the trout daily limit ((minimum length twenty inches)).

(b) Salmon:

(i) Open June 1 through July 15. ((Daily limit))

(A) Up to 4 hatchery Chinook may be retained, ((of which no more than 2 may be adult)) only 2 hatchery Chinook may be adults.

(B) Release all other salmon.

(ii) Open September 16 through November 30 ((Daily limit)):

(A) Up to 4 coho salmon may be retained.

(B) Release all other salmon.

(2) From the Rockport-Cascade Road Bridge upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31 ((season)).

(b) Selective gear rules apply. ((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species;))

(c) Release all fish except up to ((two)) 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Cases Pond (Pacific County): Fourth Saturday in April through November 30 season. Juveniles only. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Cassidy Lake (Snohomish County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Castle Lake (Cowlitz County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one, minimum length sixteen inches.

Cattail Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Cavanaugh Creek (Whatcom County) and all tributaries: Upstream from where Cavanaugh Creek first flows into Whatcom County, 0.4 lineal miles from its confluence with the South Fork Nooksack River: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Cavanaugh Lake (Skagit County): Chumming permitted.

Cayada Creek (Pierce County)(Carbon River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Cedar Creek (Clallam County)((;)), outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout ((;)) minimum length ((fourteen)) 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Cedar Creek (tributary of N.F. Lewis) (Clark County): From mouth to Grist Mill Bridge: First Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through March 15 seasons. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. From the Grist Mill Bridge to 100 feet upstream of the falls: Closed waters. From 100 feet upstream of the falls upstream: The first Saturday in June



through August 31 season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Cedar Creek (Grays Harbor/Thurston counties) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Cedar Creek (Jefferson County)(~~(=)~~)outside Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout(~~(=)~~) minimum length 14 inches(~~(—Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)~~), except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Cedar Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Cedar Creek (Okanogan County): From mouth to Cedar Falls: Closed waters.

Cedar Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

Cedar Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Cedar River (King County): From mouth to Landsburg Road: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules and night closure. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout.

Cedar River (Pacific County): ~~((First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All game fish: Catch and release only.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Catch and release only.

Chain Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Release kokanee.

Chambers Creek (Pierce County): From the mouth (Burlington Northern Bridge) to markers 400 feet below the Boise-Cascade Dam (Pierce County): July 1 through November 15 season. Night closure and anti-snagging rule. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open only July 1 through November 15. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho.

From Boise-Cascade Dam to Steilacoom Lake: July 1 through October 31 season. Night closure and selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Chambers Lake (within Ft. Lewis Military Reservation) (Pierce County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout.

Channel Creek (Skagit County) (Baker River tributary): Open the first Saturday in June through ((September 15 season)) August 30.

Chaplain Creek (Snohomish County) (Sultan River tributary) ~~((and its tributaries including beaver ponds from above the waterfall at the mouth to the dam at Chapman Lake: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~: Waters above the falls to the dam at Chapman Lake, including tributaries and beaver ponds: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Chaplain Lake (Snohomish County): Closed.

Chapman Lake (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Chumming permitted. Trout: Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit ten.

Chehalis River (Grays Harbor County)(~~(=)~~)including all channels, sloughs, and interconnected waterways(~~(=)~~):

(1) From the mouth (Highway 101 Bridge in Aberdeen) to high bridge on Weyerhaeuser 1000 line (approximately 400 yards downstream from Roger Creek, south of Pe Ell):

(a) Single-point barbless hooks are required from August 16 through November 30(~~(—single-point barbless hooks required)~~).

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.)): trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon open May 1 through June 30 and September 16 through January 31:

(i) From May 1 through June 30, open from the mouth to Highway 6 Bridge at Adna: ((Open May 1 through June 30, daily limit one fish. From mouth to high bridge on Weyerhaeuser 1000 line (approximately 400 yards downstream from Roger Creek, south of Pe Ell.)) Daily limit one salmon.

(ii) From September 16 through September 30(~~(=)~~):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((fish, of which)); no more than ((three)) 3 may be adult salmon, and ((of the three adults)) only ((two)) 2 adults may be wild coho.

(B) Release chum and Chinook.

(iii) From October 1 through October 31(~~(=)~~):

(A) Daily limit ((six, of which three may be)) 6. No more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, ((and of the three adults)) only one adult may be a Chinook, and only ((two)) 2 adults may be wild coho.

(B) Release chum.

(iv) From November 1 through November 30(~~(—daily limit 6 fish, of which no))~~:

(A) Daily limit 6 fish. No more than ~~((three may be))~~ 3 adult salmon may be retained, and ~~((of the three adults,))~~ only ~~((two))~~ 2 adults may be wild coho.

(B) Release chum and Chinook.

(v) From December 1 through January 31 ~~((:))~~:

~~((A) Daily limit ~~((of six fish, of which no more than two may be))~~ 6. No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be ~~((a))~~ an adult wild coho.~~

(B) Release chum and Chinook.

~~((d) Sturgeon ~~((:))~~ is open year-round ~~((, and))~~; no night closure ~~((from mouth to high bridge on Weyerhaeuser 1000 line))~~ is in effect.~~

(2) From high bridge on Weyerhaeuser 1000 line (approximately 400 yards downstream from Roger Creek, south of Pe Ell, including all forks) upstream: ~~((First))~~ Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 ~~((season:))~~:

(a) Selective gear rules apply. ~~((All species:))~~

(b) Release all fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Chehalis River, South Fork (Lewis County):

(1) From mouth to County Highway Bridge near Boistfort School:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 ~~((season:))~~.

~~((b) Trout ~~((:))~~ minimum length ~~((fourteen))~~ 14 inches ~~((:))~~, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.~~

(2) From County Highway Bridge near Boistfort School upstream: ~~((From:))~~

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ~~((season: Minimum length eight inches))~~.

(b) Selective gear rules apply. ~~((Other game fish: Selective gear rules:))~~

Chehalis River Potholes (adjacent to the Chehalis River south of Highway 12 in Grays Harbor County, this does not include sloughs or beaver ponds): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Chelan Hatchery Creek (Chelan County): Closed waters.

Chelan Lake (Chelan County): Closed waters: Within 400 feet of all tributaries south of a line from Purple Point at Stehekin and Painted Rocks. Trout except kokanee and lake trout: Daily limit 5. Release wild cutthroat. Lake trout not counted in daily trout limit. Lake trout no minimum size, no daily limit. Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit 10, no minimum length. North of a line between Purple Point at Stehekin and Painted Rocks: April 1 through July 31: All game fish: Release all fish except lake trout. Salmon and lake trout: Open year-round: Salmon daily limit 1, minimum length 15 inches.

Chelan Lake Tributaries (Chelan County): From mouths upstream one mile except Stehekin River: August 1 through September 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release wild cutthroat.

Chelan River (Chelan County): From the railroad bridge to the Chelan P.U.D. safety barrier below the power house:

May 15 through August 31 season. Anti-snagging rule. Trout: Release all trout.

Chenois Creek (Grays Harbor County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Cherry Creek (Whatcom County) (tributary to the Snohomish River): From above Cherry Creek Falls (located at river mile 9.3, approximately 1 mile upstream of Stossel/Kelly Rd), including all tributaries and beaver ponds (King Co.): Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Chester Creek (Grays Harbor County): The first Saturday in June through last day in October season. Selective gear rules.

Chewuch River (Chewack River) (Okanogan County): ~~((From mouth to Eight Mile Creek: The first Saturday in June through August 15 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.~~

~~Upstream from Eight Mile Creek to Pasayten Wilderness boundary: Closed waters the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~From mouth to Pasayten Wilderness boundary: Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.)~~

(1) From the mouth to Eight Mile Creek:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through August 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(2) From Eight Mile Creek to Pasayten Wilderness boundary, closed the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(3) From mouth to Pasayten Wilderness boundary, open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.

Chikamin Creek (Chelan County): ~~((Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Chiliwack River (Whatcom County) including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Chimacum Creek (Jefferson County):

From mouth to Ness's Corner Road: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

From Ness's Corner Road to headwaters: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Chiwaukum Creek (Chelan County): Mouth to Fool Hen Creek: Closed waters.

Chiwawa River (Chelan County): Mouth to Buck Creek: Closed waters.

Chopaka Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit one.

Church Creek (Mason County) upstream of bridge on U.S. Forest Service Road #2361: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Cispus River (Lewis County): From mouth to North Fork: Trout: Release all cutthroat. Additional season November 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June. Trout: Release all trout except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open year around. Salmon minimum size 8 inches. January 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho and wild Chinook. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.

Cispus River, North Fork (Lewis County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: No more than one over twelve inches in length. Release cutthroat.

Clallam River (Clallam County): The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules from first Saturday in June through October 31. Release all fish except November 1 through January 31. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

Clara Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Clarks Creek (Pierce County): From mouth to 12th Avenue SE: First Saturday in June through August 15: Two trout over 14 inches in length. Selective gear rules apply.

Clear Creek (Chelan County): Closed waters.

Clear Creek (Snohomish County) (Sauk River tributary): From Asbestos Creek Falls to source: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Clear Lake (Chelan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. From July 5 through October 31, selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Clear Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Chumming permitted. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Clear Lake (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Clear Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more

than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Clearwater River (Jefferson County):

(1) From the mouth to Snahapish River:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.)):

(i) From February 16 through April 30, wild steelhead retention allowed.

(ii) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(b) Salmon:

(i) Open September 1 through November 30.

(ii) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)).

(iii) No more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon((, minimum length 12 inches)) may be retained.

(2) From Snahapish River upstream:

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.)): Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

Clearwater River (Pierce County): ~~((July 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))~~

(1) Open July 1 through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

Cle Elum Lake (Reservoir) (Kittitas County): Trout except kokanee: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches. Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit sixteen, no minimum size.

Cle Elum River (Kittitas County): ~~((From mouth to Cle Elum Dam: Permissible to fish to base of Cle Elum Dam. Year-round season. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Selective gear rules, except December 1 through March 31 bait and one single point barbed hook three sixteenths or smaller point to shank may be used. Trout: Release all trout. Above Cle Elum Lake to outlet of Hyas Lake except Tuequala Lake: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) From the mouth to Cle Elum Dam:

(a) It is permissible to fish up to the base of Cle Elum Dam.

(b) Open year-round.

(c) Selective gear rules apply April 1 through November 30.

(d) From December 1 through March 31, bait and one single-point barbed hook (three-sixteenths or smaller point to shank) may be used.

(e) Release all trout.

(2) From above Cle Elum Lake to outlet of Hyas Lake (not including Tucquala Lake):

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) All tributaries to Cle Elum River above Cle Elum Lake to outlet of Hyas Lake, which are not otherwise listed in this document, open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Cliff Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Cloquallum Creek (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From the mouth to the outlet at Stump Lake:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(2) From the outlet at Stump Lake upstream: ((First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Clover Creek (Pierce County) upstream of Steilacoom Lake, including all tributaries:

(1) Open July 1 through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

Coal Creek (Clallam County) Tributary to Ozette River: ~~((From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 15 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Release kokanee.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout:

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(b) Kokanee must be released.

Coal Creek (Cowlitz County): From mouth to four hundred feet below falls: The first Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through last day in February season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Coal Creek (tributary of Lake Washington) (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Coal Creek (near Snoqualmie) (King County):

(1) From mouth to Highway I-90:

(a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31 ((season)).

(b) Juvenile((s)) anglers only. ((Trout:))

(c) No minimum length requirement for trout.

(2) From Highway I-90 upstream(~~(First)~~); open the Saturday ((in June)) before Memorial Day through October 31 ((season)).

Coffee Pot Lake (Lincoln County): March 1 through September 30 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit one, minimum length eighteen inches. Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Coldwater Lake (Cowlitz County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one, minimum length sixteen inches.

Coldwater Lake inlet and outlet streams (Cowlitz County): Closed waters.

Collins Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Columbia Basin Hatchery Creek (Grant County): ~~((Hatchery outflow to confluence with Rocky Coulee Wasteway: April 1 through September 30 season. Juveniles and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only. Trout: No minimum size, daily limit three.))~~

(1) Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

(2) From hatchery outflow to confluence with Rocky Coulee Wasteway:

(a) Open April 1 through September 30.

(b) Trout no minimum size, daily limit 3.

Columbia Park Pond (Benton County): ~~((Juveniles and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only. All species: Daily limit of five fish combined.))~~

(1) Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

(2) All species, daily limit of 5 fish combined.

Columbia River, including impoundments and all connecting sloughs, except Wells Ponds: ~~((Year-round season unless otherwise provided. General species provisions (unless otherwise provided for in this section): Bass: Below McNary Dam: Daily limit five fish, bass 12 to 17 inches in length may be retained. Up to but not more than three of the daily limit may be over 15 inches. Trout: Daily limit two fish, minimum length 12 inches, except release all Dolly Varden/Bull Trout. Whitefish: Daily limit 15 fish. All other game fish: No daily limit, except release all grass carp.))~~

(1) General Columbia River rules:

(a) In the Columbia River between Washington and Oregon, the license of either state is valid.

(i) Anglers must comply with the fishing regulations of the state in which they are fishing.

(ii) This provision does not allow an angler licensed in Oregon to fish on the Washington shore, or in the sloughs or tributaries in Washington except Camas Slough, where the license of either state is valid when fishing from a floating device.

(iii) Anglers fishing the Columbia River are restricted to one daily limit, as defined by the laws of the state in which they are fishing, even if they are licensed by both states.

(b) Anglers may not possess in the field salmon or steelhead mutilated so that size, species, or fin clip cannot be determined until the angler has reached their automobile or principal means of land transportation and completed his or her daily angling.

~~(From a true north-south line through Buoy 10, upstream to a line projected from Rocky Point on the Washington bank through Red Buoy 44 to the navigation light at Tongue Point on the Oregon bank: Trout: Release all trout except hatchery steelhead. Walleye: No minimum size. Daily limit ten, of which no more than five may be greater than eighteen inches in length and one greater than twenty-four inches in length. Fishing from the north jetty is allowed during both Area 1 and Buoy 10 salmon season openings, and the daily limit is the more liberal if both areas are open. Barbed hooks allowed. Salmon and steelhead: Open only June 16 through March 31. June 16 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead, or one of each. Release all salmon other than sockeye and hatchery Chinook. From July 2 through July 31, release adult Chinook and sockeye. Closed to fishing for salmon and steelhead from Buoy 10 to the Megler-Astoria Bridge. August 1 through September 3, daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead or one of each; only 1 may be a Chinook. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. Chinook minimum length 24 inches. Coho minimum length 16 inches. September 4 through September 30, daily limit 2 hatchery coho or 2 hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon other than hatchery coho. Coho minimum length 16 inches. October 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead, or one of each. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. January 1 through March 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook. Fishing from the north jetty for salmon open during both Area 1 and Buoy 10 fishery openings and the daily limit is the more liberal if both areas are open. Sturgeon: Release sturgeon May 1 through May 11, and July 9 through December 31. Minimum size when open to retain sturgeon is 38 inches fork length January 1 through April 30, and 41 inches fork length May 12 through July 8. Bottomfish: Daily limits, seasons, size restrictions and gear restrictions are the same as those in the adjacent portion of Marine Area 1.~~

From a line projected from Rocky Point on the Washington bank through Red Buoy 44 to the navigation light at Tongue Point on the Oregon bank, upstream to the I-5 Bridge: Trout: Release all trout except hatchery steelhead and hatchery cutthroat May 16 through March 31. Walleye: No minimum size. Daily limit ten, of which no more than five may be greater than eighteen inches in length and one greater than twenty-four inches in length. Salmon and steelhead: Open only May 16 through March 31 of the following year. May 16 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except sockeye and hatchery Chinook. May 16 through June 15, release adult Chinook. July 2 through July 31, release adult Chinook and sockeye. August 1 through September 9, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more

than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each; of the adult salmon, only 1 may be a Chinook. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. September 10 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho; and September 10 through September 30 release Chinook downstream of a line projected from the Warrior Rock Lighthouse, through Red Buoy #4, to the orange marker atop the dolphin on the Washington shore. January 1 through March 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook. Sturgeon: (1) Release sturgeon May 1 through May 11 and July 9 through December 31 downstream from the Wauna powerlines. Minimum size when open to retain sturgeon is 38 inches fork length January 1 through April 30, and 41 inches fork length May 12 through July 8; (2) I-5 Bridge downstream to Wauna powerlines, permissible to retain sturgeon only on Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays from January 1 through July 31, and October 20 through December 31. Release sturgeon on other days and during other time periods.

From the I-5 Bridge to the Highway 395 Bridge at Paseo: Closed waters: (1) From the upstream line of Bonneville Dam to boundary markers located six hundred feet below the fish ladder, and closed to fishing from a floating device or fishing by any method except hand-casted gear from shore from Bonneville Dam downstream to a line from the Hamilton Island boat ramp to an Oregon boundary marker on Robins Island. (2) Waters from the upstream side of the Interstate 197 Bridge at The Dalles to upper line of The Dalles Dam except that bank fishing is permitted up to the downstream navigation lock wall on the Washington shore; within one quarter mile of the USFWS Spring Creek Hatchery Grounds between posted markers that are located one quarter mile on either side of the fish ladder entrance. (3) From John Day Dam downstream about three thousand feet except that bank fishing is permitted up to four hundred feet below the fishway entrance on the Washington shore. (4) From McNary Dam downstream to a line across the river from the red and white marker on the Oregon shore on a line that intersects the downstream end of the wing wall of the boat lock near the Washington shore. Salmon and steelhead: August 1 through December 31 season. August 1 through October 15 anti-snagging rule from Bonneville Dam to McNary Dam and night closure from Bonneville Dam to The Dalles Dam. Trout: Release all trout except hatchery steelhead. Walleye: No minimum size. Daily limit ten, of which no more than five may be greater than eighteen inches in length and one greater than twenty-four inches in length. Snake River Confluence Protection Area: From the first powerline crossing the Columbia upstream of Sacajawea State Park to the railroad bridge between Burbank and Kennewick: All species: Daily limits, seasons, size restrictions and gear restrictions are the same as those in the adjacent portion of the Snake River. Sturgeon: (1) Sturgeon fishing is closed from Bonneville Dam to a line from a boundary marker on the Washington shore approximately 4,000 feet below the fish ladder to the downstream end of Cascade Island to an Oregon angling boundary on Bradford Island (the Cascade Island - Bradford

Island line). (2) It is unlawful to fish for sturgeon from May 1 through August 31 from Cascade Island—Bradford Island line downstream 9 miles to a line crossing the Columbia River from navigation marker 82 on the Oregon shore, through the upstream exposed end of Skamania Island, continuing in a straight line to a boundary marker on the Washington shore (navigational marker 82 line), and May 1 through July 31 from 400 feet below McNary Dam to the Highway 82 Bridge and from John Day Dam downstream to a line crossing the Columbia at a right angle to the thread of the river from the west end of the grain silo at Rufus, Oregon. (3) Cascade Island—Bradford Island line downstream to I-5 Bridge, permissible to retain sturgeon only on Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays from January 1 through July 31 and October 20 through December 31, except for May 1—August 31 closure downstream to the navigation marker 82 line. Release sturgeon on other days and during other time periods. (4) Release sturgeon August 1 through December 31 from the upstream line of Bonneville Dam and 400 feet below McNary Dam. (5) From the Hamilton Island boat launch (USACE boat restricted zone boundary) to Bonneville Dam, anglers must stop fishing for sturgeon once a daily limit has been retained. (6) Release sturgeon from August 1 through January 31 from McNary Dam to the Highway 395 Bridge at Paseo. Salmon and steelhead: From I-5 Bridge to Bonneville Dam: Open June 16 through December 31 except salmon closed November 1 through December 31 from Beacon Rock to Bonneville Dam. June 16 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except sockeye and hatchery Chinook. July 2 through July 31, release adult Chinook and sockeye. August 1 through September 9, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each; of the adult salmon, only one may be a Chinook. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. September 10 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. Steelhead: Additional season January 1 through March 31. Daily limit 2. From Bonneville Dam to Highway 395 Bridge at Paseo: Open June 16 through December 31. June 16 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except sockeye and hatchery Chinook. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon or hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release all salmon except Chinook and coho. Release wild coho from Bonneville Dam to Hood River Bridge. Steelhead: Additional season January 1 through March 31. Daily limit 2.

From the Highway 395 Bridge at Paseo to the old Hanford townsite (wooden towers) powerline crossing, in Sec. 30, T13N, R28E except Ringold Area Bank Fishery waters: Closed waters: Ringold Springs Creek (Hatchery Creek). Closed waters within a 400' radius of the Columbia Irrigation District (CID) fish barrier at the mouth of the CID wasteway at Columbia Park. Release all steelhead with a radio-tag wire protruding from the mouth, or with a disk or floy tag attached near the dorsal fin. Trout: Release all trout, except up to two

hatchery steelhead having both adipose and ventral fin clips may be retained per day, October 1 through October 31. Release all trout, except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day, November 1 through March 31. Salmon: Open June 16 through July 31. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook. Release wild Chinook. Open August 1 through October 22. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Walleye: Daily limit 10 fish. No minimum size, no more than 5 fish over 18 inches in length. No more than 1 fish over 24 inches in length. Ringold Area Bank Fishery waters (from WDFW markers 1/4 mile downstream from the Ringold wasteway outlet, to WDFW markers 1/2 mile upstream from Spring Creek): Open only April 1 through April 15, except closed for salmon fishing. Fishing allowed only from the bank and only on the hatchery side of the river. Trout: Release all trout, except hatchery steelhead. Sturgeon: Release sturgeon from August 1 through January 31.

From the old Hanford townsite (wooden towers) powerline crossing in Sec. 30, T13N, R28E, to Vernita Bridge, (Highway 24): February 1 through October 22 season. Trout: Release all trout. Walleye: Daily limit 10 fish. No minimum size, no more than 5 fish over 18 inches in length. No more than 1 fish over 24 inches in length. Salmon: Open June 16 through July 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 fish may be adult hatchery Chinook. Release wild Chinook. Open August 1 through October 22. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Sturgeon: Release sturgeon from August 1 through October 22.

From Vernita Bridge (Highway 24) to Priest Rapids Dam: Closed waters: (1) Priest Rapids Dam—Waters between the upstream line of Priest Rapids Dam downstream to the boundary markers six hundred fifty feet below the fish ladders. (2) Jackson (Moran Creek or Priest Rapids Hatchery outlet) Creek—All waters of the Priest Rapids Hatchery system to the outlet on the Columbia River, extending to mid-stream Columbia between boundary markers located one hundred feet upstream and four hundred feet downstream of the mouth. Trout: Release all trout. Walleye: Daily limit 10 fish. No minimum size, no more than 5 fish over 18 inches in length. No more than 1 fish over 24 inches in length. Salmon: Open June 16 through July 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook salmon. Release wild Chinook. Open August 1 through October 22. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Sturgeon: Release sturgeon from August 1 through January 31. Closed to fishing for sturgeon from May 1 through July 31 from the boundary marker on the river bank 400 feet downstream from Priest Rapids Hatchery outlet channel (Jackson Creek) to Priest Rapids Dam.

From Priest Rapids Dam to Chief Joseph Dam, including up to base of Washburn Pond outlet structure: Closed waters: (1) Wanapum Dam—Waters between the upstream line of Wanapum Dam to the boundary markers seven hundred fifty feet downstream of the east fish ladder and five hundred feet downstream of the west fish ladder. (2) Rock Island Dam to boundary markers four hundred feet downstream of the fish ladders. (3) Rocky Reach Dam—Waters between the upstream line of Rocky Reach Dam to boundary markers four hundred feet downstream of the fish ladders. (4) Wells Dam—

Waters between the upstream line of Wells Dam to boundary markers four hundred feet downstream of the spawning channel discharge (Chelan County) and fish ladder (Douglas County). (5) Chief Joseph Dam—Closed to fishing from the Okanogan County shore between the dam and the Highway 17 Bridge. Closed to fishing from the Douglas County shore from the dam downstream 400 feet. Closed to fishing from a floating device from the boundary marker to the Corps of Engineers safety zone marker.

From Priest Rapids Dam to Wanapum Dam: All species: Anglers may fish with two poles provided they have a two pole endorsement July 1 through August 31. All game fish: Year-round season. Salmon: Open July 1 through October 22. July 1 through August 31, daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than 3 adult Chinook, and of the 3 adult Chinook, only 1 may be wild. September 1 through October 22, daily limit 6 Chinook, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release all trout. Sturgeon: Year-round, catch and release only.

From Wanapum Dam to Wells Dam: All species: Anglers may fish with two poles provided they have a two pole endorsement July 1 through August 31. All game fish: Year-round season. Salmon: Open July 1 through October 15. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than 3 may be adult Chinook, and of the 3 adult Chinook, only 1 may be wild. Release all trout. Sturgeon: Year-round, catch and release only.

From Wells Dam to Highway 173 Bridge at Brewster: All species: Anglers may fish with two poles provided they have a two pole endorsement July 16 through August 31. All game fish: Year-round season. Salmon: Open July 16 through August 31. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than 3 may be adult Chinook, and of the 3 adult Chinook, only 1 may be wild. Release all trout. Sturgeon: Year-round, catch and release only.

From Highway 173 Bridge at Brewster to Chief Joseph Dam: Anglers may fish with two poles, provided they have a two pole endorsement, July 1 through August 31. Release all trout. Salmon: Open July 1 through October 15. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than 3 may be adult Chinook, and of the 3 adult Chinook, only 1 may be wild. Sturgeon: Year-round, catch and release only. All other Game Fish: Year-round season.

Above Chief Joseph Dam: See Lake Roosevelt and Rufus Woods Lake.)

(c) It is unlawful to totally remove from the water any salmon, steelhead, or Dolly Varden/Bull trout that are to be released, when fishing from vessels less than 30 feet in length (as substantiated by Coast Guard documentation or Marine Board registration), in the mainstem Columbia from the Rocky Point/Tongue Point line upstream to OR/WA border, from February 15 through June 15.

(d) Open year-round unless otherwise provided.

(2) Rules by River Section:

(a) From a true north-south line through Buoy 10, upstream to a line projected from Rocky Point on the Washington bank through Red Buoy 44 to the navigation light at Tongue Point on the Oregon bank:

(i) Fishing from the north jetty is allowed when Marine Area 1 or Buoy 10 areas are open for salmon, and the daily

limit and minimum size restrictions follow the most liberal regulations if both areas are open. Barbed hooks allowed.

(ii) Release all trout except hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Walleye:

(A) No minimum length restriction.

(B) Daily limit 10; no more than 5 longer than 18 inches may be retained, and only one may be longer than 24 inches.

(iv) Bass:

(A) Daily limit 5 fish.

(B) No more than 3 fish longer than 15 inches may be retained.

(C) Retention of bass between 12 and 17 inches is permissible.

(v) Channel catfish, no daily limit.

(vi) Salmon and steelhead:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Closed to fishing for salmon and steelhead from Buoy 10 to the Megler-Astoria Bridge.

(II) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(III) Release all salmon other than sockeye and hatchery Chinook.

(IV) From July 2 through July 31, release adult Chinook and sockeye.

(B) Open August 1 through September 3:

(I) Daily limit 2 salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each.

(II) Only one Chinook may be retained.

(III) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.

(IV) Chinook minimum length 24 inches.

(V) Coho minimum length 16 inches.

(C) Open September 4 through September 30:

(I) Daily limit 2 hatchery coho, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each.

(II) Release all salmon other than hatchery coho.

(III) Coho minimum length 16 inches.

(D) Open October 1 through December 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(II) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.

(E) Open January 1 through March 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(II) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook.

(vii) Sturgeon:

(A) Release sturgeon May 1 through May 11, and July 9 through December 31.

(B) May 12 through July 8 minimum fork length is 41 inches.

(viii) Shad open May 16 through March 31.

(ix) Forage fish and bottomfish: Marine Area 1 general rules apply; eulachon closed.

(b) From a line projected from Rocky Point on the Washington bank through Red Buoy 44 to the navigation light at Tongue Point on the Oregon bank, upstream to the I-5 Bridge:

(i) Trout:(A) Open May 16 through March 31.(B) Release all trout except hatchery cutthroat and hatchery steelhead (limit as described under "salmon and steelhead" within this section).(I) Hatchery cutthroat minimum length 12 inches.(II) Up to 2 hatchery cutthroat may be retained.(ii) Walleye:(A) No minimum length restriction.(B) Daily limit 10; no more than 5 fish longer than 18 inches may be retained, and only one fish may be longer than 24 inches.(iii) Bass:(A) Daily limit 5 fish.(B) No more than 3 fish longer than 15 inches may be retained.(C) Retention of bass between 12 and 17 inches is permissible.(iv) Channel catfish, no daily limit.(v) Salmon and steelhead:(A) Open May 16 through July 31:(I) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and sockeye.(II) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(III) Release adult Chinook from May 16 through June 15.(IV) Release adult Chinook and sockeye from July 2 through July 31.(B) Open August 1 through September 9:(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(II) Only one adult Chinook may be retained.(III) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.(C) Open September 10 through December 31:(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(II) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.(III) Release Chinook downstream of a line projected from the Warrior Rock Lighthouse, through Red Buoy 4, to the orange marker atop the dolphin on the Washington shore, from September 10 through September 30.(D) Open January 1 through March 31:(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(II) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook.(vi) Shad open May 16 through March 31.(vii) Sturgeon:(A) Downstream from the Wauna powerlines at river mile 40, near Cathlamet:(I) Release sturgeon May 1 through May 11 and July 9 through December 31.(II) Minimum fork length is 41 inches from May 12 through July 8.(B) From the Wauna powerlines upstream to I-5 Bridge:(I) It is unlawful to retain sturgeon, except on Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays January 1 through July 31 and October 20 through December 31.(II) Release sturgeon August 1 through October 19.(c) From the I-5 Bridge to Bonneville Dam:(i) Closed waters:(A) From the upstream line of Bonneville Dam to boundary markers 600 feet below the fish ladder at the powerhouse.(B) Closed to angling from a floating device or by any method except hand-casted gear from shore, from Bonneville Dam downstream to a line from the Hamilton Island boat ramp to an Oregon boundary marker on the westernmost tip of Robins Island.(ii) Release all trout except hatchery steelhead.(iii) Walleye:(A) No minimum length restriction.(B) Daily limit 10; no more than 5 longer than 18 inches may be retained, and only one may be longer than 24 inches.(iv) Bass:(A) Daily limit 5 fish.(B) No more than 3 longer than 15 inches may be retained.(C) Retention of bass between 12 and 17 inches is permissible.(v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.(vi) Salmon and steelhead:(A) Open June 16 through July 31:(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(II) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and sockeye.(III) Release adult Chinook and sockeye July 2 through July 31.(B) Open August 1 through September 9:(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(II) Only one adult Chinook may be retained.(III) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.(C) Open September 10 through December 31:(I) Closed November 1 through December 31 from Beacon Rock to Bonneville Dam.(II) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.(III) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.(vii) Steelhead open January 1 through March 31.(viii) Sturgeon:(A) Closed to fishing for sturgeon:(I) From Bonneville Dam downstream to a boundary marker on the Washington shore approximately 4,000 feet below the fish ladder at the powerhouse, south to the downstream end of Cascade Island, and across to the Oregon angling boundary on Bradford Island (the Cascade Island-Bradford Island line).(II) From Bonneville Dam downstream 9 miles to a line crossing the Columbia River from navigation marker 82 on the Oregon shore (navigational marker 82 line), from May 1 through August 31.



(III) From the Hamilton Island boat launch (USACE boat restricted zone boundary) upstream to the Cascade Island-Bradford Island line, anglers must stop fishing for sturgeon once a daily limit has been retained.

(B) January 1 through July 31, and from October 20 through December 31, from the Cascade Island-Bradford Island line downstream to I-5 Bridge, it is permissible to retain sturgeon only on Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays.

(C) Catch and release August 1 through October 19.

(ix) Shad open May 16 through March 31.

(d) From Bonneville Dam to The Dalles Dam:

(i) Closed waters:

(A) Within one quarter mile of the USFWS Spring Creek Hatchery Grounds, between posted markers located one quarter mile on either side of the fish ladder entrance.

(B) At The Dalles between the upstream line of The Dalles Dam to the upstream side of the Interstate 197 Bridge, except that bank fishing is permitted up to the downstream navigation lock wall on the Washington shore.

(ii) Release all trout except hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Walleye:

(A) No minimum length restriction.

(B) Daily limit 10; no more than 5 longer than 18 inches may be retained, and only one may be longer than 24 inches.

(iv) Bass:

(A) Daily limit 5 fish.

(B) No more than 3 fish longer than 15 inches may be retained.

(C) Retention of bass between 12 and 17 inches is permissible.

(v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(vi) Salmon and steelhead:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(II) Release all salmon except sockeye and hatchery Chinook.

(B) Open August 1 through December 31:

(I) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through October 15.

(II) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(III) Release all salmon except Chinook and coho.

(IV) Release wild coho from Bonneville Dam to Hood River Bridge.

(vii) Steelhead open January 1 through March 31.

(viii) Release sturgeon August 1 through December 31.

(e) From The Dalles Dam to McNary Dam:

(i) Closed waters:

(A) At John Day Dam between the upstream line of John Day Dam to markers approximately 3,000 feet downstream, except that bank fishing is permitted up to 400 feet below the fishway entrance on the Washington shore.

(B) At McNary Dam between the upstream line of McNary Dam downstream to a line across the river from the red and white marker on the Oregon shore on a line that intersects the downstream end of the wing-wall of the boat lock near the Washington shore.

(ii) Release all trout except hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Walleye:

(A) No minimum length restriction.

(B) Daily limit 10; no more than 5 fish longer than 18 inches may be retained, and only one fish may be longer than 24 inches.

(iv) Bass:

(A) Daily limit 5 fish.

(B) No more than 3 fish longer than 15 inches may be retained.

(C) Retention of bass between 12 and 17 inches is permissible.

(v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(vi) Salmon and steelhead:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(II) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and sockeye.

(B) Open August 1 through December 31:

(I) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through October 15.

(II) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(III) Release all salmon except Chinook and coho.

(vii) Steelhead open January 1 through March 31.

(viii) Sturgeon:

(A) Closed to fishing for sturgeon:

(I) May 1 through July 31 from John Day Dam downstream 2.4 miles to a line crossing the Columbia at a right angle to the thread of the river from the west end of the grain silo at Rufus, Oregon.

(II) May 1 through July 31 from McNary Dam downstream to the Highway 82 Bridge.

(B) Catch and release August 1 through December 31.

(f) From McNary Dam to Highway 395 Bridge at Pasco:

(i) The Snake River Confluence Protection Area includes waters of the Columbia River from the railroad bridge between Burbank and Kennewick, upstream approximately 2.1 miles to the first powerline crossing the Columbia upstream of the navigation light on the point of Sacajawea State Park. For all species, daily limits, seasons, size restrictions and gear restrictions are the same as those in the adjacent portion of the Snake River.

(ii) Release all trout except hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(iv) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(vi) Salmon and steelhead:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(II) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and sockeye.

(B) Open August 1 through December 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon, or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each, may be retained.

(II) Release all salmon except Chinook and coho.

(vii) Steelhead open January 1 through March 31.

(viii) Release sturgeon August 1 through January 31.

(g) From the Highway 395 Bridge at Pasco to the Old Hanford townsite wooden powerline towers, in Sec. 30, T13N, R28E:

(i) Closed waters:

(A) Within a 400 foot radius of the Columbia Irrigation District (CID) fish barrier at the mouth of the CID wasteway at Columbia Park.

(B) Ringold Springs Creek (Hatchery Creek).

(ii) Ringold Area Bank Fishery waters, from WDFW markers 1/4 mile downstream from the Ringold wasteway outlet, to WDFW markers 1/2 mile upstream from Spring Creek:

(A) Open April 1 through April 15 only.

(B) Fishing allowed from the bank on the hatchery side of the river only.

(C) Release all trout, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(iii) Release all steelhead with a radio-tag wire protruding from the mouth, or with a disk or floy tag attached near the dorsal fin.

(iv) Trout:

(A) October 1 through October 31 release all trout, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead with both the adipose and ventral fins clipped may be retained per day.

(B) November 1 through March 31 release all trout, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

(v) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(vi) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(vii) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(viii) Salmon:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(B) Open August 1 through October 22:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish.

(II) No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(ix) Release sturgeon from August 1 through January 31.

(h) From the Old Hanford townsite wooden powerline towers, in Sec. 30, T13N, R28E, to Vernita Bridge. (Highway 24):

(i) Open February 1 through October 22.

(ii) Release all trout.

(iii) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(iv) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(vi) Salmon:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(B) Open August 1 through October 22:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish.

(II) No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(vii) Release sturgeon from August 1 through October

22.

(i) From Vernita Bridge (Highway 24) to Priest Rapids Dam:

(i) Closed waters:

(A) At Priest Rapids Dam; waters between the upstream line of Priest Rapids Dam downstream to the boundary markers 650 feet below the fish ladders.

(B) At Jackson (Moran) Creek, or Priest Rapids Hatchery outlet Creek; waters of the Priest Rapids Hatchery system to the outlet on the Columbia River, extending to midstream Columbia River between boundary markers located 100 feet upstream and 400 feet downstream of the mouth.

(ii) Release all trout.

(iii) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(iv) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(vi) Salmon:

(A) Open June 16 through July 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(II) Release wild Chinook.

(B) Open August 1 through October 22:

(I) Daily limit 6 fish.

(II) No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(vii) Sturgeon:

(A) Closed to fishing for sturgeon from May 1 through July 31 from Priest Rapids Dam downstream 2.5 miles to the boundary marker on the river bank 400 feet downstream from Priest Rapids Hatchery outlet channel (Jackson Creek).

(B) Release sturgeon from August 1 through January 31.

(i) From Priest Rapids Dam to Wanapum Dam:

(i) Closed waters at Wanapum Dam, between the upstream line of Wanapum Dam to the boundary markers 750 feet downstream of the east fish ladder and 500 feet downstream of the west fish ladder.

(ii) Fishing two poles is permissible July 1 through August 31, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(iii) Release all trout.

(iv) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(v) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(vi) Channel catfish: No daily limit.

(vii) Salmon:

(A) Open July 1 through August 31:

(I) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only.

(II) No more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult Chinook may be wild.

(B) Open September 1 through October 22:

(I) Daily limit 6 Chinook only.

(II) No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(viii) Release all sturgeon.

(k) From Wanapum Dam to Wells Dam:

(i) Closed waters:

(A) At Rocky Reach Dam and Rock Island Dam, between the upstream line of the dam to boundary markers 400 feet downstream of the fish ladders.

(B) At Wells Dam, between the upstream line of Wells Dam to boundary markers 400 feet downstream of the spawning channel discharge (on Chelan County side) and fish ladder (on Douglas County side).

(ii) Fishing two poles is permissible July 1 through August 31, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(iii) Release all trout.

(iv) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.  
 (v) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.  
 (vi) Channel catfish: No daily limit.  
 (vii) Salmon open July 1 through October 15:  
 (A) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only.  
 (B) No more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult Chinook may be wild.  
 (viii) Release all sturgeon.  
 (l) From Wells Dam to Highway 173 Bridge at Brewster:  
 (i) Fishing two poles is permissible July 16 through August 31, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.  
 (ii) Release all trout.  
 (iii) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.  
 (iv) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.  
 (v) Channel catfish: No daily limit.  
 (vi) Salmon open July 16 through August 31:  
 (A) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only.  
 (B) No more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult Chinook may be wild.  
 (vii) Release all sturgeon.  
 (m) From Highway 173 Bridge at Brewster to Chief Joseph Dam:  
 (i) Closed waters:  
 (A) From the Okanogan County shore between Chief Joseph Dam and the Highway 17 Bridge.  
 (B) From the Douglas County shore between Chief Joseph Dam and a point 400 feet downstream.  
 (ii) Fishing two poles is permissible July 1 through August 31, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.  
 (iii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device downstream of Chief Joseph Dam from the boundary marker to the Corps of Engineers safety zone marker.  
 (iv) Release all trout.  
 (v) Walleye: No size restrictions and no daily limit.  
 (vi) Bass: No size restrictions and no daily limit.  
 (vii) Channel catfish: No daily limit.  
 (viii) Salmon open July 1 through October 15:  
 (A) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only.  
 (B) No more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult Chinook may be wild.  
 (ix) Release all sturgeon.  
 (n) Above Chief Joseph Dam: Refer to "Rufus Woods Lake" special rules listed in this section.  
 (o) Above Grand Coulee Dam: Refer to "Lake Roosevelt" special rules listed in this section.

Colville River (Stevens County):  
 ((From mouth to bridge at Town of Valley: Year round season. Trout: Daily limit five fish, not more than two of which may be brown trout October 1 through November 30. Walleye: Daily limit 8 fish. No minimum size. Not more than one walleye greater than 22 inches may be retained. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.  
 From bridge at Valley upstream and tributaries: Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))  
 (1) From the mouth to the bridge at town of Valley:  
 (a) Open year-round.

(b) Trout:  
 (i) Daily limit 5 fish.  
 (ii) From October 1 through November 30, not more than 2 brown trout may be retained.  
 (c) Walleye:  
 (i) Daily limit 8 fish.  
 (ii) No size restrictions.  
 (d) Sturgeon: It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.  
 (2) All tributaries to Colville River, from the mouth to the bridge at the town of Valley, open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.  
 (3) From the bridge at the town of Valley upstream, including tributaries:  
 (a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.  
 (b) Selective gear rules apply.  
 (c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Conconully Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Conconully Reservoir (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Conger Pond (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Connelly Creek and tributaries (Lewis County): From four hundred feet below the city of Morton Dam to its source: Closed waters.

Conner Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Connor Creek (Grays Harbor County)((~~From mouth upstream~~)):

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout((:)) minimum length ((~~fourteen~~) 14 inches((~~All species: Selective gear rules~~)), except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Cook Creek (Grays Harbor County)((:)), from the Quinault Indian Reservation boundary upstream:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Trout((:)) minimum length ((~~fourteen~~) 14 inches((~~All species: Selective gear rules~~)), except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(3) Selective gear rules apply.

Cooper River (Kittitas County)((:)), mouth to Cooper Lake: ((~~Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~))

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

Coot Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Copalis River (Grays Harbor County):

(1) General River Rules:

(a) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season)).

(b) It is permissible to retain hatchery steelhead defined as having a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.

(2) Rules by River Section:

(a) From mouth to Carlisle Bridge:

(i) Trout(=) minimum length ((fourteen)) 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) Salmon:

(A) Open ((only)) September 1 through January 31.

(B) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon may be retained.

(C) Release adult Chinook and chum ((and adult Chinook)).

(b) From Carlisle Bridge upstream(=); Trout(=) minimum length ((fourteen)) 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

Copper Creek (Snohomish County) (Clear Creek tributary, a tributary of Sauk River): All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Corral Canyon Creek (Benton County): Selective gear rules.

Cottage Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Cottonwood Creek (Lincoln County): Year-round season.

Cottonwood Creek (Walla Walla County): Closed waters.

Cougar Creek (tributary to Yale Reservoir) (Cowlitz County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season.

Cougar Lake (Pasayten Wilderness) (Okanogan County): All species: Selective gear rules.

Cougar Lake (near Winthrop) (Okanogan County):

(1) Open April 1 through August 31((—All species: Release all fish)).

(2) Catch and release only.

(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Coulter Creek (Kitsap/Mason counties): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

County Line Ponds (Skagit County): Closed waters.

Coweeman River (Cowlitz County): ~~((From mouth to Mulholland Creek: The first Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through March 15 season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. From Mulholland Creek upstream: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.))~~

(1) From mouth to Baird Creek:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through March 15.

(b) Release all trout, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(2) From Baird Creek upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.

(b) Release all trout, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Cowiche Creek (Yakima County): Selective gear rules apply. ~~((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

Cowlitz Falls Reservoir (Lake Scanewa) (Lewis County): ~~((June 1 through last day in February season. The upstream boundary of the reservoir in the Cowlitz arm is the posted PUD sign on Peters Road. The upstream boundary of the reservoir in the Cispus arm is the posted markers at the Lewis County PUD kayak launch, approximately 1.5 miles upstream from the confluence of the Cowlitz and Cispus arms. Trout and salmon: Minimum length eight inches. Trout: Release cutthroat. Release rainbow trout except rainbow trout with a clipped adipose fin and a healed scar at the site of the clipped fin. June 1 through August 31: Daily limit five. September 1 through last day of February: Daily limit ten. Salmon: Open only June 1 through last day in February. January 1 through last day in February and June 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho and wild Chinook. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.))~~

(1) The upstream boundary of the reservoir in the Cowlitz arm is the posted PUD sign on Peters Road.

(2) The upstream boundary of the reservoir in the Cispus arm is the posted markers at the Lewis County PUD kayak launch, approximately 1.5 miles upstream from the confluence of the Cowlitz and Cispus arms.

(3) Open June 1 through the last day in February for game fish.

(4) Trout:

(a) Minimum length 8 inches.

(b) Release cutthroat.

(c) Release rainbow trout, except those with a clipped adipose fin with a healed scar at the site of the clipped fin.

(d) From September 1 through the last day in February, daily limit 10.

(5) Salmon open year-round:

(a) Minimum length 8 inches.

(b) Daily limit 6 salmon.

(c) Release wild Chinook and wild coho.

(d) From January 1 through July 31, no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(e) From August 1 through December 31, no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

Cowlitz River (Lewis County):

(1) From mouth to Mayfield Dam:

(a) Closed waters:

((+)) (i) From 400 feet or posted markers below Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam to boundary markers near the Cowlitz salmon hatchery water intake approximately

1,700 feet upstream of the Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam.

((2)) (ii) From 400 feet below the Mayfield powerhouse upstream to Mayfield Dam.

((3)) (iii) From within a 100 foot radius of the new Cowlitz Trout Hatchery outfall structure, except anglers with disabilities who permanently use a wheelchair and possess a designated harvester companion card may fish within posted markers when adjacent waters are open. (Year-round season except closed to fishing from south bank May 1 through June 15 from Mill Creek to the Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam. Permissible to fish up to four hundred feet or the posted deadline at the Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam. Permissible to fish up to Tacoma Power safety signs at Onion Rock below Mossyrock Dam. Permissible to fish up to Lewis County P.U.D. safety signs below Cowlitz Falls Dam. From the Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam downstream to a line from the mouth of Mill Creek to a boundary marker on the opposite shore, it is unlawful to fish from any floating device. Lexington Bridge Drive in Kelso upstream to the Highway 505 Bridge in Toledo: All species: Two poles allowed with two pole endorsement. Anti snagging rule and night closure April 1 through November 30 from mouth of Mill Creek to the Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam. When anti snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. All game fish: Release all fish April 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Trout: The first Saturday in June through March 31, daily limit five, minimum length twelve inches, no more than two over twenty inches, except release wild cutthroat. Salmon: Open year-round. January 1 through July 31: Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho. August 1 through December 31: Daily limit six fish of which no more than two may be adult Chinook. Release all salmon except hatchery coho and hatchery Chinook. Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in adjacent waters of mainstem Columbia River.

From posted PUD sign on Peters Road to mouth of Ohanapecosh River and mouth of Muddy Fork: Anti snagging rule and night closure September 1 through October 31 for all species. When anti snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked in the mouth may be retained. Trout: Release cutthroat. Additional November 1 through Friday before the first Saturday in June season. Trout: Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open year-round from upstream boundary of Lake Seanewa. Minimum size 12 inches. January 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho and wild Chinook. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.)

(b) From Lexington Bridge Drive in Kelso upstream to the Highway 505 Bridge in Toledo, fishing two poles is permissible so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(2) From mouth of Mill Creek to the Cowlitz salmon hatchery barrier dam:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect April 1 through November 30. Anglers may only retain fish hooked in the mouth when the anti-snagging rule is in effect.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from the south side of the river from May 1 through June 15.

(d) Sturgeon:

(i) It is unlawful to retain sturgeon, except on Thursdays, Fridays, and Saturdays January 1 through July 31 and October 20 through December 31.

(ii) Release sturgeon August 1 through October 19.

(e) Open first Saturday in June through March 31 for trout and other game fish:

(i) Trout daily limit 5, minimum length 12 inches. Up to 2 fish over 20 inches may be retained.

(ii) Release wild cutthroat.

(f) Open April 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June: catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(g) Salmon:

(i) Open January 1 through July 31:

(A) Daily limit 6, up to 2 hatchery adults may be retained.

(B) Only hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho may be retained.

(ii) Open August 1 through December 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; up to 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(B) Only hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho may be retained.

(3) From posted PUD sign on Peters Road to the mouth of Ohanapecosh River and the mouth of Muddy Fork:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect September 1 through October 31 for all species. Anglers may only retain fish hooked in the mouth when anti-snagging rule is in effect.

(b) Trout and other game fish:

(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: release cutthroat.

(ii) Open November 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June. For trout, catch and release only except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open January 1 through July 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; up to 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Release wild coho and wild Chinook.

(ii) Open August 1 through December 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; up to 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(B) Release wild coho and wild Chinook.

Cowlitz River, Clear and Muddy Forks (Lewis County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release cutthroat.

Coyote Creek and Ponds (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Crab Creek (Adams/Grant counties):

From mouth to Morgan Lake Road in Section 36: April 1 through September 30 season.

From Morgan Lake Road in Section 36 to O'Sullivan Dam (including Marsh Unit I and II impoundments): Closed waters.

Crab Creek (Lincoln/Grant counties) and tributaries: Year-round season. In those waters from Grant County Road 7 to the fountain buoy and shoreline markers or 150 feet downstream of the Alder Street fill March 1 through May 31 terminal gear restricted to one single hook measuring 3/4 inch or less point to shank. Year-round: Daily limits and size limits same as Moses Lake. From Moses Lake downstream to the confluence of the outlet streams March 1 through May 31 terminal gear restricted to one single-point hook measuring 3/4 inch or less point to shank. Year-round: Daily limits and size limits same as Potholes Reservoir.

Crabapple Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Cranberry Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Crawfish Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited.

Crescent Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Crescent Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Crescent Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Crim Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Crocker Lake (Jefferson County): Closed waters.

Crooked Creek (Clallam County) and tributaries that are outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ~~((season))~~.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout:

(a) Trout minimum length ~~((fourteen))~~ 14 inches ~~((Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules))~~, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release kokanee.

Crystal Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Cumberland Creek (Whatcom County): Upstream from the USFS 17 road bridge located 0.7 lineal miles from its conflu-

ence with the Skagit River; open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Cup Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Curl Lake (Columbia County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Dakota Creek (Whatcom County): From mouth to Giles Road Bridge: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Salmon: Open October 1 through December. Daily limit 2 salmon. Release wild Chinook.

Dalton Lake (Franklin County): Trout: No more than two over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Damon Lake (Grays Harbor County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Dan's Creek (Snohomish County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Davis Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Davis Lake (Lewis County): Fourth Saturday in April to last day in February season.

Davis Lake (Okanogan County): April 1 through August 31: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Davis Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Dayton Pond (Columbia County): ~~((Juveniles,))~~

(1) Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with ~~((reduced-fee licenses or))~~ a disability who possess a designated harvester((s)) companion card only. ~~((Trout:))~~

(2) No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Deadman Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

De Coursey Pond (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through November 30 season. Juveniles only. Salmon: Land-locked salmon rules apply.

Decker Creek (Mason County) (Satsop River tributary): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Deep Creek (Clallam County): December 1 through January 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Deep Creek (Grays Harbor County): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through last day in October season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Deep Creek (tributary to Bumping Lake) (Yakima County):  
(1) From the mouth to the second bridge crossing on USFS Rd. 1808 (approximately 3.7 miles from junction of USFS Rds. 1800 and 1808): Closed waters.

(2) From the second bridge crossing upstream; open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Deep Lake (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Deep Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Deep Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Deep River (Wahkiakum County): Year-round season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open year-round only from mouth to town bridge. January 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild Chinook and wild coho. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum and wild coho. Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in adjacent waters of mainstem Columbia River.

Deer Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Deer Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Deer Lake (Island County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Deer (Deer Springs) Lake (Lincoln County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Deer Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Deer Lake (Stevens County): March 1 through October 31 season. Trout: No more than two over thirty inches in length may be retained.

Delemeter Creek (Cowlitz County): Closed waters from 400 feet below to 200 feet above the temporary weir while the weir is installed in the creek.

Delezene Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Dempsey Creek (Thurston County) (Black River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2

fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

~~De Roux Creek (Kittitas County): ((Mouth to the USFS Trail #1392 (De Roux Cr. Trail) stream crossing (approximately one river mile): Closed waters. Upstream of USFS Trail #1392 stream crossing: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Closed waters from the mouth to the USFS Trail #1392 (De Roux Cr. Trail) stream crossing (approximately one river mile).

(2) Upstream of the USFS Trail #1392 stream crossing, selective gear rules apply.

~~Deschutes River (Thurston County): ((Barbless hooks required. From old U.S. Highway 99 Bridge near Tumwater to Henderson Boulevard Bridge near Pioneer Park: The first Saturday in June through October 15 season. Release all trout. Salmon: Open July 1 through October 15. Selective gear rules, except bait allowed September 1 through October 15. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release coho.~~

~~From Henderson Boulevard Bridge upstream: Year-round season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout. Salmon: Open only July 1 through October 15. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release coho.))~~

(1) From old U.S. Highway 99 Bridge near Tumwater to Henderson Boulevard Bridge near Pioneer Park:

(a) Selective gear rules apply, except bait allowed September 1 through October 15.

(b) Open for trout year-round; catch and release only.

(c) Open for all other game fish the first Saturday in June through October 15; release all trout.

(d) Open for salmon July 1 through October 15:

(i) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release coho.

(2) From Henderson Boulevard Bridge upstream:

(a) Open year-round.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Release all trout.

(d) Open for salmon July 1 through October 15.

(i) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release coho.

Devereaux Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Devil's Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Dewatto River (Mason County): From mouth to Dewatto-Holly Road Bridge: First Saturday in June through August 15 and October 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Night closure October 1

through October 31. Game fish: Release all fish. Salmon: Open October 1 through October 31. Daily limit two coho only.

From Dewatto-Holly Road Bridge upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Diamond Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Dickey River (Clallam County):

(1) From Olympic National Park boundary upstream to the confluence of the East and West Forks:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season)).

(b) Trout(±) minimum length ((fourteen)) 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(c) It is permissible to retain wild steelhead February 16 through April 30(, wild steelhead retention allowed).

(d) Salmon((- From mouth to East Fork Dickey)) open July 1 through November 30:

(i) From July 1 through August 31(±):

(A) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Adult wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(ii) From September 1 through November 30(±):

(A) Daily limit 6 fish. ((Up to))

(B) Two salmon may be adults, plus ((up to two)) 2 additional adult hatchery coho may be retained.

(2) From the confluence of the East and West Forks upstream (for both forks):

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(b) Selective gear rules apply. ((Other game fish: Selective gear rules apply.))

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

Dillacort Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

Diobsud Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Dog Lake (Yakima County): Trout: Daily limit may contain no more than 1 fish over 14 inches in length.

Dogfish Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Donkey Creek (Grays Harbor County): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through last day in October season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Donovan Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Dosewallips River (Jefferson County): From mouth to Olympic National Park boundary about three-quarters mile

downstream of falls: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season mouth to park boundary and November 1 through December 15 season mouth to Highway 101 Bridge. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through August 31. All species: Release all fish except salmon may be retained November 1 through December 15. Salmon: Open only November 1 through December 15 from mouth to Highway 101 Bridge. Daily limit 2 chum salmon.

Dot Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Downey Creek (Snohomish County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Downs Lake (Lincoln/Spokane counties): March 1 through September 30 season. Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Drano Lake (waters downstream of markers on point of land downstream and across from Little White Salmon National Fish Hatchery):

(1) Closed Wednesdays beginning the second Wednesday in April through June 30.

(2) Closed from 6 p.m. Tuesdays through 6 p.m. Wednesdays during October.

(3) Night closure in effect March 16 through June 30.

(4) Two-pole fishing is permissible from May 12 through June 30 and from September 15 through December 31, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(5) The area west of a line projected from the easternmost pillar of the Highway 14 Bridge to a posted marker on the north shore, is open only to bank fishing from April 16 through June 30.

(6) Anti-snagging rule applies August 1 through December 31.

(7) Game fish other than trout: Open May 1 through March 31.

(8) Trout:

(a) Open August 1 through March 15.

(b) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(9) Salmon and steelhead:

(a) Open March 16 through July 31.

(b) Daily limit 2 hatchery steelhead or 2 hatchery Chinook, or one of each.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open August 1 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

Dry Creek (Walla Walla County): Upstream from the middle Waitsburg Road: Closed waters.

Dry Falls Lake (Grant County): April 1 through November 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Duck Lake (Grays Harbor County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.



Duckabush River (Jefferson County): From mouth to the Olympic National Park Boundary: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season mouth to park boundary and November 1 through December 15 season mouth to Mason County P.U.D. No. 1 overhead electrical distribution line. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through August 31. All species: Release all fish except salmon may be retained November 1 through December 15. Salmon: Open only November 1 through December 15 from mouth to Mason County P.U.D. No. 1 overhead electrical distribution line. Daily limit 2 chum salmon.

Dune Lake (Grant County): All species: Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit 1.

Dungeness River (Clallam County):

(1) From the mouth to the forks at Dungeness Camp-ground:

(a) Open October 16 through January 31 (~~season~~).

(b) Trout(±) minimum length (~~fourteen~~) 14 inches.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open only from the mouth to the hatchery intake pipe at river mile 11.3 from October 16 through December 31 (~~from mouth to the hatchery intake pipe at river mile 11.3~~).

(ii) Daily limit 4 coho salmon.

(2) From (~~junction of~~) Gold Creek upstream (~~to headwaters~~): (~~First~~) Open the Saturday (~~in June~~) before Memorial Day through October 31 (~~season~~).

Dusty Lake (Grant County): March 1 through November 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one fish.

Dyes Inlet (Kitsap County): All streams: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Eaton Creek (Thurston County) (Lake St. Clair tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Early Winters Creek (Okanogan County): Closed waters.

East Little Walla Walla River (Walla Walla County): Closed waters.

East Twin River (Clallam County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Easton Lake (Kittitas County): Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit five fish of which no more than 2 may be trout other than Eastern brook trout. Minimum length 8 inches.

~~((Ebe Lake (Little Lake) (Snohomish County): Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit one, minimum length eighteen inches.))~~

Echo Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Eglon Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size 14 inches.

Eight Creek (Lewis County) (tributary to Elk Creek, which is a Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Eightmile Lake (Chelan County): Trout: Daily limit five, not more than two mackinaw may be retained.

Elbow Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Elk Creek (Clallam County)(±), outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 (~~season~~).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout:

(a) Minimum length (~~fourteen~~) 14 inches(±), except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release kokanee.

Elk Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Elk River (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From the mouth (Highway 105 Bridge) to the confluence of east and middle branches:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through last day in February (~~season. Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish.~~); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(±) open (~~only~~) October 1 through November 30(±):

(i) Daily limit 2 fish (~~of which~~); only one (~~may be a~~) wild coho may be retained.

(ii) Release chum and Chinook.

(2) From confluence of east and middle branches upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February (~~season~~).

(b) Trout(±) minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Elkhorn Creek (Pacific County) (Smith River tributary): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Ell Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Ellen Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. All species: Catch and release except up to five rainbow trout may be retained.

Elliot Creek (Snohomish County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Ellis Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 15 season. Selective gear rules.

Ellsworth Creek (Pacific County) (Naselle River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through September 30 season. Selective gear rules.

Elochoman River (Wahkiakum County): Closed waters: Waters from 100 feet above the upper hatchery rack downstream to the Elochoman Hatchery Bridge located 400 feet below the upper hatchery rack; waters from a point 50 feet above to 100 feet below the outlet pipes from the most downstream Elochoman Hatchery rearing pond and extending 30 feet out from the south bank of the river; from 200 feet above the department of fish and wildlife temporary weir downstream to Foster (Risk) Road Bridge while weir is installed in the river; mainstem waters from the confluence of the west fork to source.

From mouth to West Fork: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season. Anti-snagging rule, night closure, and stationary gear restriction August 1 through October 31. Trout: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open the first Saturday in June through December 31. First Saturday in June through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook, of which no more than 2 may be adults. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.

Eloika Lake (Spokane County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Elwha River (Clallam County): Closed waters.

Empire Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Entiat River (Chelan County): ~~((From mouth to Entiat Falls: December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply. Above Entiat Falls: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit 5 trout, not more than one of which may be greater than 12 inches in length. Eastern brook trout not included in trout daily limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) From mouth (Highway 97 bridge) to Entiat Falls:

(a) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only.

(b) Whitefish gear rules apply.

(2) Above Entiat Falls:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Trout:

(i) Daily limit 5 trout; not more than one greater than 12 inches in length may be retained.

(ii) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10. Eastern brook trout do not count toward the daily trout limit. However, once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout is reached, the limit for all species of trout is reached and the angler must cease fishing.

Ephrata Lake (Grant County): Closed waters.

Erie Lake (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Evans Creek (Pierce County) (Carbon River tributary) from Carbon River-Fairfax Road upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Failor Lake (Grays Harbor County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: No more than two over 15 inches in length may be retained per day.

Fairchild Creek (Pacific County) (Wilson Creek tributary, which is a Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Fall River and all forks (Pacific County) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Falls Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 15 season. Selective gear rules.

Falls Creek (Snohomish County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Fan Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Fazon Lake (Whatcom County): ~~((Fishing))~~

(1) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device ((prohibited)) from the first Friday in October through January ((+5)) 27.

(2) Channel catfish((÷)) daily and possession limit ((two)) is 2.

Fern Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 15 season. Selective gear rules.

Ferry Lake (Ferry County): Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Finch Creek (Mason County): Anglers with disabilities who permanently use a wheelchair and possess a designated harvester companion card may fish from the ADA accessible site at the Hoodspout Salmon Hatchery, so long as those

anglers follow all applicable rules of the adjoining waters of Marine Area 12.

Fio Rito Lakes (Kittitas County): Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Finn Creek (Pacific County) (Nemah River North Fork tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Fish Lake (Chelan County): Trout: No more than two over fifteen inches in length may be retained. Perch: Daily limit 25.

Fish Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Fish Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Fish Lake (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Fisher Slough (Snohomish County): Mouth to I-5 Bridge: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Fishhook Pond (Walla Walla County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Fishtrap Creek (Whatcom County): From Koh Road to Bender Road: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Fishtrap Lake (Lincoln/Spokane counties): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Fiske Creek (Pierce County) (Puyallup River tributary): Upstream from Fiske Road: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Forde Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Fork Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary):

(1) From Forks Creek Hatchery Rack upstream 500 feet at fishing boundary sign:

(a) Closed waters except ~~((for))~~ open to anglers ~~((who permanently use a wheelchair or have a designated harvester card. All species: Night closure. Single-point barbless hooks required and stationary gear restriction from October 1 through November 30. All game fish: First Saturday in June through July 15 season and October 1 through March 31. Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained. Salmon: October 1 through November 30, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and of the three adult salmon, only two may be wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. December 1 through January 31, daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon and only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook.~~

From fishing boundary sign 500 feet above Forks Creek hatchery rack upstream. All game fish: First Saturday in

June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.)) with disabilities who permanently use a wheelchair and possess a designated harvester companion card.

(b) Night closure in effect for all species.

(c) October 1 through November 30, single-point barbless hooks required and stationary gear restriction.

(d) Open for all game fish from first Saturday in June through July 15 and October 1 through March 31:

(i) Up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(ii) Catch and release all other fish.

(e) Salmon:

(i) Open October 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 may be adult salmon and only 2 adult salmon may be wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 may be adult salmon and only one adult salmon may be wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(2) From fishing boundary sign 500 feet above Forks Creek Hatchery rack upstream to the source:

(a) Open first Saturday in June through October 31 for all game fish.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Fort Borst Park Pond (Lewis County): Open the fourth Saturday in April through last day in February ~~((season. Juveniles only))~~, except closed the Monday before Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving Day.

Fortson Mill Pond #2 (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Found Creek (Skagit County) (Cascade River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Fourth of July Lake (Adams/Lincoln counties): December 1 through March 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. Trout: No more than two over fourteen inches in length may be retained.

Fox Creek (Pierce County) (Puyallup River tributary): Upstream from Fiske Road: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Franz Lake (Skamania County): Closed waters.

Frater Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Frenchman Hills Lake (Grant County): February 1 through September 30 season.

Friday Creek (Whatcom County) (Samish River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Fulton Creek (Mason County): From mouth to falls at river mile 0.8: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

From falls at river mile 0.8 upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Gadwall Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Gale Creek (Pierce County) (South Prairie Creek tributary) upstream of confluence with Wilkeson Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Gamble Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Garfield Juvenile Pond (Whitman County): Juveniles only.

Garrard Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

George Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Geneva Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Germany Creek (Cowlitz County): From mouth to end of Germany Creek Road (approximately five miles): The first Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through March 15 season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Gibbs Lake (Jefferson County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout.

Gillette Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Gissberg Pond, North (Snohomish County): Juveniles only.

Gissberg Ponds (Snohomish County): Channel catfish: Daily limit 2, no minimum size.

Goat Creek (Okanogan County): Closed waters.

Gobar Creek (tributary to Kalama River) (Cowlitz County): The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Gold Creek, Gold Creek Pond and Outlet Channel ((f)), tributary to Keechelus Lake((g)) (Kittitas County): Closed ((waters)), including that portion of Gold Creek that flows through the dry lake bed.

Gold Creek (Okanogan County): From mouth to confluence north fork Gold Creek: Closed waters.

Goldsborough Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Golf Course Pond (Asotin County): Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Goodell Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules

and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Goodman Creek (Jefferson County)((:)), outside Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Goodwin Lake (Snohomish County): Chumming permitted.

Goose Creek (Lincoln County)((:)), within the city limits of Wilbur: ((Year around season. Juveniles and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only.))

(1) Open year-round.

(2) Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

Goose Lake, Lower (Adams County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches. Bluegill: Not more than five over six inches in length.

Goss Lake (Island County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Grade Creek (Snohomish County) (Suitttle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Grande Ronde River (Asotin County):

~~((From mouth to County Road Bridge about two and one-half miles upstream: Year round season. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor September 1 through May 31. Trout: Minimum length ten inches, maximum length twenty inches. Channel catfish: No daily limit mouth to Oregon state line.~~

~~From County Road Bridge upstream to Oregon state line and all tributaries: Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through August 31 and barbless hooks required September 1 through October 31. Additional season November 1 through April 15: Barbless hooks required. All tributaries: Closed waters. All species: Release all fish except whitefish and hatchery steelhead. Trout: Daily limit three hatchery steelhead.))~~

(1) General River Rules:

(a) For all portions of the Grande Ronde River and its tributaries that are open to game fish angling:

(i) Channel catfish have no daily limit.

(ii) There are no daily limits or size restrictions for bass or walleye.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor from September 15 through March 15.

(2) Rules by River Section:

(a) From mouth to County Road Bridge, about 2.5 miles upstream:

(i) Open year-round.

(ii) Selective gear rules apply September 1 through May 31.

(iii) Trout minimum length is 10 inches, and maximum length is 20 inches.

(b) From County Road Bridge upstream to Oregon state line and all tributaries, except Wenaha River tributaries:

(i) Selective gear rules apply the first Saturday in June through August 31.

(ii) Barbless hooks required September 1 through April 15.

(iii) Game fish open the first Saturday in June through October 31; up to 3 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(iv) Open from November 1 through April 15:

(A) Tributaries: Closed.

(B) Release all fish except whitefish and hatchery steelhead; up to 15 whitefish and 3 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Granite Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): Closed waters.

Granite Lakes (near Marblemount) (Skagit County): Grayling: Release all grayling.

Grass Creek (Grays Harbor County): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Grass Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Gray Wolf River (Clallam County): From bridge at river mile 1.0 upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Grays River (Wahkiakum County): From mouth to Highway 4 Bridge: First Saturday in June through March 15 season; and from Highway 4 Bridge to mouth of South Fork: First Saturday in June through October 15 and December 1 through March 15 season. Closed waters from 400 feet above to 200 feet above the temporary weir while the weir is installed in the river. Anti-snagging rule, night closure and stationary gear restriction from mouth to Highway 4 Bridge August 1 through November 15 and from Highway 4 Bridge to mouth of South Fork August 1 through October 15. All game fish: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: From mouth to Highway 4 Bridge: Open first Saturday in June through December 31. First Saturday in June through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook, of which no more than 2 may be adults. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho, and unmarked Chinook. Unmarked Chinook are Chinook without either a clipped ventral fin or a clipped adipose fin. From Highway 4 Bridge to South Fork: Open first Saturday in June through October 15 and December 1 through December 31. First Saturday in June through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook, of which no more than 2 may be adults. August 1 through October 15 and December 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho and unmarked Chinook.

Unmarked Chinook are Chinook without either a clipped ventral fin or a clipped adipose fin.

Grays River, East Fork (Wahkiakum County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Grays River, West Fork (Wahkiakum County): Downstream from hatchery intake/footbridge: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season, except closed waters from posted markers approximately 300 yards below the hatchery road bridge downstream to mouth October 16 through November 30. August 1 through November 15: Anti-snagging rule, night closure and stationary gear restriction. October 16 through March 15: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open from first Saturday in June through December 31. First Saturday in June through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook, of which no more than 2 may be adults. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which not more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho and unmarked Chinook. Unmarked Chinook are Chinook without either a clipped ventral fin or a clipped adipose fin.

Green Lake (Okanogan County): April 1 through November 30: Selective gear rules, and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Green Lake (Lower) (Okanogan County): April 1 through November 30: Selective gear rules, and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Green River (Cowlitz County): ~~((Closed waters: All tributaries:~~

~~From mouth to 2800 Bridge: The first Saturday in June through November 30 season except closed from 400 feet above to 400 feet below the water intake at the upper end of the hatchery grounds during the period September 1 through November 30 and from 400 feet or posted signs above and below the salmon hatchery rack when the rack is installed in the river. Anti-snagging rule and night closure September 1 through October 31 from mouth to 400 feet below salmon hatchery rack. All species: When anti-snagging rule in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Trout: Release all trout except hatchery steelhead. Salmon: Open August 1 through November 30. Daily limit 6 fish, of which not more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.~~

~~From 2800 Bridge to Miner's Creek: Closed waters.~~

~~From Miner's Creek upstream: All species: Catch and release and selective gear rules.))~~

(1) From the mouth to Miner's Creek:

(a) Closed waters:

(i) All tributaries.

(ii) From 400 feet above and 400 feet below the salmon hatchery rack (or from the posted signs above and below the salmon hatchery rack) when the rack is installed in the river.

(iii) From 400 feet below to 400 feet above the water intake at the upper end of the hatchery grounds from September 1 through November 30.

(iv) From the 2800 Bridge to Miner's Creek.

(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect September 1 through October 31 from the mouth to 400 feet below the salmon hatchery rack. When the anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained.

(c) Open for game fish the last Saturday in May through November 30:

(i) From the mouth to 400 feet below the Toutle Hatchery water intake:

(A) Open from the last Saturday in May through the first Friday in June only.

(B) Selective gear rules apply.

(C) Release all trout, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(ii) From the first Saturday in June through November 30, trout catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(d) Salmon:

(i) Open August 1 through November 30.

(ii) Daily limit 6 fish; not more than 2 adult Chinook may be retained.

(iii) Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.

(2) From Miner's Creek upstream:

(a) Open from the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

Green (Duwamish) River (King County):

(1) From the First Avenue South Bridge to Tukwila International Boulevard/Old Highway 99: ((The first Saturday in June through July 31 and September 1 through January 15 season. In years ending in odd numbers, additional season August 20 through August 31 with the following restrictions: Night closure, anti-snagging rule, bait prohibited, only 1 single-point hook may be used, and hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank. Anti-snagging rule and night closure September 1 through November 30. Fishing from any floating device prohibited November 1 through January 15. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: In years ending in odd numbers, open August 20 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum. Release Chinook. In years ending in even numbers, open September 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be adult salmon. Release Chinook.

From Tukwila International Boulevard/Old Highway 99 to the Interstate 405 Bridge: The first Saturday in June through July 31 and September 1 through January 15 season. In years ending in odd numbers, additional season August 20 through August 31 with the following restrictions: Night closure, anti-snagging rule, bait prohibited, only 1 single-point hook may be used, and hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank. Anti-snagging rule and night closure September 1 through November 30. Fishing from any floating device prohibited November 1 through January 15. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: In years ending in

odd numbers, open August 20 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum. Release Chinook. In years ending in even numbers, open September 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be adult salmon, and release Chinook.

From the Interstate 405 Bridge to South 277th Street Bridge in Auburn: Open only the first Saturday in June through July 31 and October 1 through January 15. In years ending in odd numbers, additional season September 1 through September 30 with the following restrictions: Night closure, anti-snagging rule, bait prohibited, only 1 single-point hook may be used, and hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank. Anti-snagging rule and night closure October 1 through November 30. Fishing from any floating device prohibited November 1 through January 15. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: In years ending in odd numbers, open September 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum. Release Chinook. In years ending in even numbers, open October 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be adult salmon. Release Chinook.

From the 277th Street Bridge to Auburn Black Diamond Road Bridge: Open only the first Saturday in June through August 15 and October 16 through January 31. In years ending in odd numbers, additional season September 16 through October 15 with the following restrictions: Night closure, anti-snagging rule, bait prohibited, only 1 single-point hook may be used, and hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank. Anti-snagging rule and night closure October 16 through November 30. Fishing from a floating device prohibited November 1 through January 31. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: In years ending in odd numbers, open September 16 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum. Release Chinook. In years ending in even numbers, open October 16 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be adult salmon. Release Chinook.

From the Auburn Black Diamond Road Bridge to the mouth of Cristy Creek at Flaming Geyser State Park: First Saturday in June through September 15 and November 1 through January 31 season. All species: Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through September 15 and November 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Salmon: November 1 through December 31 season. Daily limit six salmon. No more than three may be adult. Release Chinook.

From mouth of Cristy Creek at Flaming Geyser State Park to the water pipeline walk bridge (1/2 mile downstream of Tacoma Headworks Dam): The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. All species: Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Closed waters: Within 150 feet of the Palmer Pond outlet rack and within 150 feet of the mouth of Keta Creek. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open November 1 through December 31. In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum. Release Chinook. In years ending in

even numbers, daily limit 6 salmon, no more than 3 may be adult salmon. Release Chinook.

~~From Friday Creek upstream, including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.)~~

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect September 1 through November 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device November 1 through January 15.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through July 31 and September 1 through January 15; trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) In years ending in odd numbers, additional season for all game fish and salmon August 20 through August 31:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(iii) It is unlawful to use bait.

(iv) Only one single-point hook may be used. The hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank.

(v) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(e) Salmon:

(i) Release all Chinook.

(ii) In years ending in odd numbers:

(A) Open August 20 through December 31.

(B) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum.

(iii) In years ending in even numbers:

(A) Open September 1 through December 31.

(B) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(2) From Tukwila International Boulevard/Old Highway 99 to the Interstate 405 Bridge:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect September 1 through November 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device November 1 through January 15.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through July 31 and September 1 through January 15; trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) In years ending in odd numbers, additional season for all game fish and salmon August 20 through August 31:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(iii) Bait prohibited.

(iv) Only one single-point hook may be used. The hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank.

(v) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(e) Salmon, in years ending in odd numbers:

(i) Open August 20 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(f) Salmon, in years ending in even numbers:

(i) Open September 1 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(3) From the Interstate 405 Bridge to South 277th Street Bridge in Auburn:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect October 1 through November 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device November 1 through January 15.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through July 31 and October 1 through January 15; trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) In years ending in odd numbers, additional season for all game fish and salmon September 1 through September 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(iii) Bait prohibited.

(iv) Only one single-point hook may be used. The hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank.

(v) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(e) Salmon, in years ending in odd numbers:

(i) Open September 1 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(f) Salmon, in years ending in even numbers:

(i) Open October 1 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(4) From the 277th Street Bridge to Auburn-Black Diamond Road Bridge:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect October 16 through November 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device November 1 through January 31.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through August 15 and October 16 through January 31; trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) In years ending in odd numbers, additional season for all game fish and salmon September 16 through October 15:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Anti-snagging rule applies.

(iii) Bait prohibited.

(iv) Only one single-point hook may be used. The hook must measure less than 1/2 inch from point to shank.

(v) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(e) Salmon, in years ending in odd numbers:

(i) Open September 16 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(f) Salmon, in years ending in even numbers:

(i) Open October 16 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(5) From the Auburn-Black Diamond Road Bridge to the mouth of Cristy Creek at Flaming Geyser State Park:

(a) Closed waters within 150 feet of the mouth of Keta (Crisp) Creek.

(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through September 15 and November 1 through November 30.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through September 15 and November 1 through January 31; trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) Salmon:

(i) Open November 1 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release Chinook.

(6) From mouth of Cristy Creek at Flaming Geyser State Park to the water pipeline walk bridge (1/2 mile downstream of Tacoma Headworks Dam):

(a) Closed waters within 150 feet of the Palmer Pond outlet rack.

(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through November 30.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31; trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) Salmon:

(i) Open November 1 through December 31.

(ii) In years ending in odd numbers:

(A) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 may be any combination of adult coho and adult chum.

(B) Release Chinook.

(iii) In years ending in even numbers:

(A) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Release Chinook.

(7) From Friday Creek upstream, including all tributaries and their tributaries, open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Greenwater River (King County), from mouth to Greenwater Lakes: November 1 through January 31 season. Release all fish except whitefish. Whitefish gear rules.

From Greenwater Lakes upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Grimes Lake (Douglas County): June 1 through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Grizzly Lake (Skamania County): Closed waters.

Groves Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Halfmoon Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 15 season. Selective gear rules.

Halfmoon Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Halfmoon Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Halfway Creek (Lewis County) (tributary of Stillman Creek, which is a Chehalis River tributary): From mouth to second bridge crossing on Pe Ell McDonald Road: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Hamilton Creek (Skamania County): Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. All tributaries downstream from the Highway 14 Bridge: Closed waters.

Hamma Hamma River (Mason County):

(1) From mouth to four hundred feet below falls:

(a) Open the ((first)) Saturday ((in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

From falls upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season)) before Memorial Day through August 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(2) From the falls upstream: open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Hampton Lakes, Lower and Upper (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Hanaford Creek (Lewis County) (Skookumchuck River tributary): From mouth upstream: All Species: Selective gear rules. The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches.

Hancock Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. All tributary streams and the upper third of the outlet are closed waters. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Hansen Creek (Skagit County): Including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Harris Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Harris Lake (Grant County): All species: Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit 1.

Harrison Slough (Skagit County): All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Harvey Creek (tributary to Sullivan Lake) (Pend Oreille County):

From mouth to Bridge 4830 on county road (about one and one-half miles): Closed waters.

From Bridge 4830 upstream: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Hatch Lake (Stevens County): December 1 through March 31 season. All species: Catch and release except up to five rainbow trout may be retained.



Hatchery Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Haven Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Hawk Creek and tributaries (Lincoln County): Year-round season.

Hays Creek and Ponds (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Headgate Pond (Asotin County):

(1) Open to juvenile anglers, seniors, and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

(2) Open fourth Saturday in April through October 31 ((season. Juveniles, seniors and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only)).

Heart Lake (near Anacortes) (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Heins Lake (Kitsap County): Closed waters.

Hemlock Lake (Trout Creek Reservoir) (Skamania County): Closed waters.

Hen Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Heritage Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Herman Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Hicks Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Hilt Creek (Skagit County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Hog Canyon Creek (Spokane County): Hog Canyon Dam to Scroggie Road: Year-round season.

Hog Canyon Lake (Spokane County): December 1 through March 31 season. Trout: No more than two over fourteen inches in length may be retained.

Hoh River (Jefferson County):

(1) From Olympic National Park boundary upstream to DNR Oxbow Campground Boat Launch: ((All game fish: May 16 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June, open Wednesdays through Sundays, and))

(a) Open May 16 through April 15.

(b) From February 16 through April 15, wild steelhead retention allowed.

(c) From May 16 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June:

(i) Open Wednesdays through Sundays only.

(ii) Release all game fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. ((Trout: First Saturday in June through April 15 season. Minimum length fourteen inches.))

(d) From the first Saturday in June through April 15:

(i) From first Saturday in June through March 31, trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From April 1 through April 15, trout minimum length 14 inches.

(iii) From November 1 through February 15, daily limit may include one additional hatchery steelhead. ((February 16 through April 15, wild steelhead retention allowed.))

(e) Salmon open May 16 through November 30:

(i) From May 16 through August 31((-):

(A) Open Wednesday through Sunday((-) only.

(B) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)); no more than 1 ((may be an)) adult salmon((-, minimum length 12 inches)) may be retained.

(C) Release wild Chinook.

(ii) From September 1 through November 30((-):

(A) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which));

(B) No more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon((-, minimum length 12 inches)) may be retained.

(2) From DNR Oxbow Campground Boat Launch to Willoughby Creek:

(a) Open May 16 through April 15.

(i) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. ((All species:))

(ii) Selective gear rules apply August 1 through October 15 and December 1 through April 15((- Selective gear rules: All game fish:)).

(b) From May 16 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June((-):

(i) Open Wednesdays through Sundays((-, and)) only.

(ii) Release all game fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. ((All game fish:))

(c) From the first Saturday in June through April 15 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(d) Salmon((- May 16 through));

(i) Open from May 16 through August 31((-):

(A) Open Wednesdays through Sundays((-) open.

(B) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)); no more than 1 ((may be an)) adult may be retained.

(C) Release wild Chinook.

(ii) Open from October 16 through November 30((-):

(A) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which));

(B) No more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon((-, minimum length of 12 inches.)) may be retained.

(3) From Willoughby Creek to Morgan's Crossing boat launch site:

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. ((All species:))

(b) Selective gear rules apply from the first Saturday in June through October 15 and December 1 through April 15 (~~(season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches);~~ Selective gear rules. All game fish:);

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 (~~(season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches);~~ trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(d) Salmon:

(i) Open October 16 through November 30(~~);~~)

(ii) Daily limit 6 fish (~~(of which)~~); no more than 2 (~~(may be)~~) adult salmon(~~(, minimum length of 12 inches)~~) may be retained.

(4) From Morgan's Crossing Boat Launch upstream to Olympic National Park boundary below mouth of South Fork Hoh River:

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 (~~(season: Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules);~~ trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Hoh River, South Fork (Jefferson County)(~~(;)~~), outside Olympic National Park boundary:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15 (~~(season: Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules);~~).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Hoko River (Clallam County):

From mouth to upper Hoko Bridge: Permissible to fish up to the hatchery ladder, except closed to fishing from shore on the hatchery side of the river from the ladder downstream 100 feet. First Saturday in June through March 15 season. Fly fishing only September 1 through October 31. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

From upper Hoko Bridge to Ellis Creek Bridge (river mile 18.5): The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Fly fishing only. All species: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.

Homestead Lake (Grant County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one fish.

Hoquiam River, including West Fork (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From mouth to Dekay Road Bridge (West Fork):

(a) Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through the last day of February (~~(season: Single point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish);~~ trout minimum

length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(~~(;)~~) open October 1 through November 30 (~~(from mouth to Dekay Road Bridge (West Fork) on main stem);~~);

(i) Daily limit 6 fish(~~(, of which)~~); no more than 2 (~~(may be)~~) adult salmon(~~(, and of the 2 adult salmon, only 1)~~) may be (~~(a)~~) retained, and only one may be an adult wild coho.

(ii) Release Chinook and chum (~~(and Chinook)~~).

(2) From Dekay Road Bridge upstream: Open the first Saturday in June through the last day of February (~~(season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish. All species: Selective gear rules);~~);

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Hoquiam River, East Fork (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From mouth to confluence of Berryman Creek:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through the last day of February (~~(season: Single point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish);~~ trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(~~(;)~~) open October 1 through November 30(~~(;)~~);

(i) Daily limit (~~(six)~~) 6 fish(~~(, of which)~~); no more than (~~(two may be)~~) 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be (~~(a)~~) an adult wild coho.

(ii) Release Chinook and chum (~~(and Chinook)~~).

(2) From confluence of Berryman Creek upstream to Youman's Road Bridge:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day of February (~~(season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish);~~).

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Hoquiam River, Middle Fork (Grays Harbor County): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through last day of October season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Horseshoe Lake (Clark/Cowlitz counties): Trout: No more than 2 trout 20 inches or greater in length may be retained. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Horseshoe Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit 1.

Horseshoe Lake (Kitsap County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Salmon: Landlocked salmon

rules apply. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Horseshoe Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit five. Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit ten.

Horsethief Lake (Klickitat County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Hourglass Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Howard Creek (Whatcom County): Upstream from where Howard Creek flows into section 13 of township 36N, range 6E, 0.3 lineal miles upstream from the South Fork Nooksack River, and including all tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Howard Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Howe Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Howell Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Hozomeen Lake (Whatcom County): July 1 through October 31 season. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Huff Lake (Pend Oreille County): Closed waters.

Humptulips River (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From the mouth (Jessie Slough) to Ocean Beach Road (near Copalis Crossing), including all channels, sloughs, and interconnected waterways ((from mouth (Jessie Slough) to Ocean Beach Road (near Copalis Crossing))):

(a) August 31 and October 1 through November 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks required.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through March 31 ((season)), except closed September 1 through September 30((- Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through August 31 and October 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches-)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon open October 1 through January 31: ((Open))

(i) From October 1 through November 30((-):

(A) Daily limit ((of)) 6 salmon((- of which)); no more than ((three may be)) 3 adult salmon((- and of the three adult salmon, only 1 may be a Chinook and only one may be a wild coho-)) may be retained.

(B) Only one adult Chinook and one adult wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release chum. ((Open))

(ii) From December 1 through January 31((-):

(A) Daily limit ((six)) 6 salmon((- of which)); no more than ((two may be)) 2 adult salmon((- and of the two adult salmon only one)) may be ((a)) retained.

(B) Only one adult Chinook may be retained.

(C) Release chum and wild coho.

(2) From Ocean Beach Road (near Copalis Crossing) to Highway 101 Bridge:

(a) August 31 and October 1 through November 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks required.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through March 31 ((season)), except closed September 1 through September 15((- Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through August 31 and September 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches-)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon open September 16 through January 31: ((Open))

(i) From September 16 through November 30((-):

(A) Daily limit ((of)) 6 salmon((- of which)); no more than ((three may be)) 3 adult salmon((- and of the three adult salmon-)) may be retained.

(B) Only one adult may be ((a)) Chinook and only ((two)) 2 adult salmon may be wild coho.

(C) Release chum. ((Open))

(ii) From December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit ((six)) 6 salmon((- of which)); no more than ((two may be)) 2 adult salmon((- and of the two adult salmon-)) may be retained.

(B) Only one adult may be ((a)) Chinook.

(C) Release chum and wild coho.

(3) From Highway 101 Bridge to the confluence of the East and West forks:

(a) August 31 and October 1 through November 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks required.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through ((last day in February season. Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. All game fish- Additional season)) March 31:

(i) From the first Saturday in June through the last day in February; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From March 1 through March 31 ((with the following restrictions)):

(A) Release all fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(B) Selective gear rules ((and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained)) apply.

(C) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) Salmon((- Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Open Septem-

~~ber 16 through November 30.)~~ open September 16 through January 31:

(i) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(ii) From September 16 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit ~~((of))~~ 6 salmon~~((, of which))~~; no more than ~~((three may be))~~ 3 adult salmon~~((, and of the three adult salmon,))~~ may be retained.

(B) Only one ~~((may be a))~~ adult Chinook and only one ~~((may be a))~~ adult wild coho may be retained.

(C) Release chum. ~~((Open))~~

(iii) From December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit ~~((six))~~ 6 salmon ~~((of which))~~; no more than ~~((two may be))~~ 2 adult salmon may be retained, and ~~((of the two adult salmon,))~~ only one may be ~~((a))~~ an adult Chinook.

(C) Release chum and wild coho.

Humptulips River, East Fork (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From the mouth to the concrete bridge on Forest Service Road 220:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 16 through October 31.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ~~((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))~~; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(2) From the concrete bridge on Forest Service Road 220 upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through ~~((last day in))~~ October ~~((season. All species:))~~ 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Humptulips River, West Fork (Grays Harbor County):

~~(1) From mouth to Donkey Creek: ~~((The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. All game fish. Additional season))~~~~

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31:

(i) From the first Saturday in June through the last day in February; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From March 1 through March 31~~((:))~~:

(A) Selective gear rules apply.

(B) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(C) Release all fish, except up to ~~((two))~~ 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(2) From Donkey Creek upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ~~((season))~~.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

~~((Hutchinson Creek (Whateom County) (SF Nooksack tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.))~~

Hutchinson Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited.

Hylebos Creek (Pierce County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Two trout over 14 inches in length. Selective gear rules apply.

I-82 Ponds, 1 through 7 (Yakima County): Fishing from vessels equipped with internal combustion motors prohibited.

Icehouse Lake (Skamania County): Trout: No more than 2 trout 20 inches or greater in length may be retained.

Icicle River (Creek) (Chelan County):

~~((From mouth to four hundred feet below Leavenworth National Fish Hatchery rack: Closed waters. From Leavenworth National Fish Hatchery rack upstream to Leland Creek: First Saturday in June through September 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Closed waters from the mouth to Leavenworth National Fish Hatchery rack.

(2) From Leavenworth National Fish Hatchery rack upstream to Leland Creek:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through September 30.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Illabot Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Ilahahe Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size 14 inches.

Independence Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Indian Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

Indian Creek (Yakima County): ~~((From mouth to waterfall approximately six miles upstream (including the portion of the creek that flows through the dry lakebed): Closed waters. Upstream of waterfall: Eastern brook trout do not count as part of trout daily limit. Eastern brook trout: No minimum size and no daily limit.))~~

(1) Closed from the mouth to the waterfall approximately 6 miles upstream (including the portion of the creek that flows through the dry lakebed).

(2) Upstream of the waterfall approximately 6 miles upstream from the mouth:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Eastern brook trout:

(i) No size restrictions and no daily limit.

(ii) Eastern brook trout do not count as part of the trout daily limit.

Indian Heaven Wilderness Lakes (Skamania County): Trout: Daily limit three.

Ingall's Creek (Chelan County): Mouth to Wilderness boundary: Closed waters.

Isabella Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Island Lake (Kitsap County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Island Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Issaquah Creek (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Jackman Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Jackson Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Jameson Lake (Douglas County): Fourth Saturday in April through July 4 and October 1 through October 31 seasons.

Jasmine Creek (Okanogan County): Year-round season. Juveniles only.

Jefferson Creek (Mason County): ~~((First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~ Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Jefferson Park Pond (Walla Walla County): Juveniles only. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Jennings Park Pond (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Jewitt Creek (Klickitat County): Juveniles only. Trout: Daily limit five, no minimum length.

Jimmy-Come-Lately Creek (Clallam County): Mouth to confluence with East Fork: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

From confluence with East Fork upstream, including East Fork: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Joe Creek (Grays Harbor County): ~~((Upstream))~~

(1) From State Highway 109 Bridge to Ocean Beach Road Bridge:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through November 30 ~~((season. Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))~~; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(=) open ~~((only))~~ September 1 through November 30(=):

(i) Daily limit 6 fish~~((= of which))~~; no more than 2 ~~((may be))~~ adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release adult Chinook(=) and chum.

(2) From Ocean Beach Road Bridge upstream: ~~((The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. All species.))~~

(a) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through October 31; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Johns Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Johns River (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From the mouth (Highway 105 Bridge) to Ballon Creek:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ~~((season. Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish.))~~; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(=) open only October 1 through November 30(=):

(i) Daily limit 2 ~~((fish, of which 1 may be))~~ salmon; only one wild coho may be retained.

(ii) Release chum and Chinook.

(2) From Ballon Creek upstream, including North and South Forks:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through September 30, and December 1 through the last day in February ~~((season. Trout.))~~.

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, ~~((daily limit 2 fish))~~ except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Johnson Creek (Lewis County) (Cowlitz River tributary): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length ten inches.

Johnson Creek (Thurston County) (Skookumchuck River tributary): From mouth upstream: All Species: Selective gear rules. The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches.

Johnson Creek (Whatcom County): From Northern Pacific Railroad tracks to the Lawson Street footbridge in Sumas: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Jolanda Lake (Chelan County): Closed.

Jones Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Jones Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Jordan Creek (Skagit County) (Cascade River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Jorsted Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Jump-Off Joe Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Kachess Lake (Reservoir) (Kittitas County): Chumming permitted. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches. Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit sixteen.

Kachess River (Kittitas County):

(1) It is permissible to fish to base of Kachess Dam.

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))

(3) Closed waters from Kachess Lake (Reservoir) upstream to the waterfall approximately one-half mile above Mineral Creek((=Closed waters)).

Kalaloch Creek (Jefferson County)((=)), outside Olympic National Park: ((Closed waters: Those))

(1) Waters within the section posted as the Olympic National Park water supply: Closed.

(2) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season)).

(a) Selective gear rules apply. ((Trout:))

(b) Trout minimum length ((fourteen)) 14 inches. ((Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)), except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Kalama River (Cowlitz County):

((From mouth upstream to one thousand feet below fishway at upper salmon hatchery: Year round season except during the period the temporary fish rack is installed. Waters from Modrow Bridge downstream to one thousand five hundred feet below the rack are closed waters when the rack is

installed. Anti-snagging rule and night closure April 1 through October 31 from the railroad bridge below I-5 to the intake at the lower salmon hatchery. Stationary gear restriction September 1 through October 31 from the railroad bridge below I-5 to the natural gas pipeline at Mahaffey's Campground. All species: When anti-snagging rule in effect only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited upstream of Modrow Bridge. September 1 through October 31: Fly fishing only from the pipeline crossing to the posted deadline at the intake to the lower salmon hatchery. All game fish: Release all fish year round except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open year round. January 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook of which no more than 1 may be an adult salmon. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild Chinook, and wild coho.

From one thousand feet below to one thousand feet above the fishway at upper salmon hatchery: Closed waters.

From one thousand feet above the fishway at the upper salmon hatchery to Summers Creek: Year round season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Selective gear rules. All species: Release all fish.

From Summers Creek upstream to the 6420 Road at about one mile above the gate at the end of the county road: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Fly fishing only. All species: Release all fish.

From 6420 Road to Kalama Falls: Closed waters.))

(1) From the mouth upstream to 1,000 feet above the fishway at the upper salmon hatchery:

(a) Closed waters:

(i) From 1,000 feet below to 1,000 feet above the fishway at upper salmon hatchery.

(ii) From Modrow Bridge downstream to the markers 1,500 feet below the temporary rack when the rack is installed below Modrow Bridge.

(b) All other waters open year-round.

(c) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(d) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect April 1 through October 31 from the railroad bridge below I-5 to the intake at the lower salmon hatchery. When the anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained.

(e) Stationary gear restriction applies September 1 through October 31 from the railroad bridge below I-5 to the natural gas pipeline at Mahaffey's Campground.

(f) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor upstream of Modrow Bridge.

(g) Fly fishing only September 1 through October 31 from the natural gas pipeline crossing to the posted deadline at the intake to the lower salmon hatchery.

(h) Salmon:

(i) January 1 through July 31: Daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook only; no more than 1 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(ii) August 1 through December 31:

(A) Daily limit 6 salmon; no more than 2 adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(B) Release all salmon other than hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho.

(2) From 1,000 feet above the fishway at the upper salmon hatchery, upstream to Summers Creek:

(a) Open year-round.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with a motor.

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(3) From Summers Creek upstream to Kalama Falls:

(a) From the 6420 Road, approximately one mile above the gate at the end of the county road, to Kalama Falls: Closed.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with a motor.

(d) Fly fishing only.

(e) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Kalispell Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): Last Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Kapowsin Lake (Pierce County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Keechelus Lake (Reservoir) (Kittitas County): Chumming permitted. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches, additionally up to sixteen kokanee may be retained.

Kelsey Creek (tributary of Lake Washington) (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Kendall Creek (Whatcom County) (NF Nooksack tributary) above the hatchery grounds: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

~~Kennedy Creek (Mason County): ((From mouth to four hundred feet below falls: The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. Selective gear rules from Highway 101 Bridge to four hundred feet below falls except October 1 through December 31. Anti snagging rule and night closure October 1 through December 31. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open only October 1 through November 30 from mouth to northbound Highway 101 Bridge. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho.~~

~~From falls upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules:))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to 400 feet below the falls:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply from Highway 101 Bridge to 400 feet below the falls, except October 1 through December 31.~~

~~(c) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect October 1 through December 31.~~

~~(d) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(e) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open October 1 through November 30 from the mouth to the northbound Highway 101 Bridge.~~

~~(ii) Limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.~~

~~(iii) Release wild coho.~~

~~(2) From the falls upstream, including all tributaries:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply within the mainstem of Kennedy Creek.~~

Kennedy Creek Pond (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Kettle River (Stevens County):

~~((The Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length 12 inches. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.~~

~~Additional season: November 1 through May 31. Whitefish gear rules apply:)) (1) From the mouth to Barstow Bridge, the tributaries are open from the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(2) From Barstow Bridge upstream:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial day until October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply, except for juvenile anglers, from the Canadian border upstream to Highway 21 Bridge at Curlew.~~

~~(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine.~~

~~(d) Trout minimum length 12 inches.~~

~~(e) It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.~~

~~(f) Open November 1 through May 31 for whitefish only. Whitefish gear rules apply as provided in WAC 220-56-100.~~

~~(3) Tributaries to Kettle River, from Barstow Bridge upstream; open from the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Ki Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Kidney Lake (Skamania County): Fourth Saturday in April through last day in February season.

Kimball Creek (near Snoqualmie) (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only. Trout: No minimum length.

Kindy Creek (Skagit County) (Cascade River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

King's Creek (Pierce County) (Puyallup River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Kings Lake and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): Closed waters.

Kings Lake Bog (King County): Closed waters.

Kitsap Lake (Kitsap County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Kiwanis Pond (Kittitas County): ~~((Juveniles and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only.))~~ Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

Klaus Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Closed waters: The inlet and outlet to first Weyerhaeuser spur.

Klickitat River (Klickitat County):

From mouth to Fisher Hill Bridge: April 1 through January 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure April 1 through May 31 and August 1 through January 31. When the anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Game fish: Closed December 1 through January 31. Release game fish other than hatchery steelhead April 1 through May 31. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches. Steelhead and salmon: Open April 1 through May 31 on Sundays, Mondays, Wednesdays and Saturdays only; daily limit 2 hatchery steelhead or 2 salmon, or 1 of each. Release wild Chinook. Salmon: Open June 1 through January 31. June 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild Chinook. August 1 through January 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook.

From Fisher Hill Bridge to four hundred feet above # 5 fishway: Closed waters.

From four hundred feet above # 5 fishway to the Yakama Indian Reservation boundary: June 1 through November 30 season, except waters from boundary markers above Klickitat salmon hatchery to boundary markers below hatchery are closed waters. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches. Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply. Salmon: Open only June 1 through November 30 from 400 feet above No. 5 Fishway to boundary markers below Klickitat Salmon Hatchery. June 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 salmon. Release adult salmon and release wild Chinook. August 1 through October 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. November 1 through November 30, daily limit 6 fish. Release Chinook.

From the Yakama Indian Reservation boundary upstream to source, including all tributaries: Closed waters.

Klinline Ponds (Clark County): ~~((Trout:))~~

(1) Closed the Monday before Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving Day.

(2) No more than 2 trout 20 inches in length or greater may be retained.

Koeneman Lake (Fern Lake) (Kitsap County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Kokanee Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Kress Lake (Cowlitz County): ~~((Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout 20 inches in length or greater may be retained. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.))~~

(1) Closed the Monday before Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving Day.

(2) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(3) No more than 2 trout 20 inches in length or greater may be retained.

(4) Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Lacamas Creek (Clark County): From mouth to footbridge at lower falls: First Saturday in June through August 31 season. From footbridge at lower falls upstream: Permissible to fish upstream to the base of Lacamas Lake Dam.

Lacamas Creek, tributary of Cowlitz River (Lewis County): Trout: Release all trout except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Ladder Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Lake Creek (Okanogan County): Mouth to Black Lake: Closed waters. Black Lake to Three Prong Creek: Closed waters.

Langlois Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Latah (Hangman) Creek (Spokane County): Year-round season.

Lawrence Lake (Thurston County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

~~((Leader Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.))~~

LeBar Creek (Mason County): From the falls at river mile one upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Le Clerc Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

Ledbetter Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Ledking Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.



Leech Lake (White Pass area) (Yakima County): Fly fishing only. Fishing prohibited from floating devices equipped with motors. Trout: No more than one over 14 inches in length.

Leland Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Leland Lake (Jefferson County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Lemna Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Lena Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Lenice Lake (Grant County): March 1 through November 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Lena Lake, Lower (Jefferson County): Closed waters: Inlet stream from mouth upstream to footbridge (about one hundred feet).

Lenore Lake (Grant County): Closed waters: Area within two hundred yard radius of trash rack leading to the irrigation pumping station (south end of lake) and area approximately one hundred yards beyond the mouth of inlet stream to State Highway 17. March 1 through May 31 season: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish. Additional season the first Saturday in June through November 30: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Leo Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Lewis River (Clark County)(=), from mouth to forks:

(1) ~~Open year-round ((season. All species: Two pole fishing allowed with two pole endorsement from Railroad Bridge near Kuhns Road upstream to mouth of East Fork Lewis)).~~

(2) Fishing two poles is permissible from Railroad Bridge near Kuhns Road upstream to mouth of East Fork Lewis, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(3) Trout: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

(4) Salmon(=), open year-round(=):

(a) From January 1 through July 31(=):

(i) Daily limit ((six) 6 hatchery Chinook ((of which not)).

(ii) No more than ((+)) one hatchery Chinook may be an adult ((salmon)).

(b) From August 1 through September 30(=):

(i) Daily limit 6 hatchery salmon((=of which)); no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook.

(ii) Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho.

(c) From October 1 through December 31(=):

(i) Daily limit 6 salmon((=of which)); no more than 2 may be adult Chinook.

(ii) Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho.

(5) Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in adjacent waters of mainstem Columbia River.

Lewis River, East Fork (Clark/Skamania counties): Closed waters: From the posted markers at the lower end of Big Eddy to one hundred feet above Lucia Falls; from four hundred feet below to four hundred feet above Molton Falls; from four hundred feet below Horseshoe Falls upstream including all tributaries above Horseshoe Falls.

Mouth to 400 feet below Horseshoe Falls: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season. Trout: Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Mouth to top boat ramp at Lewisville Park: Additional April 16 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Lewis River, North Fork (Clark/Skamania counties):

From mouth to Colvin Creek: Year-round season except those waters shoreward of the cable buoy and corkline at the mouth of the Lewis River Salmon Hatchery fish ladder are closed waters. All species: Fishing two poles ((fishing allowed with two pole endorsement)) is permissible from mouth to Johnson Creek, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement. Anti-snagging rule and night closure April 1 through November 30 from Johnson Creek to Colvin Creek. When anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Trout: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open year-round. January 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook of which only 1 may be an adult salmon. August 1 through September 14, daily limit 6 hatchery salmon, of which no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook. Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho. September 15 through December 31, daily limit 6 salmon, of which no more than 2 adult Chinook may be retained. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in waters of mainstem Columbia River adjacent to mouth of Lewis River.

From mouth of Colvin Creek to overhead powerlines at Merwin Dam: December 16 through September 30 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure April 1 through September 30. When anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Trout: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open only January 1 through September 30 and December 16 through December 31. January 1 through July 31, daily limit 6 hatchery Chinook of which only 1 may be an adult salmon. August 1 through September 14, daily limit 6 hatchery salmon, of which no more than 2 may be adult hatchery Chinook. Release all salmon except hatchery Chinook and hatchery coho September 15 through September 30

and December 16 through December 31. Daily limit 6 salmon, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release all salmon except Chinook and hatchery coho. Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in waters of mainstem Columbia River adjacent to mouth of Lewis River.

From overhead powerlines at Merwin Dam to Merwin Dam: Closed waters.

From the cable crossing 1,300 feet below Yale Dam to Yale Dam: Closed waters.

Within Lewis River Power Canal: From the fishing pier to the access road at Swift Dam: Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device prohibited. Trout: No minimum size, daily limit 5.

From Eagle Cliff Bridge to lower falls including all tributaries: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Liberty Lake (Spokane County): March 1 through October 31 season.

Lilliwaup River (Mason County): Mouth to 200 feet below falls: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

From falls upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Lilly Lake (Chelan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. July 5 through October 31, selective gear rules, and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Lime Creek (Snohomish County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Limerick Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Lincoln Creek, including South Fork (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Lincoln Pond (Clallam County): Juveniles only.

Lions Park Pond (Walla Walla County): Juveniles only. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Little Ash Lake (Skamania County): Trout: No more than 2 trout 20 inches in length or greater may be retained.

Little Bear Creek (tributary of Sammamish River) (Snohomish/King counties): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Little Hoko River (Clallam County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. All species: Release all fish.

Little Hoquiam River (Grays Harbor County): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Little Klickitat River (Klickitat County): Within Goldendale city limits: Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only. Trout: Daily limit five, no minimum length.

Little Lost Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Little Mission Creek (Mason County) from falls upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Little Naches River (Yakima County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules(~~(—Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor)~~) apply.

Little Nisqually River (Lewis County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Little North River Creek and all forks (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Little Pend Oreille River (Stevens County): (~~From the Little Pend Oreille wildlife refuge boundary about 1 mile downstream from the refuge headquarters office to Crystal Falls: Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 season. Selective gear rules, and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish except up to five Eastern brook trout may be retained.~~)

(1) From the Little Pend Oreille wildlife refuge boundary approximately 1 mile downstream from the refuge headquarters office, to Crystal Falls:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 5 eastern brook trout.

(2) All tributaries to the Little Pend Oreille River are open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Little Quilcene River (Jefferson County): From mouth to the Little Quilcene River Bridge on Penny Creek Road: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules, unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor, and release all fish. Closed waters: Mouth to Highway 101 Bridge September 1 through October 31.

From Little Quilcene River Bridge on Penny Creek Road upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Little Scandia Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches.

Little Spokane River (Spokane County):

~~((From mouth to SR 291 Bridge: Year-round season:~~

~~From SR 291 Bridge upstream to the West Branch: Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.~~

~~Upstream from bridge at Frideger Road: Closed waters: From the inlet to Chain Lake upstream one-quarter mile to the railroad crossing culvert. Trout: Release kokanee taken upstream from bridge-)) (1) Open year-round from mouth to SR 291 Bridge.~~

~~(2) From SR 291 Bridge upstream to the West Branch:~~

~~(a) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.~~

~~(b) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.~~

~~(3) From the West Branch upstream:~~

~~(a) Closed waters from the inlet of Chain Lake upstream one-quarter mile to the railroad crossing culvert.~~

~~(b) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(c) Release kokanee taken upstream from the bridge at Frideger Rd. including the waters of Chain Lake.~~

~~(4) All tributaries to the Little Spokane River, not otherwise listed in this document, are open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Little Twin Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Little Twin Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31.

Little Wenatchee River (Chelan County): From Lake Wenatchee to the falls below U.S. Forest Service Road 6700 Bridge at Riverside Campground: Closed waters.

Little White Salmon River (Skamania County): ~~((Closed waters: From the orange fishing boundary markers at Drano Lake upstream to the intake near the Little White Salmon National Fish Hatchery north boundary. Trout: Daily limit five. Drano Lake (waters downstream of markers on point of land downstream and across from Little White Salmon National Fish Hatchery): Night closure March 16 through June 30. All species: Anglers may fish with two poles provided they have a two pole endorsement from May 12 through June 30 and from September 15 through December 31. The area west of a line projected from the easternmost pillar of the Highway 14 Bridge to a posted marker on the north shore: Open only to bank fishing from April 16 through June 30. Anti-snagging rule August 1 through December 31. Year-round season; except closed Wednesdays beginning the second Wednesday in April through June 30, closed from 6 p.m. Tuesdays through 6 p.m. Wednesdays during October, closed for game fish other than trout during April, release all trout except hatchery steelhead, and trout other than steelhead closed March 16 through July 31. Trout: August 1 through March 15, daily limit of two hatchery steelhead. Salmon and steelhead: March 16 through July 31, daily limit of two hatchery steelhead or two hatchery Chinook, or one of each.~~

~~Salmon: Open August 1 through December 31. Daily limit six fish of which no more than two may be adult salmon-))~~

~~(1) Closed waters from the orange fishing boundary markers at Drano Lake upstream to the intake near the north boundary of the Little White Salmon National Fish Hatchery.~~

~~(2) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(3) Trout daily limit 5.~~

Lone Lake (Island County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one, minimum length 18 inches.

Long Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. Unlawful to use flies containing lead. Unlawful to fish from floating devices equipped with motors.

Long Beach Peninsula waterways and lakes (Pacific County): All game fish: Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Long Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Long Lake (Thurston County): ~~((Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season-))~~ Trout(~~(=)~~) daily limit 5(~~(=)~~); no more than ~~((two))~~ 2 over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Long's Pond (Thurston County): Juveniles only.

Loomis Lake (Pacific County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Loomis Pond (Grays Harbor County): Closed waters.

Loon Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit five, except no more than two over twenty inches in length may be retained. Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit ten.

Lost Lake (Kittitas County): Trout: Not more than 1 fish over 14 inches in length.

Lost Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Lost Lake (Okanogan County): Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Lost River (Okanogan County):

~~((From mouth to mouth of Monument Creek: Closed waters:~~

~~From mouth of Monument Creek to outlet of Cougar Lake: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit. Dolly Varden/Bull Trout daily limit two, minimum length fourteen inches-)) (1) Closed from mouth to mouth of Monument Creek.~~

(2) From mouth of Monument Creek to outlet of Cougar Lake:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Trout:

(i) Minimum length 14 inches.

(ii) It is permissible to retain up to 2 Dolly Varden/Bull Trout, minimum length 14 inches, as part of the daily trout limit.

Love Lake (Clark County): Closed waters.

Lower Salmon Creek and all forks (Grays Harbor/Pacific counties) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Lucas Creek (Lewis County) (tributary to the Newaukum River North Fork): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Catch and release only. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Lucky Duck Pond (Stevens County): Juveniles only.

Ludlow Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Ludlow Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Lyle Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Lyle Creek (King County) (White River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Lyre River (Clallam County):

From mouth to falls near river mile 3: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

From falls to Olympic National Park boundary: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. All species: Release all fish.

Mad River (Chelan County): From mouth upstream to Jimmy Creek: Closed waters.

Maggie Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through November 30 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Malaney Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Manastash Creek (Kittitas County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules apply.

Maple Creek (Whatcom County) (NF Nooksack tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Marble Creek (Skagit County) (Cascade River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

~~((Malaney Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.))~~

Margaret Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Marsh Creek (Snohomish County) (Sultan River tributary) ~~((and its tributaries, including beaver ponds, above the falls at its mouth: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~: Above the falls and upstream, including tributaries and beaver ponds: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Marshal Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Martha Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Martha Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Matheny Creek (Jefferson County) (Queets River tributary) ~~((=)),~~ outside Olympic National Park: ~~((First))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 (season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches).

(2) Selective gear rules (Other game fish: Selective gear rules) apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Mattoon Lake (Kittitas County): Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited.

May Creek (tributary of Lake Washington) (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Mayfield Lake (Reservoir) (Lewis County): Mayfield Dam to 400 feet below Mossyrock Dam: Closed waters: Tacoma Power safety signs at Onion Rock Bridge to Mossyrock Dam. Trout and salmon: Minimum length eight inches. Trout: Release cutthroat. Release rainbow trout except rainbow trout with a clipped adipose fin and a healed scar at the site of the clipped fin. Salmon: Open only September 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.

McAllister Creek (Thurston County): Barbless hooks required. First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open July 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish and up to two adults may be retained.

McCabe Pond (Kittitas County): Fishing from any floating device prohibited. All species: Five fish daily limit for all species combined.

McDonald Creek (Clallam County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

McDowell Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. All species: Release all fish.

McIntosh Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

McLane Creek (Thurston County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Night closure August 1 through October 31. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

McLane Creek Ponds (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

McManaman Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

McMurray Lake (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Medical Lake (Spokane County): March 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length fourteen inches.

Medical Lake, West (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Melbourne Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Mercer Creek (Kittitas County): That portion within Ellensburg city limits: Juveniles only.

Mercer Slough (tributary of Lake Washington) (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Merrill Lake (Cowlitz County): All species: Fly fishing only and release all fish. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine.

Merritt Lake (Chelan County): Trout: Daily limit sixteen.

Merry Lake (Grant County): March 1 through November 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Merwin Lake (Reservoir) (Clark/Cowlitz County): (~~Salmon~~)

(1) Landlocked salmon rules apply.

(2) Kokanee daily limit is 10; kokanee do not count as part of the trout daily limit.

Methow River (Okanogan County): (~~Mouth to County Road 1535 (Burma Road) Bridge: Closed waters. County Road 1535 (Burma Road) Bridge to the Hwy 153 Bridge at McFarland Creek: The first Saturday in June through September 15 season: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish. Highway 153 Bridge at McFarland Creek to Foghorn Dam: The first Saturday in June through September 30 season: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish. Foghorn Dam to Weeman Bridge: The first Saturday in June through August 15 season: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish. Upstream from Weeman Bridge to the falls above Brush Creek: Closed waters the first Saturday in June through October 31. Additional season Gold Creek to falls above Brush Creek: December 1 through March 31. Whitefish gear rules apply.~~)

Methow River tributaries not otherwise provided for: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Maximum length twenty inches.

Middle Nemah Pond (Pacific County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season:))

(1) From the mouth to County Road 1535 (Burma Road) Bridge: Closed.

(2) From County Road 1535 (Burma Road) Bridge to Gold Creek:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through September 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(3) From Gold Creek to Foghorn Dam:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through September 30.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(4) From Foghorn Dam to Weeman Bridge:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through August 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(5) From Weeman Bridge to the falls above Brush Creek: closed waters the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(6) From Gold Creek to falls above Brush Creek:

(a) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only.

(b) Whitefish gear rules apply.

(7) Methow River tributaries not otherwise provided for:  
(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Trout maximum length 20 inches.

Milk Creek (Snohomish County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Mill Creek (Chelan County): Closed waters.

Mill Creek (Cowlitz County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 and November 1 through March 15 seasons. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Mill Creek (Lewis County): Additional season December 1 through December 31, mouth to hatchery road crossing culvert. Anti-snagging rule and night closure. All species: Release all fish except that up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Mill Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Mill Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Mill Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

Mill Creek (Walla Walla County):

From mouth to Bennington Dam: Closed waters.

From Bennington Dam upstream: All tributaries: Closed waters. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Barbless hooks required September 1 through October 31. Trout: Release all steelhead.

Mill Creek Pond (Grays Harbor County): Juveniles only.

Mill Pond (Auburn) (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only except open to all ages during Free Fishing Weekend (as defined in WAC 220-56-160).

Mill Pond (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Mima Creek (Thurston County) (Black River tributary): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Mineral Creek (tributary to upper Kachess River) (Kittitas County): From mouth to Wilderness Boundary: Closed waters.

Mineral Creek (tributary to Nisqually River), and Mineral Creek, North Fork (Lewis County): Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Mineral Lake (Lewis County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Minter Creek (Pierce/Kitsap counties), from mouth to the hatchery rack: ((Salmon: Open only))

(1) Open for trout only the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) Minimum length 14 inches.

(2) Open for salmon November 1 through December 31 from the mouth to the fishing boundary markers approximately 50 feet downstream of the hatchery rack.

(a) Night closure in effect.

(b) Daily limit 4 chum only.

Mirror Lake (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Mission Lake (Kitsap County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Mitchell Creek (Lewis County) (tributary to the Newaukum River North Fork): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Catch and release only. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Moclips River (Grays Harbor County), from mouth to the Quinault Indian Reservation boundary: Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ~~((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches))~~.

(1) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(2) It is permissible to retain steelhead ((having)) with a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.

Molson Lake (Okanogan County): Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited.

Monte Cristo Lake (Snohomish County): ~~((The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and catch and release except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~Moose Pond (Pacific County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Catch and release except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

Monument Creek (Okanogan County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules apply.

Moran Slough (including inlet and outlet streams) (Grant County): Closed waters.

Morgan Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Morse Creek (Clallam County), from mouth to Port Angeles Dam: December 1 through January 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

From Port Angeles Dam upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Moses Lake (Grant County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, only crappie more than nine inches in length may be retained. Bluegill: Daily limit five, only bluegill more than eight inches in length may be retained. Walleye: Daily limit 8 walleye. Minimum length twelve inches. No more than one walleye over 22 inches in length may be retained. Yellow perch: Daily limit 25 yellow perch.

Mosquito Creek (Jefferson County)(~~(=)~~) outside Olympic National Park upstream to the Goodman 3000 Mainline Bridge:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

Mox Chehalis Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Mountain Lake (San Juan County): Trout: Daily limit may not contain more than one trout over 18 inches in length.

Mud Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Mud Lake (Yakima County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Mudget Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Munn Lake (Thurston County): All species: Selective gear rules, unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor, and release all fish.

Muskegon Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit two.

Myron Lake (Yakima County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Mystic Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Naches River (Yakima/Kittitas counties):

From the mouth to Little Naches River: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches, maximum length twenty inches. Release trout the first Saturday in June through October 31 from confluence with Tieton River to mouth of Rattle Snake Creek. Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.

Nahwatzel Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Naneum Creek (Kittitas County): ~~Selective gear rules((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor)) apply.~~

Naneum Pond (Kittitas County): Juveniles only.

Napeequa River (Chelan County): Mouth to Twin Lakes Creek: Closed waters.

Naselle River (Pacific/Wahkiakum counties): ~~((All species: Night closure and anti-snagging rule August 1 through November 30, stationary gear restriction on the South Fork upstream to the Highway 4 Bridge August 1 through December 31.~~

~~From Highway 101 Bridge to the Highway 4 Bridge: All game fish: First Saturday in June through April 15 season. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: Open August 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon and of these three adult fish, no more than two may be wild adult coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Additional season December 1 through January 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon and of these two adult fish, no more than one may be a wild adult coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Sturgeon: Open year-round.~~

~~From the Highway 4 Bridge to the Crown Mainline (Salme) Bridge: Closed waters: Area from four hundred feet below falls in Sec. 6, T10N, R8W (Wahkiakum County) to falls, and from hatchery attraction channel downstream four hundred feet. Waters from the temporary hatchery weir downstream to Highway 4 are closed when the weir is installed. All species: Night closure, anti-snagging rule, barbless hooks required, and stationary gear restriction August 1 through November 30. All game fish: First Saturday in June through April 15 season. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: August 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon and of these three adult fish, no more than two may be wild adult coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Additional season December 1 through January 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon and of these two adult fish, no more than one may be a wild adult coho. Release chum and wild Chinook.~~

~~From the Crown Mainline (Salme) Bridge to the North Fork: The first Saturday in June through April 15 season. Night closure and anti-snagging rule August 6 through November 30. All game fish: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.~~

~~From mouth of North Fork upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All game fish: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.))~~

(1) From the Highway 101 Bridge to the Highway 4 Bridge:

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect August 1 through November 30.

(b) Stationary gear restriction applies August 1 through December 31 from the South Fork upstream to the Highway 4 Bridge.

(c) From the first Saturday in June through April 15: Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day.

(d) Salmon:

(i) Open from August 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and no more than 2 may be wild adult coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and no more than one may be a wild adult coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(e) Sturgeon open year-round.

(2) From the Highway 4 Bridge to the Crown Mainline (Salme) Bridge:

(a) Closed waters:

(i) From the falls in Sec. 6, T10N, R8W (Wahkiakum County) downstream 400 feet.

(ii) From the hatchery attraction channel downstream 400 feet.

(iii) From the temporary hatchery weir downstream to Highway 4 when the weir is installed.

(b) Night closure, anti-snagging rule, barbless hooks required, and stationary gear rules in effect from August 1 through November 30.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15: release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

(d) Salmon:

(i) Open August 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and no more than 2 may be wild adult coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and no more than one may be a wild adult coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(3) From the Crown Mainline (Salme) Bridge to the North Fork:

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect August 6 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through April 15: release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day.

(4) From mouth of the North Fork upstream: Open the first Saturday in June through October 31:

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to hatchery steelhead per day.

Naselle River, North Fork (Pacific County): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

~~Naselle River, South Fork (Pacific County): ((From mouth to Bean Creek: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through last day in February season, except sturgeon. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Selective gear rules first Saturday in June through August 15. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 16 through November 30. Release game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Sturgeon: Open year-round.))~~

(1) Selective gear rules apply first Saturday in June through August 15.

(2) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 16 through November 30.

(3) Open from the mouth to Bean Creek from the first Saturday in June through the last day in February for all game fish, except sturgeon.

(4) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day.

(5) Sturgeon open year-round.

Nason Creek (Chelan County): ~~((From the mouth upstream to Smith Brook: Closed waters.~~

~~From Smith Brook to Stevens Creek: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Closed waters from the mouth upstream to Smith Brook.

(2) From Smith Brook to Stevens Creek:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Negro Creek (Lincoln County): Year-round season from mouth at Sprague Lake to the fish barrier dam at Fishtrap Lake.

Negro Creek (Whitman County): Fourth Saturday in April through July 15 season.

Neil Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary): From mouth to USFS 22 Road: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Nemah River, Middle Fork (Pacific County):

~~((From mouth upstream to the Department of Natural Resources bridge on the Middle Nemah A-Line Road: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead~~



may be retained. Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required August 1 through November 30. Salmon: Open August 1 through January 31. Daily limit 6, of which only 2 may be adult salmon. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.

From the Department of Natural Resources bridge on the Middle Nemah A-Line Road upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Night closure and anti-snagging rule August 16 through November 30.)

(1) From the mouth upstream to the Department of Natural Resources bridge on the Middle Nemah A-Line Road:

(a) Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required August 1 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open August 1 through January 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release wild Chinook, wild coho, and chum.

(2) From the Department of Natural Resources bridge on the Middle Nemah A-Line Road upstream:

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31:

(i) Selective gear rules apply.

(ii) Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Nemah River, North Fork (Pacific County):

From Highway 101 Bridge upstream to bridge on Nemah Valley Road: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Night closure, single-point barbless hooks required, and stationary gear restriction from August 1 through November 30. Salmon: Open August 1 through November 30. Daily limit 6, of which only 3 may be adult salmon and of the three adults, only two may be wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Open December 1 through January 31. Daily limit six fish, of which only two ((~~may~~)) may be adult salmon and of the two adults, only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook.

From Nemah Valley Road upstream to Nemah Hatchery: Closed waters August 1 through November 15.

From bridge on Nemah Valley Road upstream to Cruiser Creek: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Night closure and anti-snagging rule August 16 through November 30. Selective gear rules December 1 through March 31.

Nemah River, South Fork (Pacific County):

~~((From mouth (Lynn Point, 117 degrees true to opposite shore) to confluence with Middle Fork Nemah River: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required September 1 through November 30. Salmon: Open only September 1 through January 31. Daily limit 6, of which only 2 may be adult salmon. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.

From confluence with Middle Fork Nemah River upstream to second Highway 101 Bridge crossing: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.)

(1) From the mouth (Lynn Point, 117 degrees true to opposite shore) to confluence with Middle Fork Nemah River:

(a) Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required September 1 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31 season: release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

(c) Salmon open September 1 through January 31:

(i) Daily limit 6; only 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release wild Chinook, wild coho, and chum.

(2) From confluence with Middle Fork Nemah River upstream to the second Highway 101 Bridge crossing:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

Newaukum River, including South Fork (Lewis County):

(1) From the mouth to Leonard Road near Onalaska: ~~((First Saturday in June through March 31 season. All species: Night closure and single point barbless hooks required from August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.))~~

(a) Night closure in effect and single-point barbless hooks required from August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(=) open ((~~only~~)) October 1 through the last day in February(=):

(i) From October 1 through November 30(=):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((~~fish, of which~~)); no more than ((~~three may be~~)) 3 adult salmon may be retained, and ((~~of the three adult salmon~~)) only two may be adult wild coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum ((~~and Chinook~~)).

(ii) From December 1 through the last day in February(=):

(A) Daily limit 6 ((~~fish, of which~~)); no more than 2 ((~~may be~~)) adult salmon may be retained, and ((~~of the adult salmon~~)) only one may be ((a)) an adult wild coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum ((~~and Chinook~~)).

(2) From Leonard Road near Onalaska to Highway 508 Bridge near Kearny Creek: ~~((All species:))~~

(a) Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required from August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31 ~~((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))~~

(3) From Highway 508 Bridge upstream: ~~((All species:))~~

(a) Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required from August 16 through ~~((November 30))~~ October 31.

(b) ~~Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: Trout: Catch and release only. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).~~

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) Release all trout.

Newaukum River, Middle Fork (Lewis County)~~((:)),~~ from the mouth to Tauscher Road Bridge:

(1) ~~Open the first Saturday in June to March 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).~~

(2) ~~Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.~~

Newaukum River, North Fork (Lewis County)~~((:)),~~ from the mouth to ~~((four hundred))~~ 400 feet below Chehalis city water intake:

(1) ~~Open the first Saturday in June through March 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).~~

(2) ~~Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.~~

Newhalem Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Newhalem Ponds (Whatcom County): Closed waters.

New Pond Creek (Pierce County) (South Prairie Creek tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Newman Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Newskah Creek (Grays Harbor County): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules.

Niawiakum River (Pacific County): From Highway 101 Bridge to the South Bend/Palix Road Bridge: Night closure and single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. All game fish: First Saturday in June through November 30 season. Salmon: Open only September 1 through November 30. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.

Nile Creek (Yakima County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules apply.

Nile Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Nisqually River (Pierce County): ~~((From mouth to Military Tank Crossing Bridge: July 1 through November 30 season. Anti-snagging rule, night closure, and barbless hooks required August 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum~~

length fourteen inches. Additional season December 1 through January 31. All species: Release all species except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open July 1 through January 31. July 1 through October 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 3 may be adult salmon, and of the adult salmon only 2 may be any combination of chum and coho. Release wild Chinook. November 1 through January 31, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild Chinook.

From Military Tank Crossing Bridge to four hundred feet below LaGrande Powerhouse: July 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

From Alder Reservoir upstream including all tributaries: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.)

(1) ~~From the mouth to Military Tank Crossing Bridge:~~

(a) ~~Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect and barbless hooks required August 1 through November 30.~~

(b) ~~Open July 1 through November 30; trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

(c) ~~Open December 1 through January 31; release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.~~

(d) ~~Salmon:~~

(i) ~~Open from July 1 through October 31:~~

(A) ~~Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 adults may be any combination of chum and coho.~~

(B) ~~Release wild Chinook.~~

(ii) ~~Open November 1 through January 31:~~

(A) ~~Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.~~

(B) ~~Release wild Chinook.~~

(2) ~~From Military Tank Crossing Bridge to 400 feet below LaGrande Powerhouse:~~

(a) ~~Open July 1 through October 31.~~

(b) ~~Selective gear rules apply.~~

(c) ~~Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.~~

(3) ~~From Alder Reservoir upstream including all tributaries:~~

(a) ~~Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

(b) ~~Selective gear rules apply.~~

(c) ~~Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

Nookachamps Creek (Skagit County): Including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Nooksack River (Whatcom County): From Lummi Indian Reservation boundary to yellow marker at the FFA High School barn at Deming: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure the first Saturday in June through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: In odd years, open July 16 through August 31 from Lummi Indian Reservation boundary to Highway 544 Bridge at Everson. Daily limit 4 pink salmon only. Bait prohibited. Only single-point hook

may be used, hook must measure less than 1/2" from point to shank. Open September 1 through December 31. Daily limit 2 salmon, plus 2 additional coho, except release wild Chinook September 1 through September 30.

From yellow marker at the FFA High School barn in Deming to confluence of the forks: October 1 through January 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure October 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Salmon: Open October 1 through December 31. Daily limit 2 salmon, plus 2 additional coho.

Nooksack River, North Fork (Whatcom County): ~~((From mouth to Maple Creek: First Saturday in June through February 15 season. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with a motor November 1 through February 15. First Saturday in June through November 30 night closure and anti snagging rule. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Salmon: Open only October 1 through November 30 from mouth to Maple Creek. Minimum size twelve inches; daily limit 2, plus 2 additional coho.~~

~~From Maple Creek to Nooksack Falls: First Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. November 1 through January 31 unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~Above Nooksack Falls including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to Maple Creek:~~

~~(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect from the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with a motor from November 1 through February 15.~~

~~(c) Open the first Saturday in June through February 15.~~

~~(d) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(e) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open October 1 through November 30.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 2 salmon, plus 2 additional coho may be retained.~~

~~(2) From Maple Creek to Nooksack Falls:~~

~~(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with a motor from November 1 through January 31.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(c) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(d) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(3) Waters above Nooksack Falls, including all tributaries and their tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Nooksack River, Middle Fork (Whatcom County) ~~((mouth to city of Bellingham diversion dam: First Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout minimum size 14 inches. November 1 through January 31—Motors prohibited.~~

~~Above diversion dam, including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.)):~~

~~(1) From the mouth to the city of Bellingham diversion dam:~~

~~(a) It is unlawful to use motors November 1 through January 31.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(c) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(d) Trout minimum size 14 inches.~~

~~(2) Waters above the diversion dam, including all tributaries and their tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Nooksack River, South Fork (Skagit/Whatcom counties): ~~((From mouth to Skookum Creek: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules. Release all game fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Night closure the first Saturday in June through November 30. Salmon: Open only October 1 through December 31. Daily limit 2 salmon, plus 2 additional coho. Release chum. In years ending in odd numbers, release pink salmon.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to Skookum Creek:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(b) Night closure in effect the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~(c) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(d) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~(e) Catch and release only, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.~~

~~(f) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open October 1 through December 31.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 2 salmon, plus 2 additional coho.~~

~~(iii) Release chum.~~

~~(iv) In years ending in odd numbers, release pink salmon.~~

~~(2) From Wanlick Creek upstream, and including all tributaries:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(b) Fly fishing only.~~

~~(c) Catch and release only.~~

No Name Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

North Creek (Okanogan County): From mouth to falls at river mile 0.8: Closed waters.

North Creek (tributary of Sammamish River) (Snohomish/King counties): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

North Elton Ponds (Yakima County): December 1 through March 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited. Trout: Daily limit two.

North Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

North Potholes Reserve Ponds (Grant County): February 1 through the day before opening of waterfowl season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited, except float tubes permitted.

North River (Grays Harbor/Pacific counties): ~~((From Highway 105 Bridge to Salmon Creek (located approximately two~~

miles upstream from Highway 101): All species: Night closure and single point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. All game fish: Release all fish except that up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: Open September 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and only two adults may be wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Open December 1 through December 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon, and only one adult may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Sturgeon: Year-round season. Minimum fork length 38 inches. Maximum fork length 54 inches. Daily limit one fish.

From Salmon Creek (located approximately two miles upstream from Highway 101) to Fall River: All species: Night closure and anti-snagging rule from August 16 through November 30. The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. All game fish: Release all fish except that up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: Open October 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and only two adults may be wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Open December 1 through December 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon, and only one adult may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook.

From Fall River to Raimie Creek: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All game fish: Release all fish except that up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.)

(1) From the Highway 105 Bridge to Salmon Creek (located approximately two miles upstream from Highway 101):

(a) Night closure in effect and single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February: release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open September 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 adults may be wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through December 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one adult may be a wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(d) Sturgeon open year-round.

(2) From Salmon Creek (located approximately two miles upstream from Highway 101) to Fall River:

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect from August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February: release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open October 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 adults may be wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through December 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one adult may be a wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(3) From Fall River to Raimie Creek:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Northern State Hospital Pond (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Nunnally Lake (Grant County): March 1 through November 30 season. Closed waters: Outlet stream of Nunnally Lake. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one.

Oak Creek (Yakima County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules apply.

Ohanapecosh Creek (tributary to Cowlitz River) (Lewis/Pierce counties): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches.

Ohop Creek (Pierce County): ((July 1 through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules, unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor, and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.))

(1) Open July 1 through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Ohop Lake (Pierce County): ((Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.)) Trout(±) daily limit 5(±); no more than ((two)) 2 over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Okanogan River (Okanogan County):

((From the mouth to the Highway 97 Bridge immediately upstream of mouth: Year-round season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure July 1 through October 15. Trout: Release all trout. Salmon: Open July 1 through October 15. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than three adult Chinook, and of the three adult Chinook, only one may be a wild adult Chinook.

From the Highway 97 Bridge immediately upstream of mouth to the highway bridge at Malott: Year-round season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure July 1 through September 15. Trout: Release all trout. Salmon: Open July 1 through September 15. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than 3 may be adult Chinook, and of these three adult Chinook only one may be a wild adult Chinook. Upstream from the highway bridge at Malott: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure July 1 through September 15. Trout:

~~Release all trout. Salmon: Open July 1 through September 15. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye only. No more than 3 may be adult Chinook, and of these three adult Chinook only one may be a wild adult Chinook.~~

~~Closed waters: From Zosel Dam downstream to first Highway 97 Bridge:))~~

~~(1) There are no length restrictions or daily limits for bass, walleye, or channel catfish within the mainstem or tributaries that are open for game fish angling.~~

~~(2) From the mouth to the Highway 97 Bridge immediately upstream of mouth:~~

~~(a) Open year-round.~~

~~(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect July 1 through October 15.~~

~~(c) Release all trout.~~

~~(d) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open July 1 through October 15.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only; no more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult salmon may be a wild Chinook.~~

~~(3) From the Highway 97 Bridge immediately upstream of mouth to the highway bridge at Malott:~~

~~(a) Open year-round.~~

~~(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect July 1 through September 15.~~

~~(c) Release all trout.~~

~~(d) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open July 1 through September 15.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only; no more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult salmon may be a wild Chinook.~~

~~(4) Upstream from the highway bridge at Malott:~~

~~(a) From Zosel Dam downstream to the first Highway 97 Bridge downstream of the Dam: Closed.~~

~~(b) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through September 15.~~

~~(c) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect July 1 through September 15.~~

~~(d) Release all trout.~~

~~(e) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open July 1 through September 15.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only; no more than 3 adult Chinook may be retained, and only one adult salmon may be a wild Chinook.~~

Olalla Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size 14 inches.

Old Fishing Hole Pond (Kent) (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Old Mill Stream (Chelan County): Closed waters.

Olequa Creek (Lewis County/Cowlitz County): Closed waters from 400 feet below to 200 feet above the temporary weir while the weir is installed in the creek. Trout: Release all trout except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

Olney Creek (Snohomish County) (Wallace River tributary): Waters upstream of Olney Falls, including tributaries and

beaver ponds: ((First)) Open the Saturday in ((June)) before Memorial Day through October 31 season.

Olson Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Osborne Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

O'Toole (Marietta) Creek (Whatcom County): Upstream from Marietta Falls, located 0.3 lineal miles from the Skagit River: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Outlet Creek (Klickitat County): ~~((Trout: Daily limit five.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Trout daily limit 5.

Outlet Creek (Mason County) (Satsop River tributary): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Owens Pond (Pacific County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Owl Creek (Snohomish County) (Whitechuck River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Packwood Lake (Lewis County): Closed waters: All inlet streams and outlet from log boom to dam. Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit five, minimum length ten inches.

Padden Lake (Whatcom County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Palix River, including all forks (Pacific County):

~~((From Highway 101 Bridge to the mouth of the Middle Fork: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season; except sturgeon. Single point barbless hooks and night closure August 16 through November 30. All game fish: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: Open only September 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook. Sturgeon: Open year-round.~~

~~From the confluence to the Middle Fork upstream and all forks, including South Fork and Cannon River: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 15 and December 16 through March 31 seasons. Selective gear rules first Saturday in June through August 15 and December 16 through March 31. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 16 through October 15. Release all game fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.))~~

(1) From the Highway 101 Bridge to the mouth of the Middle Fork:

(a) Night closure in effect and single-point barbless hooks are required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open September 1 through November 30:

(ii) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release wild Chinook, wild coho, and chum.

(d) Sturgeon open from April 1 through the first Friday in June.

(2) From the confluence with the Middle Fork upstream and all forks, including South Fork Palix and Cannon Rivers:

(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 16 through October 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply from the first Saturday in June through August 15, and from December 16 through March 31.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15, and from December 16 through March 31.

(d) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

Palmquist Creek (Clallam County) (~~from mouth upstream~~), outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 (~~season~~).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout: (~~Minimum length fourteen inches~~)

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release kokanee.

Palouse River (~~and tributaries, except Roek Creek~~) (Whitman County): (~~Year-round season. Mainstem from mouth to base of Palouse Falls. Trout: Daily limit 6 fish, minimum length 10 inches, no more than 3 trout over 20 inches may be retained, except release all trout April 1 through June 15 and release steelhead June 16 through August 31. Barbless hooks required when fishing for steelhead. Walleye: Daily limit 10 fish, no minimum size. No more than 5 walleye over 18 inches in length may be retained, and no more than 1 walleye over 24 inches in length may be retained. Channel catfish: No daily limit.~~)

(1) Open year-round.

(2) From the mouth to the base of Palouse Falls:

(a) Trout open June 16 through March 31.

(i) Daily limit 6 fish; minimum length 10 inches.

(ii) Release all steelhead June 16 through August 31.

(iii) From September 1 through March 31, barbless hooks are required when fishing for steelhead; no more than 3 steelhead may be retained.

(b) Walleye has no size restrictions and no daily limit.

(c) Channel catfish have no daily limit.

(d) Bass have no daily limit.

Palouse River mainstem above Palouse Falls and tributaries except Rock Creek: Year-round season.

Pampa Pond (Whitman County): March 1 through September 30 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than two over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Panhandle Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Panther Creek (Chelan County): Closed waters.

Panther Creek (tributary to Wind River) (Skamania County): Closed waters.

Panther Lake (Kitsap/Mason counties): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Para-Juvenile Lake (Adams/Grant counties): April 1 through September 30 season. Juveniles only.

Park Lake (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Parker Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Pass Lake (Skagit County): Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. All species: Release all fish.

Pataha Creek (Garfield County):

Within the city limits of Pomeroy: Juveniles only.

From city limits of Pomeroy upstream: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Pattison Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Peabody Creek (Clallam County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Penny Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Pearrygin Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Pend Oreille River (Pend Oreille County): (~~Year-round season. All sloughs within the boundaries of the Kalispell Reservation except Calispell Slough: Closed waters. Two-pole endorsement fishing allowed.~~)

(1) Mainstem:

(a) Open year-round.

(b) All sloughs within the boundaries of the Kalispell Reservation except Calispell Slough: Closed.

(c) Two pole fishing is permissible so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(2) Pend Oreille River tributaries not otherwise listed in this section are open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Perch Lake (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Percival Creek (Thurston County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Perry Creek (Thurston County): From mouth to falls: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size 14 inches.

Peshastin Creek (Chelan County): Mouth to Ruby Creek: Closed waters.

Petit Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Petroleum Creek (Clallam County) ~~(from the Olympic National Park boundary upstream:~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 (season).

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ~~(Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.)~~

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Phalon Lake (Stevens County): Closed waters.

Pheasant Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Phelps Creek (Chelan County) ~~(from the mouth to the falls at river mile one: (Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Phillips Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Phillips Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Pierre Lake (Stevens County): Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Pilchuck Creek (Clallam County) (Sooes River tributary) ~~(From mouth upstream):~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

~~Pilchuck Creek (Snohomish County) (mouth to Highway 9 Bridge: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~From Highway 9 Bridge to Pilchuck Falls: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout minimum size 14 inches.~~

~~From Pilchuck Falls upstream, including all tributaries and their tributaries and all tributaries to Lake Cavanaugh: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.)):~~

(1) From the mouth to the Highway 9 Bridge:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply the first Saturday in June through November 30.

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(2) From the Highway 9 Bridge to Pilchuck Falls:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(3) From Pilchuck Falls upstream, including all tributaries and their tributaries, and all tributaries to Lake Cavanaugh: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Pilchuck River (Snohomish County): From its mouth to five hundred feet downstream from the Snohomish City diversion dam: December 1 through January 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Pillar Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Pine Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Pine Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Pine Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

~~Ping Pond (Grant County): ((Third Saturday in April through Labor Day season. Juveniles and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only. Game fish: Daily limit of five fish in the aggregate. No minimum or maximum size for any species.))~~

(1) Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

(2) Open the third Saturday in April through Labor Day:

(a) Daily limit 5 fish.

(b) No size restrictions.

Pioneer Creek (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Pioneer Ponds (tributary to Stillaguamish River) (Snohomish County): Closed waters.

Pit Lake (Douglas County): Juveniles only.

Pleasant Lake (Clallam County): Trout: Kokanee minimum length eight inches, maximum length twenty inches.

Plumbago Creek (Whatcom County): Upstream from the Sierra Pacific 140 road bridge located 0.5 lineal miles upstream from the South Fork Nooksack River, including all tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Plummer Lake (Lewis County): Fourth Saturday in April through last day in February season.

Poacher Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Porter Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Potholes Reservoir (Grant County): Crappie: Minimum length nine inches. Crappie and bluegill: Combined daily limit twenty-five fish. Perch: Daily limit twenty-five fish. Walleye: Minimum size 12 inches in length. Daily limit 8 walleye, not more than 1 of which may be greater than 22 inches in length.

Potter's Pond (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Powerline Lake (Franklin County): Trout: Daily limit 2.

Pratt River (tributary to Middle Fork Snoqualmie) (King County): ~~((First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Catch and release only.

Pressentin Creek (Whatcom County): Upstream from the waterfall located 0.3 miles from the Skagit River, including all tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Prices Lake (Mason County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Priest Lake tributaries (Pend Oreille County), including Upper Priest Lake tributaries except those tributaries listed elsewhere in this section: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Priest River (Pend Oreille County): Tributaries to Priest River are open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Promised Land Pond (Grays Harbor County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Pugh Creek (Snohomish County) (Whitechuck River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Puyallup River (Pierce County):

From mouth to city of Puyallup outfall structure near junction of Freeman Road and North Levee Road: Game fish season is open only when salmon fishing is open. Single-point barbless hooks, anti-snagging rule and night closure August 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open August 16 through December 31, except closed August 26 and September 2, 3, 9, 10, and 11. In years ending in even numbers, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild adult Chinook. In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 4 may be adult salmon, and of the adult salmon, no more than 2 may be any combination of Chinook, coho, and chum. Release wild adult Chinook.

From city of Puyallup outfall structure near junction of Freeman Road and North Levee Road to Carbon River: Game fish season is open only when salmon fishing is open. Single-point barbless hooks, anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open August 1 through December 31. In years ending in even numbers, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild adult Chinook. In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 4 may be adult salmon, and of the adult salmon, no more than 2 may be any combination of Chinook, coho, and chum. Release wild adult Chinook.

From Carbon River upstream: September 1 through January 15 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Pyramid Creek (King County) upstream of Forest Service Road 7000: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Pysht River (Clallam County): The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish first Saturday in June through October 31. November 1 through January 31, trout minimum length fourteen inches.

Quail Lake (Adams County): Fly fishing only. Fishing from any floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. All species: Release all fish.

Quarry Pond (Walla Walla County): Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Quigg Lake (Grays Harbor County): The first Saturday in June through April 15 season. Trout: Daily limit 2. Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open only October 1 through January 31. Daily limit 6 hatchery coho salmon of which no more than 4 may be adult hatchery coho.

Quilcene River (Jefferson County):

~~((From mouth to Rodgers Street: First Saturday in June through August 15 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~From Rodgers Street to Highway 101 Bridge: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Release all game fish. First Saturday in June through August 15. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with~~



an internal combustion motor. Salmon: Open only August 16 through October 31 from Rodgers Street to the Highway 101 Bridge. Night closure and only one single point barbless hook may be used. Daily limit 4 coho salmon. Only coho salmon hooked inside the mouth may be retained.

From electric weir at Quileene National Fish Hatchery to upper boundary of Falls View Campground: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

From upper boundary of Falls View Campground upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.)

(1) From the mouth to Rodgers Street:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through August 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(d) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(2) From Rodgers Street to the Highway 101 Bridge:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(c) Release all species other than trout.

(d) From the first Saturday in June through August 15:

(i) Selective gear rules apply.

(ii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(e) From August 16 through October 31:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Only one single-point barbless hook may be used.

(f) Salmon:

(i) Open August 16 through October 31.

(ii) Daily limit 4 coho only; only coho hooked inside the mouth may be retained.

(3) From the electric weir at Quileene National Fish Hatchery to the upper boundary of Falls View Campground:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Catch and release only.

(4) From upper boundary of Falls View Campground upstream: open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Quillayute River (Clallam County)(=), outside of Olympic National Park: ((All game fish:))

(1) Open May 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June ((season:)); catch and release, except up to ((two)) 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. ((Trout: First Saturday in June through April 30 season. Minimum length fourteen inches:))

(2) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30:

(a) From first Saturday in June through March 31, trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(b) From April 1 through April 30, trout minimum length 14 inches.

(c) From November 1 through last day in February, daily limit may include 1 additional hatchery steelhead.

(d) From February 16 through April 30, wild steelhead retention allowed.

(3) Salmon:

(a) Open February 1 through August 31(=);

(i) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(b) Open September 1 through November 30(=);

(i) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which no more than 4 may be adult, and of the 4 adults, no more than 2 may be any combination of Chinook, wild coho, pink, sockeye, and chum salmon)).

(ii) Two salmon may be adults, plus 2 additional adult hatchery coho may be retained.

Quinault River (Grays Harbor County)(=), from mouth at upper end of Quinault Lake upstream to the Olympic National Park boundary:

(1) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through April 15 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish. February 16 through April 15, one wild steelhead per day may be retained:))

(a) From February 16 through April 15, one wild steelhead per day may be retained.

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(2) Salmon(=) open ((only)) July 1 through October 31(=):

(a) July 1 through September 30(=);

(i) Daily limit 6 jack salmon only.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks are required.

(b) October 1 through October 31(=):

(i) Daily limit 6 fish((=of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release sockeye and chum.

Quincy Lake (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Quinn Creek (Clallam County)(=), outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules((=Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)) apply.

(3) Trout:

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release kokanee.

Racehorse Creek (Whatcom County) (NF Nooksack tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Radar Ponds (Pacific County): Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Raging River (King County): From its mouth to the Highway 18 Bridge: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

From Highway 18 Bridge upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Raimie Creek and all forks (Pacific County) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Rainbow Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Rainey Creek (Lewis County), from the mouth to Highway 12:

(1) Release cutthroat and rainbow trout except those having a clipped adipose fin and a healed scar at the location of the clipped fin.

(2) Trout: Daily limit 5.

Rapjohn Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

~~Rat Lake (Okanogan County): ((April 1 through November 30: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.))~~

(1) Open for all game fish April 1 through November 30.

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) Catch and release only.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(2) Open for all game fish December 1 through March 31.

~~Rattlesnake Creek (Yakima County): ((Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.))~~

(1) Selective gear rules apply in the mainstem and tributaries.

(2) Catch and release only for all species in the mainstem.

Rattlesnake Lake (King County): Selective gear rules and catch and release. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Ravensdale Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches.

Red Creek (King County) (White River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Red Rock Creek (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Reflection Pond (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Rendsland Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Renner Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Riffe Lake (Reservoir) (Lewis County): Mossyrock Dam to 400 feet below Cowlitz Falls Dam. Closed waters: Lewis County PUD safety signs approximately 800 feet below Cowlitz Falls Dam to Dam. Permissible to fish up to the base of Swofford Pond Dam. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Rigley Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches.

Riley Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Rimrock Lake (Reservoir) (Yakima County): Chumming permitted. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit five. Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit sixteen.

Ringold Springs Creek (Hatchery Creek) (Franklin County): Closed waters.

Ripley Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Roaring Creek (Whatcom County): Upstream from its confluence with Deer Creek, including all tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Robbins Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

~~Rock Creek (Adams/Whitman counties): ((Mouth to Endicott Road year-round season.~~

~~Endicott Road to bridge on George Knott Road at Revere: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.~~

~~Upstream from bridge on George Knott Road: Year-round season.))~~

(1) Open year-round from the mouth to Endicott Road.

(2) From Endicott Road to the bridge on George Knott Road at Revere:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(3) Open year-round from the bridge on George Knott Road upstream.

~~Rock Creek (Chelan County): ((Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Rock Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Rock Creek (Klickitat County): Mouth to the Army Corps of Engineers Park: Year-round season. Daily limits, size restrictions and gear restrictions are the same as those in the adjacent portion of the Columbia River.

Rock Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Rock Creek (Skamania County): Mouth to falls. Trout: Release all trout except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Above falls, additional November 1 through March 15 season.

Rocky Brook Creek (Jefferson County)(Dosewallips River tributary): From falls 1000 feet upstream of mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Rocky Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Rocky Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Rocky Ford Creek and Ponds (Grant County): Fly fishing only. Fishing from bank only (no wading). All species: Release all fish.

Rocky Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. June 1 through October 31 selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Roesiger Lake (Snohomish County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Roosevelt Lake (Ferry/Lincoln/Stevens counties): ~~((All species:))~~

~~(1) Closed waters: ~~((1) March 1 through the Friday immediately preceding Memorial Day weekend from the Little Dalles power line crossing upstream approximately one mile to marked rock point, and from Northport power line crossing upstream to most upstream point of Steamboat Rock; and (2) April 1 through Friday before Memorial Day in Kettle arm upstream to Barstow Bridge. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit five. No more than two over twenty inches in length. Kokanee daily limit six, no more than two with intact adipose fins. Walleye: No minimum size. Daily limit 8 fish not more than one of which may be longer than 22 inches. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon from Roosevelt Lake~~~~

~~and tributaries. Carp: Unlawful to fish for carp with bow and arrow.))~~

~~(a) Waters from the Little Dalles power line crossing upstream approximately one mile to the marked rock point and from Northport power line crossing upstream to the most upstream point of Steamboat Rock, are closed March 1 through the Friday immediately preceding Memorial Day weekend.~~

~~(b) Waters in the Kettle arm upstream to Barstow Bridge are closed April 1 through Friday before Memorial Day.~~

~~(2) Trout (except kokanee): Daily limit 5; no more than 2 over 20 inches in length may be retained.~~

~~(3) Kokanee: Daily limit 6; no more than 2 kokanee with intact adipose fins may be retained.~~

~~(4) Walleye: no minimum size, no daily limit.~~

~~(5) Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.~~

~~(6) Sturgeon: It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon from Roosevelt Lake and its tributaries.~~

~~(7) Carp: It is unlawful to fish for carp with bow and arrow.~~

Rose Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Ross Lake (Reservoir) (Whatcom County): July 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit three, possession limit six, minimum length thirteen inches.

Ross Lake tributary streams and their tributaries, except Big Beaver Creek and Ruby Creek (Whatcom County): ~~((Except Big Beaver Creek and Ruby Creek:))~~

~~(1) From one mile above ~~((their))~~ the mouths to the headwaters~~((:))~~, open July 1 through October 31 ~~((season))~~.~~

~~(2) Tributaries to Ruby Creek open July 1 through October 31.~~

Round Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Rowland Lakes (Klickitat County): ~~((Fourth Saturday in April through last day in February season.))~~ Open the fourth Saturday in April through the last day in February, except closed the Monday before Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving Day.

Royal Lake (Adams County): Closed waters.

Royal Slough (including Marsh Unit IV impoundments) (Adams County): Closed waters.

Ruby Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

~~(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.~~

~~(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.~~

Rue Creek, including West Fork (Pacific County) (South Fork Willapa tributary): From mouth upstream: All game

fish: First Saturday in June through October 31. Selective gear rules.

Rufus Woods Lake (Douglas County): ~~((Chumming allowed. Trout: Daily limit two. Only uninjured trout caught using artificial lures or flies with single barbless hooks may be released. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon from Rufus Woods Lake and tributaries.))~~

(1) Chumming is permissible.

(2) Closed waters from Grand Coulee Dam downstream to State Route 155 Bridge.

(3) It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon from the lake or its tributaries.

(4) Trout daily limit 2; only uninjured trout caught using artificial lures or flies with single-point barbless hooks may be released.

(5) Tributaries to Rufus Woods Lake: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Sacheen Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Saddle Mountain Lake (Grant County): Closed waters.

Sago Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Saint Clair Lake (Thurston County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Salmon Creek (Clark County):

From mouth to 72nd Avenue N.E.: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season. Trout: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

From 72nd Avenue N.E. Bridge upstream: Closed waters.

Salmon Creek and all forks (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Salmon Creek (Lewis County): Closed waters from 400 feet below to 200 feet above the temporary weir while the weir is installed in the creek.

Salmon Creek, mainstem (Okanogan County): Closed waters.

Salmon Creek, North Fork and West Fork from mouth to South Fork (Okanogan County): ~~((Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Salmon Creek (Pacific County) (tributary of Naselle River): ~~((The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All~~

~~game fish: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Release all fish except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.

Salmon Creek (Thurston County) (Black River tributary) ~~((;))~~ from the mouth ~~((to))~~ upstream: ~~((All species.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply and night closure ~~((First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches))~~ in effect.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Salmon River (Jefferson County) ~~((;))~~ outside ~~((of))~~ Olympic National Park and the Quinault Indian Reservation:

(1) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ~~((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Hatchery steelhead in this river are steelhead with a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.))~~

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Permissible to retain steelhead with a dorsal fin height of less than 2 1/8 inches or with an adipose or ventral fin clip.

(2) Salmon: Open ~~((only))~~ September 1 through November 30 ~~((;))~~

(a) Daily limit 6 ~~((fish of which no more than 3 may be adult salmon and of the adult salmon not more than 2 may be adult Chinook))~~ salmon.

(b) No more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and no more than 2 may be adult Chinook.

Salmonberry Creek (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size 14 inches.

Salt Creek (Clallam County): From mouth to bridge on Highway 112: First Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules. Release all fish except November 1 through January 31. Up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Samish Lake (Whatcom County): Trout: Cutthroat trout daily limit two, minimum length fourteen inches.

Samish River ~~((Whatcom))~~ Skagit County):

~~((From its mouth to the I-5 Bridge: August 1 through November 30 night closure, only one single point hook allowed. From mouth to Farm to Market Road, bait or lure must be suspended below a float. A "float" or "bobber" is defined as a hookless, floating device that is attached to or slides along the mainline or leader above the hook(s) for the purpose of suspending hook(s) (which are part of the bait, lure, or fly) off the bottom of the stream and visually signaling (from the surface of the water) a fish's strike at the hook(s). Game fish: First Saturday in June through Novem-~~

~~ber 30 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Additional game fish season December 1 through December 31. Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Salmon: Open only August 1 through November 30. Daily limit 2 salmon. Release wild coho. Only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Anglers must retain the first 2 salmon, if permissible to do so, and stop fishing.~~

~~From the I-5 Bridge to the Hickson Bridge: Closed waters from the old Highway 99 Bridge to the WDFW salmon rack. Closed waters from I-5 Bridge to old Highway 99 Bridge September 1 through November 30. First Saturday in June through November 30 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~From Hickson Bridge upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules:))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to the I-5 Bridge:~~

~~(a) From August 1 through November 30:~~

~~(i) Night closure in effect.~~

~~(ii) Anglers may only use one single-point hook.~~

~~(iii) From the mouth to "Farm to Market" Road, bait or lure must be suspended below a float. A "float" or "bobber" is defined as a hookless, floating device that is attached to or slides along the mainline or leader above the hook(s) for the purpose of suspending hook(s) (which are part of the bait, lure, or fly) off the bottom of the stream and visually signaling (from the surface of the water) a fish's strike at the hook(s).~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30 for game fish; trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(c) Open December 1 through December 31:~~

~~(i) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(ii) Catch and release only, except anglers may retain up to 2 hatchery steelhead.~~

~~(d) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open August 1 through November 30.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 2 salmon.~~

~~(iii) Release wild coho.~~

~~(iv) Only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained.~~

~~(v) Anglers must retain the first 2 salmon, if permissible to do so, and stop fishing.~~

~~(2) From the I-5 Bridge to the Hickson Bridge:~~

~~(a) Closed waters from the old Highway 99 Bridge to the WDFW salmon rack.~~

~~(b) Closed waters from I-5 Bridge to old Highway 99 Bridge September 1 through November 30.~~

~~(c) Open first Saturday in June through November 30:~~

~~(i) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(ii) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(3) From Hickson Bridge upstream:~~

~~(a) Open first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

Sammamish Lake (King County):

~~(1) Closed to fishing within 100 yards of the mouth of Issaquah Creek August 16 through November 30. ((~~F~~ro~~u~~t:))~~

~~(2) Release all kokanee. ((~~K~~okanee/~~s~~oek~~e~~y under fifteen inches are kokanee while those fifteen inches and over are sockeye salmon. December 1 through June 30:))~~

(3) Single-point barbless hooks required January 1 through April 30.

(4) Release all steelhead and rainbow trout over ((twenty)) 20 inches in length from December 1 through June 30.

(5) Salmon:

(a) Open ((~~o~~nly)) August 16 through November 30.

(b) Daily limit ((~~f~~our)) 4 salmon((~~, of which~~)); only ((~~t~~wo may be)) 2 Chinook may be retained.

(c) Release all sockeye.

Sammamish River (Slough) (King County): From the 68th Avenue N.E. Bridge to Lake Sammamish: January 1 through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout.

San Poil River (Ferry County):

~~((From the western shoreline at the mouth of the San Poil Arm (as marked by a regulatory buoy) directly eastward across the San Poil Arm to the eastern shoreline of the San Poil Arm (as marked by a regulatory buoy) upstream to the north shore of the outlet of French Johns Lake (Manila Creek) northeast across the San Poil Arm to the north shore of the outlet of Dick Creek: Year-round season. Smallmouth bass: Daily limit ten fish, no more than one over 14 inches. Walleye: Daily limit 8 fish, no size limit. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. Carp: Unlawful to fish with bow and arrow. Rainbow trout: Daily limit five fish, no more than two over 20 inches, release all wild (adipose fin intact) fish. Kokanee salmon: Daily limit two fish. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain.~~

~~From the north shore of the outlet of French Johns Lake (Manila Creek) northeast across the San Poil Arm to the north shore of the outlet of Dick Creek upstream to approximately five miles upstream from the outlet of French Johns Lake, as marked by regulatory buoys: All species: Closed waters February 1 through March 31. Smallmouth bass: Daily limit ten fish, no more than one over 14 inches. Walleye: Daily limit 8 fish, no size limit. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon. Carp: Unlawful to fish with bow and arrow. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain.~~

~~From approximately 5 miles upstream from the outlet of French Johns Lake, as marked by regulatory buoys to any and all waters that occur north of the regulatory buoy line at or above 1310 feet mean sea level elevation: Managed under regulatory authority of the Colville Confederated Tribe of Indians:))~~

(1) From the western shoreline at the mouth of the San Poil Arm (as marked by a regulatory buoy) directly eastward across the San Poil Arm to the eastern shoreline of the San Poil Arm (as marked by a regulatory buoy) upstream to the north shore of the outlet of French Johns Lake (Manila Creek) northeast across the San Poil Arm to the north shore of the outlet of Dick Creek:

(a) It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.

(b) Open April 1 through January 31 for kokanee, trout, walleye, and smallmouth bass:

(i) Kokanee: Daily limit 2 fish in addition to trout daily limit; no minimum size requirement.

(ii) Trout:(A) Daily limit 5 fish.(B) No more than 2 trout over 20 inches may be retained.(C) Release all rainbow trout with adipose fin intact.(iii) Walleye: Daily limit 8 fish; no size restrictions.(iv) Smallmouth bass: Daily limit 10 fish; no more than one over 14 inches may be retained.(c) Year-round season for other game fish, salmon, and carp:(i) Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.(ii) Carp: Unlawful to fish with bow and arrow.(2) From the north shore of the outlet of French Johns Lake (Manila Creek) northeast across the San Poil Arm to the north shore of the outlet of Dick Creek to approximately 5 miles upstream from the outlet of French Johns Lake, as marked by regulatory buoys:(a) It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon, kokanee, and all other trout.(b) Open April 1 through January 31 for walleye and smallmouth bass:(i) Walleye: Daily limit 8 fish; no size restrictions.(ii) Smallmouth bass: Daily limit 10 fish; no more than one over 14 inches may be retained.(c) Year-round season for other game fish, salmon, and carp:(i) Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.(ii) Carp: Unlawful to fish with bow and arrow.(3) Waters from approximately 5 miles upstream from the outlet of French Johns Lake, as marked by regulatory buoys, to all waters north of the regulatory buoy line at or above 1,310 feet mean sea level elevation are managed under the regulatory authority of the Colville Confederated Tribe of Indians.(4) From above the Colville Confederated Tribe of Indians Reservation northern boundary, upstream to the headwaters: Open the Saturday before Memorial day through October 31.

Sand Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Sandyshore Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

~~((San Poil River (Ferry County): Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.))~~

Sarge Hubbard Park Pond (Yakima County): ~~((Juveniles and holders of reduced fee licenses or designated harvester cards only.))~~ Open to juvenile anglers and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

Satsop Lakes (Grays Harbor County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Satsop River and East Fork (Grays Harbor County): ~~((All species: Single point barbless hooks and night closure August 16 through November 30.~~

~~From mouth to bridge at Schafer State Park: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open September 16 through January 31. September 16 through November 30, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and of the three adult salmon, only two may be wild coho. Release chum and Chinook. December 1 through January 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon, and only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and Chinook.~~

~~From bridge at Schafer State Park upstream to 400 feet below Bingham Creek Hatchery barrier dam: All Species: Single point barbless hooks and night closure August 16 through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~From 400 feet downstream of Bingham Creek Hatchery barrier dam upstream to dam: Closed waters, except anglers who permanently use a wheelchair or have a designated harvester card may fish within posted markers. All species: Night closure. August 16 through October 31, single point barbless hooks required. First Saturday in June through March 31 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Salmon: Open September 16 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and of the three adult salmon only two may be wild coho. Release chum and Chinook. Open December 1 through January 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon, and only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and Chinook.~~

~~From Bingham Creek Hatchery Dam upstream: All species: Single point barbless hooks and night closure August 16 through October 31. First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))~~

(1) From the mouth to the bridge at Schafer State Park:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks only.(b) Night closure in effect August 16 through November 30.(c) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.(d) Salmon open September 16 through November 30, and December 1 through January 31:(i) From September 16 through November 30:(A) Daily limit 6. No more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 may be adult wild coho.(B) Release Chinook and chum.(ii) Open December 1 through January 31:(A) Daily limit 6. No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be an adult wild coho.(B) Release Chinook and chum.(2) From the bridge at Schafer State Park upstream to 400 feet below Bingham Creek Hatchery barrier dam:(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.(b) August 16 through October 31:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks only.

(3) From 400 feet downstream of Bingham Creek Hatchery barrier dam upstream to dam:

(a) Closed waters, except anglers with disabilities who permanently use a wheelchair and possess a designated harvester companion card may fish within posted markers.

(b) Night closure in effect.

(c) Single-point barbless hooks only from August 16 through October 31.

(d) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through March 31; trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(e) Salmon open September 16 through January 31:

(i) September 16 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6. No more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 may be adult wild coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(ii) December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit 6. No more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be an adult wild coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(4) From Bingham Creek Hatchery Dam upstream:

(a) Open first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) August 16 through October 31:

(i) Single-point barbless hooks only.

(ii) Night closure in effect.

Middle Fork Satsop River (Turnow Branch):

(1) From the mouth to Cougar Smiths Road: ((All species:))

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect from August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish-)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(2) From Cougar Smith Road upstream: ((All species:))

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect from August 16 through October 31. ((First))

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

West Fork Satsop River:

(1) From mouth to Cougar Smith Road: ((All species:))

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule ((from)) in effect August 16 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches, daily limit 2 fish-)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(2) From Cougar Smith Road to USFS 2260 Road Bridge at Spoon Creek: ((All species:))

(a) Night closure in effect August 16 through October 31.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules-)); selective gear rules apply.

(3) From USFS 2260 Road Bridge at Spoon Creek upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Eastern brook trout:

(i) No minimum size(-);

(ii) Daily limit 5 fish. ((Selective gear rules. All other trout: Minimum length eight inches, daily limit 2 fish. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules-))

Sauk River (Skagit/Snohomish counties):

((From mouth to the mouth of the White Chuck River: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day-.

From the mouth of the White Chuck River to headwaters, including North Fork and South Fork upstream to Elliot Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day-.

South Fork upstream from Elliot Creek: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained per day-.)

(1) Selective gear rules apply.

(2) Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

(3) From mouth to the mouth of the White Chuck River:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor from the mouth to the Darrington Bridge.

(4) From the mouth of the White Chuck River to the headwaters, including the North Fork and South Fork upstream to Elliot Creek; open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(5) South Fork upstream from Elliot Creek: Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.

Sawyer, Lake (King County): Chumming permitted. Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Scatter Creek (King County) (White River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Scatter Creek (Thurston County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2

fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Schaefer Lake (Chelan County): Trout: Daily limit sixteen.

Schafer Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary): From mouth to USFS 22 Road: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Schneider Creek (Thurston County) from mouth to falls: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size 14 inches.

Scooteney Reservoir (Franklin County): Walleye(=) minimum size 12 inches, daily limit 8.

Sedge Lake (Grant County): All species: Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit 1.

Sekiu River (Clallam County):

From mouth to forks: First Saturday in June through January 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules from first Saturday in June through October 31. Release all fish except November 1 through January 31. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

From forks upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Serene Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Shady Lake (King County): ~~((June-1))~~

(1) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31 ~~((season)). ~~((Trout-))~~~~

(2) No more than one trout over ~~((fourteen))~~ 14 inches in length may be retained.

Shannon, Lake (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Chumming permitted. Trout: Minimum length six inches and maximum length eighteen inches.

Shellneck Creek (Yakima County): Closed waters.

Shelton Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Sherman Creek (Ferry County): ~~((From the mouth at Lake Roosevelt upstream to four hundred feet above the water diversion dam for the hatchery: Closed waters, except first Saturday in June through October 31 season from the mouth upstream to the hatchery boat dock-))~~

(1) From the hatchery boat dock to 400 feet upstream of hatchery water diversion dam: Closed.

(2) From 400 feet upstream of the hatchery water diversion dam, including all tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Sherman Creek (Thurston County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Sherry Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Sherwood Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Sherwood Creek Mill Pond (Mason County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, daily limit 2 fish.

Shine Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Shiner Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Shoe Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Shoveler Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Shye Lake (Grays Harbor County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Sidley Lake (Okanogan County): Trout: Daily limit two.

Siebert Creek (Clallam County): All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Silent Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Silesia Creek (Chiliwack River tributary) (Whatcom County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Silvas Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

Silver Creek (tributary to Cowlitz River) (Lewis County): ~~((Mouth to USFS Road 4778: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches-))~~  
Open from the mouth to USFS Road 4778:

(1) Selective gear rules apply.

(2) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

Silver Creek (Skagit County) (Samish River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Silver Creek (Whatcom County) (Nooksack River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Silver Lake (Cowlitz County): Crappie: Daily limit ten crappie. Minimum size nine inches in length.



Silver Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Silver Lake (Spokane County): Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

~~((Silver Lake, North (Spokane County): March 1 through September 30 and November 1 through December 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. March 1 through September 30: Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except release fish with clipped adipose fin. November 1 through December 31: All species: Release all fish.))~~

Silver Lake (Whatcom County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Silver Nail Lake (Okanogan County): Juveniles only.

Similkameen River (Okanogan County):

~~((From mouth to Enloe Dam: December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply. Salmon: Open only July 1 through September 15. Daily limit 6 Chinook and six sockeye, of which no more than 3 may be adult Chinook salmon, and of these three adult Chinook salmon only one may be a wild adult Chinook. Anti-snagging rule and night closure July 1 through September 15.~~

~~From Enloe Dam to Canadian border: Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to Enloe Dam:~~

~~(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect July 1 through September 15.~~

~~(b) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open July 1 through September 15.~~

~~(ii) Daily limit 6 Chinook and 6 sockeye only; no more than 3 adult Chinook salmon may be retained, and only one may be a wild adult Chinook.~~

~~(c) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.~~

~~(2) From Enloe Dam to the Canadian border:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(b) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.~~

Sinlahekin Creek (Okanogan County): ~~((From Palmer Lake to Cecile Creek bridge: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Additional December 1 through March 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.))~~

~~(1) From Palmer Lake to Cecile Creek Bridge:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through August 31 season.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~(d) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.~~

~~(2) From Cecile Creek Bridge upstream, including all tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Sitkum River (Clallam County) (Calawah River tributary)~~((From mouth upstream)):~~

~~(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules)).~~

~~(2) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.~~

Siwash Creek (Clallam County)~~((=)),~~ outside of Olympic National Park:

~~(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ((season)).~~

~~(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))~~

~~(3) Trout:~~

~~(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.~~

~~(b) Release all kokanee.~~

Sixteen Lake (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Skagit River (Skagit/Whatcom counties):

~~(1) From the mouth to Cascade River Road:~~

~~(a) Trout (except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout) minimum length is 14 inches.~~

~~(b) It is permissible to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout with a minimum length of 20 inches as part of trout daily limit.~~

~~(2) From the mouth to the Memorial Highway Bridge (Highway 536 at Mt. Vernon):~~

~~(a) Open March 1 through May 31 for trout only:~~

~~(i) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(ii) Maximum hook gap of 1/2 inch required.~~

~~(iii) Release all fish other than trout.~~

~~(b) Open June 1 through January 31 ((season. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches)).~~

~~(c) Salmon:~~

~~(i) In years ending in even numbers((=));~~

~~(A) Open September 1 through December 31.~~

~~(B) Daily limit 2 salmon.~~

~~(C) Release Chinook and chum.~~

~~(ii) In years ending in odd numbers((=));~~

~~(A) Open August 1 through December 31.~~

~~(B) Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink.~~

~~(C) Release Chinook and chum.~~

~~(3) From Memorial Highway Bridge (Highway 536 at Mt. Vernon) upstream to Gilligan Creek:~~

~~(a) Open June 1 through January 31 ((season)).~~

~~(b) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect June 16 through November 30. ((Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain~~

~~Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.))~~

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open June 16 through July 15((-)); daily limit ~~((three))~~ 3 sockeye only.

(ii) In years ending in even numbers, open September 1 through December 31((-):

(A) Daily limit ~~((two))~~ 2 salmon.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(iii) In years ending in odd numbers, open August 1 through December 31((-):

(A) Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(4) From Gilligan Creek to The Dalles Bridge at Concrete:

(a) Open June 1 through January ~~((31 season))~~.

(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure July 1 through November 30. ~~((Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of the trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.))~~

(c) Salmon:

(i) In years ending in even numbers, open September 16 through December 31((-):

(A) Daily limit ~~((two))~~ 2 salmon.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(ii) In years ending in odd numbers, open August 16 through December 31((-):

(A) Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(5) From The Dalles Bridge at Concrete to the Highway 530 Bridge at Rockport:

(a) Open June 1 through January 31 ~~((season))~~, except closed June 1 through August 31, between a line 200 feet above the east bank of the Baker River to a line 200 feet below the west bank of the Baker River.

(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect July 1 through November 30. ~~((Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of the trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.))~~

(c) Salmon: Open September 16 through December 31((-):

(i) In years ending in even numbers((-):

(A) Daily limit ~~((two))~~ 2 salmon.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(ii) In years ending in odd numbers((-, daily):

(A) Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(6) From the Highway 530 Bridge at Rockport to the Cascade River Road:

(a) Open June 1 through February 15 ~~((season))~~.

(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect June 1 through November 30. ~~((Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of the trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.))~~

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open June 1 through July 15((-):

(A) Daily limit 4 hatchery Chinook salmon~~((, of which only))~~.

(B) Only 2 ~~((may be))~~ adult hatchery Chinook may be retained.

(ii) Open September 16 through December 31:

(A) Release Chinook and chum.

(B) In years ending in even numbers, daily limit ~~((two))~~ 2 salmon. ~~((Release Chinook and chum.))~~

(C) In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink. ~~((Release Chinook and chum.))~~

(7) From Cascade River Road to the Gorge Powerhouse:

(a) Open June 1 through January 31 ~~((season))~~.

(b) Selective gear rules apply. ~~((Unlawful))~~

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. ~~((All species.))~~

(d) Release all fish, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.

(8) From Gorge Dam to Ross Dam and all tributaries to this section except Stetattle Creek~~((First))~~; open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ~~((season))~~.

Skamokawa Creek (Wahkiakum County): Mouth to forks just below Oatfield and Middle Valley Road: June 1 through October 31 season. Trout: Release all trout except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Skate Creek (tributary to Cowlitz River) (Lewis County): ~~((Trout: Daily limit five, no more than one over twelve inches in length. Release cutthroat. Release rainbow trout except rainbow trout having a clipped adipose fin and a healed scar at the site of the clipped fin.))~~ Release all cutthroat.

Skokomish River (Mason County): Mouth to Highway 106 Bridge: Night closure, anti-snagging rule and single-point barbless hooks required August 10 through November 30. The first Saturday in June through July 31 and October 1 through December 15 season. All game fish: Release all fish. Salmon: Open August 10 through September 5 and September 16 through December 15. Terminal gear restricted to no closer than 25 feet of a tribal gillnet. August 1 through September 5: Daily limit 2 salmon, except release chum and wild Chinook. Only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained; and anglers must keep the first 2 salmon, if legal to do so and stop fishing for the day. September 16 through December 15: Daily limit 6 salmon, of which no more than 4 adult fish may be retained. Release Chinook. October 1 through October 15 release chum salmon.

From Highway 106 Bridge to Highway 101 Bridge: Night closure, anti-snagging rule and single-point barbless hooks required August 10 through November 30. The first Saturday in June through July 31 and October 1 through December 15 season. All game fish: Release all fish. Salmon: Open Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays, and Labor Day, August 10 through September 3. Terminal gear restricted to no closer than 25 feet of a tribal gillnet. August 10 through September 3: Daily limit 2 salmon, except release chum and wild Chinook; only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained; and anglers must keep the first 2 salmon, if legal to do so and stop fishing for the day. October 1 through December 15, daily limit 6 salmon, except daily limit may contain

no more than 4 adult fish and release Chinook. October 1 through October 15 release chum salmon.

From Highway 101 Bridge to forks: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Skokomish River, North Fork (Mason County):

From mouth to lower dam: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Release all fish. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Above Lake Cushman: Mouth to Olympic National Park boundary: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release all fish.

Skokomish River, South Fork (Mason County):

From mouth to mouth of LeBar Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Release all fish. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

From mouth of Rule Creek to headwaters: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches.

Skookum Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Skookum Creek (Whatcom County): From mouth of Arlecho Creek upstream, including Arlecho Creek and all other tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Skookum Lake, North (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Skookum Lake, South (Pend Oreille County): Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Skookumchuck Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

Skookumchuck Reservoir (Thurston County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches.

Skookumchuck River (Thurston County): ~~((All Species: Night closure and single point barbless hooks required from August 16 through November 30.~~

~~From mouth to one hundred feet below the outlet of the PP&L/WDFW steelhead rearing pond located at the base of the Skookumchuck Dam: The first Saturday in June through April 30 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open only October 1 through last day in February. October 1 through November 30, daily limit 6 fish of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and of the adult salmon, only two may be wild adult coho. Release chum and Chinook. December 1 through last day in February, daily~~

~~limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon, and of the two adults only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and Chinook.~~

~~From Skookumchuck Reservoir upstream: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length eight inches.))~~

(1) From the mouth to 100 feet below the outlet of the PP&L/WDFW steelhead rearing pond located at the base of the Skookumchuck Dam:

(a) August 16 through November 30:

(i) Night closure in effect.

(ii) Single-point barbless hooks only.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30:

(i) From first Saturday in June through March 31, trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From April 1 through April 30, trout minimum length 14 inches.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open from October 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 may be wild adult coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open from December 1 through last day in February:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be a wild adult coho.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(2) From Skookumchuck Reservoir upstream, selective gear rules apply.

Skykomish River (Snohomish County):

From mouth to mouth of Wallace River: June 1 through January 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30 mouth to Lewis Street Bridge in Monroe and June 1 through November 30 from Lewis Street Bridge in Monroe to Wallace River. Fishing from any floating device prohibited November 1 through January 31 from the boat ramp below Lewis Street Bridge at Monroe downstream two thousand five hundred feet. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches. Salmon: In years ending in even numbers, open September 1 through December 31 mouth to Wallace River. Daily limit three. Release Chinook and pink. In years ending in odd numbers, open August 16 through December 31 mouth to Lewis Street Bridge in Monroe and open September 1 through December 31 Lewis Street Bridge to Wallace River. Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink. Release Chinook and chum.

From the mouth of the Wallace River to the forks: June 1 through January 31 of the following year with an additional season, February 1 through February 15 from the Highway 2 Bridge at the Gold Bar/Big Eddy Access to the confluence of the North and South forks. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Fishing from any floating device prohibited in the area one thousand five hundred feet upstream and one thousand feet downstream of the outlet at Reiter Ponds June 1 through February 15 of the following year. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum

length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches. Salmon: Open September 1 through December 31. In years ending in even numbers, daily limit three. Release Chinook and pink. In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink. Release Chinook.

Skykomish River, North Fork (Snohomish County):

~~((From mouth to one thousand feet downstream from Bear Creek Falls: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~From Deer Falls (about 1/4 mile upstream of Goblin Creek) upstream, including tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to 1,000 feet downstream of Bear Creek Falls:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(2) Waters from Deer Falls (about 1/4 mile upstream of Goblin Creek) upstream, including all tributaries and their tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Skykomish River, South Fork (King/Snohomish counties):

~~((From mouth to six hundred feet downstream from the Sunset Falls Fishway: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Anti snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.~~

~~From Sunset Falls to source including all tributaries and their tributaries: The first Saturday in June through November 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Whitefish: Additional December 1 through last day in February season. Release all fish other than whitefish. All tributaries: Closed waters.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to 600 feet downstream from the Sunset Falls Fishway:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(c) August 1 through November 30:~~

~~(i) Anti-slagging rule applies.~~

~~(ii) Night closure in effect.~~

~~(2) From Sunset Falls to the source, including all tributaries and their tributaries:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(d) Open for whitefish (except in the tributaries of this river section) December 1 through last day in February season; release all fish other than whitefish.~~

Slate Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily~~

~~limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

~~(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.~~

~~(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.~~

Sloan Creek (Snohomish County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Smith Creek (near North River) (Pacific County): ~~((From mouth to Highway 101 Bridge: Single point barbless hooks and night closure August 16 through November 30. Sturgeon: Open year round from mouth to Highway 101 Bridge.~~

~~Minimum fork length 38 inches and maximum fork length 54 inches. Daily limit one fish. All game fish: The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. All fish must be released except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained. Salmon: September 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon and of those three, only two may be wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Additional season December 1 through December 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon, and of the two only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Sturgeon: Year round season. Minimum fork length 38 inches. Maximum fork length 54 inches. Daily limit one fish.~~

~~From Highway 101 Bridge upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All fish must be released except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to the Highway 101 Bridge:~~

~~(a) Single-point barbless hooks required and night closure in effect August 16 through November 30.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February; release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(c) Salmon:~~

~~(i) Open September 1 through November 30:~~

~~(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 adults may be wild coho.~~

~~(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.~~

~~(ii) Open December 1 through December 31:~~

~~(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one adult may be a wild coho.~~

~~(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.~~

~~(d) Sturgeon open year-round.~~

~~(2) From Highway 101 Bridge upstream:~~

~~(a) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February season; release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

Smith Creek (Pacific County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Smith Creek (Whatcom County) (Nooksack River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Snahapish River (Jefferson County) (Clearwater River tributary)(~~From mouth upstream~~):

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply. ((Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.))

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Snake River: (~~Year-round season. Closed to the taking of all trout April 1 through June 15. Trout: Daily limit six, minimum length ten inches, no more than three over twenty inches. Release all steelhead June 16 through August 31. Barbless hooks required when fishing for steelhead. Sturgeon: Release all sturgeon from August 1 through January 31 from the mouth to Ice Harbor Dam. Closed to fishing for sturgeon from May 1 through July 31 from the downstream end of Goose Island to Ice Harbor Dam. Unlawful to retain sturgeon in mainstem and tributaries upstream from Lower Granite Dam. Walleye: Daily limit 10 fish. No minimum size. No more than 5 fish over 18 inches in length. No more than 1 fish over 24 inches in length. Channel catfish: No daily limit.~~)

~~Closed waters: Within four hundred feet of the base of any dam and within a four hundred foot radius around the fish ladder entrance at Lyons Ferry Hatchery, within a two hundred foot radius upstream of the fish ladder exit above Lower Granite Dam, and within an area one thousand two hundred feet downstream from the base of the west lock gate at Little Goose Dam on the south bank of the Snake River and one hundred feet out into the river from said river bank.))~~

(1) Open year-round except the following waters are closed:

(a) Within 400 feet of the base of any dam;

(b) Within a 400 foot radius around the fish ladder entrance at Lyons Ferry Hatchery;

(c) Within a 200 foot radius upstream of the fish ladder exit above Lower Granite Dam; and

(d) Within an area 1,200 feet downstream from the base of the west lock gate at Little Goose Dam on the south bank of the Snake River and 100 feet out into the river from the river bank.

(2) Trout:

(a) Release all trout April 1 through June 15.

(b) Daily limit 6; minimum length 10 inches, and no more than 3 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) Barbless hooks are required when fishing for steelhead.

(3) Sturgeon:

(a) From the mouth to Ice Harbor Dam:

(i) Closed to fishing for sturgeon from May 1 through July 31 from the downstream end of Goose Island up to Ice Harbor Dam.

(ii) Release all sturgeon from August 1 through January 31.

(b) From Ice Harbor Dam to Oregon border: release all sturgeon in waters upstream from Lower Granite Dam, including all tributaries.

(4) Walleye have no minimum size restrictions, and no daily limit.

(5) Channel catfish have no daily limit.

(6) Bass have no size restrictions, and no daily limit.

Snipe Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Snipes Creek (Benton County): Selective gear rules.

Snohomish River (Snohomish County): Including all channels, sloughs, and interconnected waterways, but excluding all tributaries: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season, except sturgeon. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches. Salmon: In years ending in even numbers, open only September 1 through December 31. Daily limit three. Release Chinook and pink. In years ending in odd numbers, open August 16 through December 31. Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink. Release Chinook and chum. Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in Puget Sound Estuary (WAC 220-56-282).

Snoqualmie River (King County):

~~((From mouth to the falls: The first Saturday in June through February 15 season, except the first Saturday in June through January 31 from the mouth to the boat launch at Plum. Waters within the Puget Power tunnel at the falls and within fifty feet of any point on Puget Power's lower Plant #2 building (north bank) are closed waters. The first Saturday in June through November 30 selective gear rules. Fishing from any floating device prohibited November 1 through February 15 from the mouth of Tokul Creek downstream to the boat ramp at Plum access, about one quarter mile. Night closure September 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open only September 1 through December 31. Daily limit 3. Release Chinook and pink. In years ending in odd numbers, from mouth to Plum access, daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink. Release Chinook and chum.~~)

~~From Snoqualmie Falls upstream, including the North and South Forks: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length ten inches. Additional November 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June season. Selective gear rules. All species: Release all fish. All tributaries except Tate, Sunday and Phillapa creeks: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.~~)

~~Snoqualmie Middle Fork from mouth to source including all tributaries except Pratt and Taylor rivers: Year-round season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.))~~

(1) From the mouth to Snoqualmie Falls:

(a) Closed waters within the Puget Power tunnel at the falls and within 50 feet of any point on Puget Power's lower Plant #2 building (north bank).

(b) Selective gear rules apply the first Saturday in June through November 30.

(c) Night closure in effect September 1 through November 30.

(d) From the mouth to the boat ramp at Plum, open the first Saturday in June through January 31.

(e) From the boat ramp at Plum access to the falls, open the first Saturday in June through February 15.

(f) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device November 1 through February 15 from the boat ramp at Plum access to the mouth of Tokul Creek (about 1/4 mile).

(g) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(h) Salmon:

(i) Open September 1 through December 31.

(ii) Daily limit 3; release all Chinook and pink salmon.

(iii) In years ending in odd numbers, from mouth to Plum access:

(A) Daily limit 3 salmon plus 1 additional pink.

(B) Release Chinook and chum.

(2) From Snoqualmie Falls upstream, including the North and South Forks:

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31; trout minimum length 10 inches.

(d) Open November 1 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June; catch and release only.

(3) Snoqualmie River tributaries upstream of the falls, and tributaries of North and South Forks (except Tate, Sunday and Phillapa creeks), are open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(4) Snoqualmie River Middle Fork from the mouth to source, including all tributaries except Pratt and Taylor rivers:

(a) Open year-round.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

Snyder Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

Solberg Creek (Clallam County) (Big River tributary)((:)), from mouth upstream:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout:

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release kokanee. ((Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules:))

Sol Duc River (Clallam County):

(1) From mouth to concrete pump station at the Sol Duc Hatchery; open May 1 through April 30: ((All game fish:))

(a) From May 1 through ((April 30 season. From May 1 through)) the Friday before the first Saturday in June((:)); Catch and release, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. ((Trout: First))

(b) From the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season: Minimum length fourteen inches:)):

(i) From the first Saturday in June through March 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From April 1 through April 30: Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(iii) From November 1 through the last day in February, the daily limit may include 1 additional hatchery steelhead.

(iv) From February 16 through April 30, it is permissible to retain wild steelhead ((retention allowed)).

(c) Salmon open February 1 through November 30:

(i) February 1 through August 31((:));

(A) Daily limit 6 fish ((of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult((s)) salmon may be retained.

(B) Release wild adult Chinook and wild adult coho.

(ii) September 1 through November 30((: daily limit 6 fish of which no more than two may be adults, and an additional two adult hatchery coho may also be retained:)):

(A) Daily limit 6 fish.

(B) Two salmon may be adults, plus 2 additional adult hatchery coho may be retained.

(2) From the concrete pump station at Sol Duc Hatchery to the Highway 101 Bridge upstream of Klahowya Camp Ground:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules:)):

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.

(3) From the Highway 101 Bridge upstream of Klahowya Camp Ground to the Olympic National Park boundary:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season: All game fish:)):

(b) Catch and release, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) Selective gear rules apply.

(d) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

Solleks River (Jefferson County) (Clearwater River tributary): ((From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season: Trout: Selective gear rules. Minimum length fourteen inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules:))

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Sooes River (Tsoo-Yess River) (Clallam County)((:)), outside of Makah Indian Reservation:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through the last day in February.

~~(2) From the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. All species: Selective gear rules. Additional season)):~~

~~(a) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.~~

~~(3) Open November 1 through the last day in February((Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.)):~~ Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Soos Creek (King County): From mouth to hatchery rack: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

South Bend Mill Pond (Pacific County): Juveniles only.

South Creek (Clallam County)((:)), outside of Olympic National Park:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout: ((Minimum length fourteen inches.))

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release all kokanee.

South Lewis County Park Pond (Lewis County): Closed the Monday before Thanksgiving Day through Thanksgiving Day.

South Prairie Creek (Pierce County)((:)), from the city of Buckley diversion dam upstream: ((First Saturday in June)) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31 ((season)).

South Skookum Lake (Pend Oreille County): Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

South Salmo River (Pend Oreille County), including tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Spada Lake (Reservoir) (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Maximum length twelve inches.

Spada Lake (Reservoir) tributaries (Snohomish County): Closed waters.

Spanaway Lake and Spanaway Lake outlet downstream to the dam (approximately 800 feet) (Pierce County): Year-round season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Spearfish Lake (Klickitat County): Fourth Saturday in April through last day in February season.

Spectacle Lake (Okanogan County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Spencer Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Spirit Lake (Skamania County): Closed waters.

Spokane River (Spokane County):

~~((From SR 25 Bridge upstream to 400 feet below Little Falls Dam: Year-round season, except walleye: Trout: Daily limit five, no minimum size, no more than two over 20 inches in length. Kokanee: Daily limit six, no minimum size, no more than two with intact adipose fins may be retained. Walleye: Daily limit 8, no minimum size, no more than one over 22 inches in length. Salmon: Year-round. Landlocked salmon rules apply. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon. Two pole fishing allowed.~~

~~From Little Falls Dam to the upstream boundary of the Plese Flats Day Use Area (Riverside State Park), except Long Lake, formed by Long Lake Dam (see also Long Lake): Year-round season except walleye. Trout: Daily limit five, no more than two over twenty inches in length. Walleye: Daily limit eight, no minimum length, no more than one over twenty-two inches in length. April 1 through May 31 release all walleye. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.~~

~~From the upstream boundary at Plese Flats Day Use Area (Riverside State Park) upstream to the Monroe Street Dam: June 1 through March 15 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit one. Release wild trout. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. Sturgeon: Unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.~~

~~From Monroe Street Dam upstream to Upriver Dam: Year-round season. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.~~

~~From Upriver Dam upstream to the Idaho/Washington state line: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season. Selective gear rules. All species: Release all fish.))~~

(1) From SR 25 Bridge upstream to 400 feet below Little Falls Dam:

(a) Two pole fishing is permissible so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.

(b) Year-round season:

(i) Trout: Daily limit 5; no minimum size, no more than 2 over 20 inches in length may be retained.

(ii) Kokanee: Daily limit 6; no minimum size, no more than 2 with intact adipose fins may be retained.

(iii) Walleye: No minimum size and no daily limit.

(iv) Salmon: Open year-round; landlocked salmon rules apply.

(v) Sturgeon: It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.

(2) From the Little Falls Dam to the upstream boundary of the Plese Flats Day Use Area (Riverside State Park), except Long Lake, formed by Long Lake Dam (see also Long Lake):

(a) Open year-round except it is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.

(b) Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than 2 over 20 inches in length may be retained.

(c) Salmon: Open year-round; landlocked salmon rules apply.

(3) From the upstream boundary at Plese Flats Day Use Area (Riverside State Park) upstream to the Monroe Street Dam:

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) Open June 1 through March 15:

(i) Trout: Daily limit one. Release wild trout (adipose fin intact).

(ii) Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

(iii) Sturgeon: It is unlawful to fish for or retain sturgeon.

(4) From Monroe Street Dam upstream to Upriver Dam:

(a) Open year-round.

(b) Landlocked salmon rules apply.

(5) From Upriver Dam upstream to the Idaho/Washington state line:

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 15.

(c) Catch and release only.

(6) All tributaries to the Spokane River, not otherwise listed in this section, are open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Sprague Lake (Adams/Lincoln counties): Closed waters: Waters of Cow Creek, the marsh at the southwest end of the lake from the lakeside edge of the reeds to Danekas Road, the small bay at the southeast end of the lake, and those waters within 50 feet of Harper Island. All other waters southwest of the southwest tip of Harper Island: Closed waters from October 1 through April 30. Trout: No more than two over twenty inches in length may be retained. Crappie and bluegill: Combined daily limit twenty-five fish. Crappie: Minimum length nine inches.

Spring Creek (Benton County): Selective gear rules.

Spring Creek (Goldendale Hatchery) (Klickitat County): ~~((Trout: Daily limit five-))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Trout daily limit 5.

Spring Hill Reservoir (Black Lake, Lower Wheeler Reservoir) (Chelan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. July 5 through October 31, selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Spring Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Spring Lakes (Grant County): March 1 through July 31 season.

Squalicum Creek (Whatcom County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Squalicum Lake (Whatcom County): Fly fishing only. Fishing from a floating device equipped with a motor prohibited. Trout: Daily limit two.

Squire Creek (Snohomish County) (NF Stillaguamish River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Stan Coffin Lake (Grant County): Bass: Release all bass.

Starvation Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through May 31 season. Additional June 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Stearns Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Steel Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Stehekin River (Chelan County): From the mouth to Agnes Creek: July 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length fifteen inches. Release cutthroat. Additional March 1 through June 30 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Steilacoom Lake (Pierce County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Stetattle Creek (Whatcom County): Above the mouth of Bucket Creek (one and one-half miles upstream): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Stevens Creek (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From mouth to Highway 101 Bridge:

(a) Closed waters from WDFW hatchery outlet downstream 400 feet.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through September 30 and December 1 through last day in February ((~~season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Closed waters from WDFW hatchery outlet downstream 400 feet.~~)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(2) From the Highway 101 Bridge upstream to the Newbury Creek Road Bridge:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((~~season. All species:~~)).

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Stevens, Lake (Snohomish County): Chumming permitted. Kokanee: Kokanee not included in trout daily limit. Kokanee daily limit ten fish.



Steves Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Stickney Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Stillaguamish River (Snohomish County):

From mouth to Marine Drive, including all sloughs: Year-round season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open September 1 through December 31. In years ending in even numbers, daily limit 2 coho only. In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 2 salmon plus 2 additional pink. Release Chinook and chum.

From Marine Drive to the forks, except from the barrier dam (downstream of I-5) downstream two hundred feet which is closed waters. The first Saturday in June through November 30. Selective gear rules. Night closure from August 1 through November 30. All game fish: First Saturday in June through November 30 season. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. December 1 through January 31: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open September 1 through December 31. In years ending in even numbers, daily limit 2 coho only. In years ending in odd numbers, daily limit 2 salmon plus 2 additional pink. Release Chinook and chum.

Stillaguamish River, North Fork (Snohomish County): ~~((From mouth to mouth of French Creek: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Anti snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Fishing from any floating device prohibited upstream of the Highway 530 Bridge at mile post 28.8 (Cicero Bridge). Fishing from any floating device equipped with a motor prohibited downstream from the Highway 530 Bridge. The first Saturday in June through November 30: Fly fishing only. All species: Release all fish except 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. December 1 through January 31: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.~~

~~From mouth of French Creek to Swede Heaven Bridge: First Saturday in June through February 15 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. First Saturday in June through November 30: Fly fishing only. All species: Release all fish except 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Trout: December 1 through February 15: Minimum length fourteen inches.~~

~~From Swede Heaven Bridge to falls approximately one mile upstream of Cascade Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~Upstream of falls including tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

~~(1) From the North Fork mouth to the mouth of French Creek:~~

~~(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through November 30.~~

~~(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device upstream of the Highway 530 Bridge at mile post 28.8 (Cicero Bridge).~~

~~(c) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device equipped with a motor downstream from the Highway 530 Bridge.~~

~~(d) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31:~~

~~(i) From the first Saturday in June through November 30:~~

~~(A) Fly fishing only.~~

~~(B) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(ii) From December 1 through January 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(2) From the mouth of French Creek to Swede Heaven Bridge:~~

~~(a) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through November 30.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through February 15:~~

~~(i) From the first Saturday in June through November 30:~~

~~(A) Fly fishing only.~~

~~(B) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.~~

~~(ii) From December 1 through February 15: Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(3) From Swede Heaven Bridge to the falls approximately one mile upstream of Cascade Creek:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(4) Waters upstream of the falls, including all tributaries and their tributaries: open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Stillaguamish River, South Fork (Snohomish County):

~~((From mouth to four hundred feet downstream of the outlet to fishway at Granite Falls: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.~~

~~From Mt. Loop Highway Bridge above Granite Falls to source: The first Saturday in June through November 30 season. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with a motor. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through November 30.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to 400 feet downstream of the outlet to Granite Falls fishway:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(b) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through November 30.~~

~~(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(2) From Mountain Loop Highway Bridge above Granite Falls upstream to the source:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 1 through November 30.~~

Stillman River (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth to water supply pipeline at Mill Creek: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Stimson Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Storm Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Stowe Creek (Lewis County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Straight Creek (Snohomish County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Stratford/Brook Lake (Grant County): February 1 through September 30 season.

Stump Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited. Trout daily limit 5, no more than 2 over 15 inches in length.

Suiattle River (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.

~~Sullivan Creek (Pend Oreille County): ((From Mill Pond upstream and tributaries: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) From the mouth upstream to Mill Pond, open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) From Mill Pond upstream and tributaries:

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(c) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(d) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

Sullivan Lake (Pend Oreille County): Trout: Daily limit 2 trout, except kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit ten.

Sullivan Lake Tributaries (Pend Oreille County), except as otherwise provided in this section: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Sulphur Creek (Snohomish County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Sultan River (Snohomish County): From its mouth to a point four hundred feet downstream from the diversion dam at river mile 9.7: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull

Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.

Upstream of the diversion dam to Culmback Dam: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Sumas River (Whatcom County): Including all tributaries except Johnson Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Summit Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Summit Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Susan Lake (Thurston County): Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Sutherland Lake (Clallam County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length six inches and maximum length eighteen inches.

Swale Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

Swamp Creek (tributary to Sammamish River) (Snohomish/King counties): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Swan Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.

Swan's Mill Pond (Stossel Creek) (King County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Swauk Creek (Kittitas County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules apply. ~~((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

Swift Reservoir (Skamania County): ~~((Fourth Saturday in April through November 30 season. From posted markers below Eagle Cliff Bridge to Bridge: Selective gear rules.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30.

(2) Selective gear rules apply from the posted markers approximately 3/8 mile below Eagle Cliff Bridge to the bridge.

(3) From September 1 through November 30, trout daily limit is 10 from the dam to the markers approximately 3/8 mile below Eagle Cliff Bridge.

(4) Landlocked salmon rules apply, with maximum length 15 inches.

Swofford Pond (Lewis County): Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.

Sylvia Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Wynoochee River tributary): From mouth upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches. All species: Selective gear rules.

Sylvia Lake (Grays Harbor County): ~~((Trout))~~ No more than ~~((two))~~ 2 trout over 15 inches in length may be retained per day.

Symington Lake (Kitsap County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Tacoma Creek and tributaries (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Trout: Eastern brook trout not counted in daily trout limit. Eastern brook trout daily limit ten. Once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout has been achieved, the entire daily limit for trout other than eastern brook trout and eastern brook trout has been taken.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 10.

(3) Once an angler has retained 2 trout other than brook trout, the entire trout daily limit has been taken.

Tahuya River (Mason County): From mouth to steel bridge approximately 1 mile upstream of North Shore Road Bridge: First Saturday in June through August 15 and October 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules, unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor, and release all fish except salmon. Night closure October 1 through October 31. Salmon: Open only October 1 through October 31. Daily limit 2 coho salmon.

From steel bridge approximately one mile upstream of North Shore Road Bridge upstream: First Saturday in June through August 15 and October 1 through October 31 season. Selective gear rules, unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor, and release all fish. Night closure October 1 through October 31.

Taneum Creek (Kittitas County), including tributaries: Selective gear rules apply. ~~((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.))~~

Tanwax Creek (Thurston County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Tanwax Lake (Pierce County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee. Crappie: Daily limit ten, minimum length nine inches.

Tapps Lake (Reservoir) and Tapps Lake (Reservoir) intake canal (Pierce County), to within four hundred feet of the screen at Dingle Basin: Year-round season.

Tarboo Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Tarboo Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Taylor River (tributary to the Middle Fork Snoqualmie) (King County): ~~((First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating~~

~~device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.))~~

(1) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Catch and release only for all species.

Teal Lakes (North and South) (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Teal Lake (Jefferson County): Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine prohibited. Selective gear rules. Trout daily limit one fish.

Teanaway River (Kittitas County), and tributaries: Selective gear rules apply. ~~((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout.))~~

Teanaway River, North Fork (Kittitas County): ~~((Mouth to Beverly Creek including all tributaries: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout. Beverly Creek to impassable waterfall at the end of USFS Road 9737 (about 8 river miles): Closed waters.))~~

(1) From the mouth to Beverly Creek, including all tributaries:

(a) Selective gear rules apply.

(b) Release all trout.

(2) Closed waters from Beverly Creek to the impassable waterfall at the end of USFS Road 9737 (about 8 river miles).

Tee Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Tenas Creek (Skagit County) (Suiattle River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Tenas Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Ten Mile Creek (Whatcom County) (Nooksack River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Tennant Lake (Whatcom County): ~~((Fishing))~~ It is unlawful to fish from any floating device ~~((prohibited))~~ from the first Friday in October through January ((+5)) 27.

Tern Lake (Grant County): All species: Selective gear rules. Trout: Daily limit 1.

Terrell Creek (Whatcom County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Terrell, Lake (Whatcom County): Fishing from any floating device prohibited the first Saturday after Labor Day through the following Friday and from October 1 through January 31 except fishing from floating dock permitted.

Thomas Creek (Skagit County) (Samish River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Thomas Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Thompson Creek (Thurston County) (Skookumchuck River tributary): From mouth upstream: All Species: Selective gear rules. The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches.

Thorndyke Creek (Jefferson County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Thornton Creek (tributary to Lake Washington) (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Thorton Creek (Skagit County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Thread Lake (Adams County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Thunder Creek (Clallam County) (Tributary to East Fork Dickey River)((:)), from the mouth upstream:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through April 30 ((season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum size fourteen inches. Closed waters from D2400 Road upstream, from November 1 through April 30)).

(2) Closed waters from D2400 Road upstream, from November 1 through April 30.

(3) Selective gear rules apply.

(4) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

Tibbetts Creek (tributary to Lake Sammamish) (King County): The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Juveniles only.

Tieton River (Yakima County): ~~((Permissible to fish to base of Tieton (Rimrock) Dam. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through October 31. Additional December 1 through March 31 season: Whitefish gear rules apply.))~~

(1) It is permissible to fish up to the base of Tieton (Rimrock) Dam.

(2) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: selective gear rules apply.

(3) Open December 1 through March 31 for whitefish only: whitefish gear rules apply.

Tieton River, North Fork (Yakima County): ~~((Closed waters: Clear Lake spillway channel and the river within 400' of Clear Lake Dam. Entire river, including that portion of the river that flows through the dry lakebed of Rimrock Reservoir: The first Saturday in June through August 15 season.))~~

(1) Closed waters:

(a) Clear Lake spillway channel.

(b) Waters within 400 feet of Clear Lake Dam.

(2) The entire river, including that portion of the river that flows through the dry lakebed of Rimrock Reservoir:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through August 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply for the mainstem and the tributaries.

Tieton River, South Fork (Yakima County): ~~((From the bridge on USFS Road 1200 to bridge on USFS Rd. 1070 (approximately 12.5 miles): Closed waters.))~~

(1) From the bridge on USFS Road 1200 to bridge on USFS Rd. 1070 (approximately 12.5 miles): Closed.

(2) From the bridge on USFS Rd. 1070 upstream: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.

Tiger Lake (Kitsap/Mason counties): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Tilton River (Lewis County)((:)), from the mouth to West Fork: ~~((The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. Night closure and anti-snagging rule September 1 through October 31. When the anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Trout: Daily limit five, no more than one over twelve inches in length. Release cutthroat. Release rainbow trout except rainbow trout having a clipped adipose fin and a healed scar at the site of the clipped fin. Salmon: Open only first Saturday in June through December 31. Minimum length eight inches. First Saturday in June through July 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon. Release wild coho. August 1 through December 31, daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.))~~

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31.

(2) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect September 1 through October 31. When the anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained.

(3) Release all cutthroat.

(4) Salmon:

(a) Minimum length 8 inches.

(b) From the first Saturday in June through July 31:

(i) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release wild coho.

(c) From August 1 through December 31:

(i) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult Chinook may be retained.

(ii) Release wild coho and wild Chinook.

Tilton River, East, North, South and West Forks (Lewis County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches.

Toad Lake (Whatcom County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Tokul Creek (King County) (Snoqualmie River tributary) ~~((and tributaries including beaver ponds above Tokul Road SE: First Saturday in June through October 31 season:~~

~~From mouth to the Fish Hatchery Road Bridge: December 1 through February 15 season, closed 5:00 p.m. to 7:00~~

a.m. daily. Anti-snagging rule. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

~~From Fish Hatchery Road Bridge to posted cable boundary marker located approximately four hundred feet downstream of the hatchery intake: January 15 through February 15 season, closed 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. daily. Anti-snagging rule. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.)):~~

~~(1) From the mouth to the Fish Hatchery Road Bridge:~~

~~(a) Open December 1 through February 15; closed 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. daily.~~

~~(b) Anti-snagging rule applies.~~

~~(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(2) From Fish Hatchery Road Bridge to posted cable boundary marker located approximately 400 feet downstream of the hatchery intake:~~

~~(a) Open January 15 through February 15; closed 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. daily.~~

~~(b) Anti-snagging rule applies.~~

~~(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(3) From Tokul Road SE upstream, including all tributaries and beaver ponds: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

Tolt River (King County):

~~((From mouth to the USGS trolley cable near the confluence of the North and South Forks: The first Saturday in June through January 31 season. The first Saturday in June through November 30, selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.~~

~~From falls upstream on North Fork: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.~~

~~From dam upstream on South Fork: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length ten inches.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to the USGS trolley cable near the confluence of the North and South Forks:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through January 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply from the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(2) From the falls upstream, on the North Fork:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Catch and release only for all species.~~

~~(3) From the dam upstream, on South Fork:~~

~~(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Trout minimum length 10 inches.~~

Touchet River (Columbia/Walla Walla counties):

~~((From confluence of north and south forks upstream, including Robinson and Wolf Forks: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all steelhead.~~

~~Tributaries other than North Fork, South Fork, Robinson Fork, and Wolf Fork: Closed waters.~~

~~North Fork: Upstream of Spangler Creek the first Saturday in June through August 31 season.~~

~~South Fork: Upstream from Griffin Creek the first Saturday in June through August 31 season.~~

~~Wolf Fork: Upstream from Coates Creek the first Saturday in June through August 31 season.~~

~~From mouth to confluence of north and south forks: Additional season: November 1 through March 31. Barbless hooks required. All species: Release all fish except hatchery steelhead and brown trout. Trout: Daily limit three fish.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to confluence of North and South forks:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 for all game fish.~~

~~(b) From November 1 through April 15:~~

~~(i) Anglers may only use one single-point barbless hook.~~

~~(ii) From November 1 through March 31: Release all fish except hatchery steelhead and brown trout; daily limit 3 fish.~~

~~(iii) From April 1 through April 15: Release all fish except up to 3 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.~~

~~(2) From the confluence of North and South forks upstream, including Robinson and Wolf Forks:~~

~~(a) Tributaries other than North Fork, South Fork, Robinson Fork, and Wolf Fork: Closed.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~(d) Release all steelhead.~~

~~(3) North Fork, upstream of Spangler Creek: Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.~~

~~(4) South Fork, upstream from Griffin Creek: Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.~~

~~(5) Wolf Fork, upstream from Coates Creek: Open the first Saturday in June through August 31.~~

Toutle River (Cowlitz County):

~~From mouth to forks, and North Fork from the mouth to the posted deadline below the fish collection facility: The first Saturday in June through November 30 season. Anti-snagging rule and night closure September 1 through October 15 on North Fork from confluence with South Fork to mouth of Green River. All game fish: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: Open only August 1 through November 30. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.~~

~~From the posted deadline below the fish collection facility upstream to the headwaters, including all tributaries, but excepting Castle and Coldwater Lakes: Closed waters.~~

~~Toutle River, South Fork (Cowlitz County)((~~mouth to source: Closed waters: All tributaries. The first Saturday in June through November 30 season. All species: Release all fish except hatchery steelhead. Trout: Minimum length twenty inches. Mouth to 4100 Road Bridge: Additional December 1 through March 15 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an~~~~

~~internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish except hatchery steelhead.)):~~

~~(1) All tributaries are closed.~~

~~(2) From the mouth to 4700 Road Bridge:~~

~~(a) Open the last Saturday in May to the first Friday in June.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(c) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(3) From the mouth to the 4100 Road Bridge:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through March 15.~~

~~(b) Selective gear rules apply December 1 through March 15.~~

~~(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor from December 1 through March 15.~~

~~(d) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(4) From 4100 Road Bridge upstream:~~

~~(a) Open the first Saturday in June through November 30.~~

~~(b) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

Trail's End Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Trap Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 15 season. Selective gear rules.

Trapper Lake (Chelan County): Trout: Daily limit two.

Trout Creek (Clallam County) (Big River tributary)((=)), from the mouth upstream:

~~(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ((season: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches)).~~

~~(2) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(3) Trout:~~

~~(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length, as part of the daily limit.~~

~~(b) Release all kokanee. ((Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules apply.))~~

Trout Creek (tributary to Wind River) (Skamania County): Closed waters.

Trout Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Trout Lake (tributary to Big White Salmon River) (Klickitat County): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.

~~Tucannon River (Columbia/Walla Walla counties): ((Closed waters: All tributaries:~~

~~From the mouth upstream to Turner Road Bridge: Additional November 1 through March 31 season. Barbless hooks required. All species: Release all fish except hatchery steelhead and whitefish. Trout: Daily limit three hatchery steelhead.~~

~~From the Turner Road Bridge upstream to the Tucannon Hatchery Bridge: Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor the first Saturday in June through October 31. Additional season November 1 through March 31. Barbless hooks required. All species: Release all fish except hatchery steelhead and whitefish. Trout: Daily limit three hatchery steelhead.~~

~~From the Tucannon Hatchery Bridge upstream to 500 feet above the Rainbow Lake intake: Closed waters.~~

~~From 500 feet above the Rainbow Lake intake to the Cow Camp Bridge: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release steelhead.~~

~~From Cow Camp Bridge upstream: Closed waters.))~~

~~(1) General River Rules:~~

~~(a) All tributaries, unless specified elsewhere in this document: Closed.~~

~~(b) There are no minimum length restrictions or daily limits for bass, walleye, or channel catfish for all portions of the Tucannon River open to game fish angling.~~

~~(2) Rules by River Section:~~

~~(a) From the mouth upstream to Tucannon Hatchery Bridge:~~

~~(i) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31:~~

~~(A) Selective gear rules apply upstream of Turner Road Bridge at Marengo.~~

~~(B) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor upstream of Turner Road Bridge at Marengo.~~

~~(C) Up to 3 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

~~(ii) Open November 1 through March 31:~~

~~(A) Barbless hooks are required.~~

~~(B) Catch and release, except up to 3 hatchery steelhead and 15 whitefish may be retained.~~

~~(b) From the Tucannon Hatchery Bridge upstream:~~

~~(i) Closed waters:~~

~~(A) All tributaries and mainstem from the Tucannon Hatchery Bridge upstream to 500 feet above the Rainbow Lake intake.~~

~~(B) From Cow Camp Bridge upstream.~~

~~(ii) Selective gear rules.~~

~~(iii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~(iv) Release all steelhead.~~

~~Tucquala Lake (Kittitas County): ((The first Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

~~(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(2) No daily limit on eastern brook trout; eastern brook trout do not count towards the daily limit of 5 trout.~~

Tunnel Lake (Skamania County): Trout: No more than 2 trout 20 inches in length or greater may be retained.

Twin Lake (Jefferson County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Twin Lake (Mason County): Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Twin Lakes (Chelan County) and tributaries and outlet stream to junction with the Napeequa River: Closed waters.

Twisp River (Okanogan County): ~~((From mouth to War Creek: The first Saturday in June through August 15 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish. War Creek to South Fork Twisp River: Closed waters.))~~

(1) From the mouth to War Creek:

(a) Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through August 15.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Catch and release only.

(2) From War Creek to South Fork Twisp River: Closed.

Tye River (King County): ~~((Foss River to Alpine Falls the first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Whitefish: Additional November 1 through last day in February season. Release all fish other than whitefish. All tributaries to this section and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

~~From Alpine falls upstream including all tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.))~~

(1) From Foss River to Alpine Falls:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

(c) Trout minimum length 14 inches.

(d) Open November 1 through last day in February for whitefish only; release all other fish.

(2) From Alpine falls upstream, and all tributaries to the Tye River, including their tributaries: Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.

U Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Umbrella Creek (Clallam County) ~~((and))~~ outside Olympic National Park, ~~((and))~~ including tributaries ~~((including))~~ and Elk Lake:

(1) Open the first Saturday in June through October 15 ((season)).

(2) Selective gear rules apply.

(3) Trout: ((Minimum length fourteen inches.))

(a) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Release all kokanee. ((Selective gear rules. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.))

Umtanum Creek (Kittitas County): Selective gear rules ~~((Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor))~~ apply.

Uncle John Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Union Creek (Yakima County): From mouth upstream to falls (approximately 1/4 mile): Closed waters.

Union River (Mason County): Mouth to North Shore Road Bridge: First Saturday in June through August 15 season. All game fish: Release all fish. Sturgeon: June 1 through June 30. Minimum fork length 38 inches. Maximum fork length 54 inches. Daily limit one fish.

From North Shore Road Bridge to lower bridge on Old Belfair Highway: The first Saturday in June through August 15 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

From lower bridge on Old Belfair Highway upstream: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish.

Upper Wheeler Reservoir (Chelan County): Closed waters.

Valley Creek (Clallam County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Juveniles only.

Vance Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Chehalis River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Vance Creek/Elma Ponds (Grays Harbor County) ~~((Pond One: Fourth Saturday in April through November 30 season. Juveniles, holders of a senior license and holders of a department reduced fee license or a designated harvester card only. Trout: No more than two over 15 inches in length may be retained per day. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply. Pond Two: Fourth Saturday in April through November 30 season. Trout: No more than two over 15 inches in length may be retained per day. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.))~~, Pond One and Pond 2:

(1) Pond One is open to juvenile anglers, seniors, and anglers with a disability who possess a designated harvester companion card only.

(2) Open the fourth Saturday in April through November 30:

(3) No more than 2 trout over 15 inches in length may be retained per day.

(4) Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Vancouver Lake and all other waters west of Burlington-Northern Railroad from Columbia River drawbridge near Vancouver downstream to Lewis River (Clark County): ~~((Closed waters: April 1 through May 30 the Vancouver Lake flushing channel is closed and it is closed to fishing from the lake shoreline within 400 feet east and west of the channel exit. Chumming permitted. Trout: Daily limit two; minimum length twelve inches. Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, daily limits, and size limits same as in adjacent waters of mainstem Columbia River.))~~

(1) Vancouver Lake flushing channel and the lake shoreline 400 feet east and west of the channel exit: Closed April 1 through May 31.

(2) Chumming permitted.

(3) Trout: Daily limit 2; minimum length 12 inches.

(4) Sturgeon: Seasons, days of the week, size limits, and daily limits, are the same as in adjacent waters of mainstem Columbia River.

Vanes Lake (Pend Oreille County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Van Winkle Creek (Grays Harbor County): ~~((All species:))~~

(1) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect August 16 through November 30.

(2) From the mouth to 400 feet below the outlet of Lake Aberdeen Hatchery:

(a) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through January 31 ((season: Trout: Minimum length 14 inches:)); trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(b) Salmon((-)) open ((only)) September 1 through January 31((-):

(i) Daily limit 6 fish((- of which)); no more than 2 ((may be)) adult ((fish)) salmon may be retained, and only one salmon may be ((a)) an adult wild coho.

(ii) Release chum and Chinook.

(3) From Lake Aberdeen upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season)).

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Vesta Creek and all forks (Grays Harbor County) (North River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Vic Meyers (Rainbow) Lake (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Vogler Lake (Skagit County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Fly fishing only. All species: Release all fish.

Voight Creek (Pierce County): From the falls under the powerline upstream: ~~((First))~~ Open the Saturday ((in June)) before Memorial Day through October 31 ((season)).

Waddell Creek (Thurston County) (Black River tributary): From mouth upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Selective gear rules. Daily limit 2 fish, minimum length eight inches. Other game fish: Selective gear rules.

Wagners Lake (Snohomish County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Wahkiacus Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

Waitts Lake (Stevens County): Fourth Saturday in April through last day in February season.

Walker Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Wallace River (Snohomish County):

~~((From its mouth to 200 feet upstream of the water intake of the salmon hatchery: The first Saturday in June through~~

~~February 15 season. Closed waters: From 363rd Avenue S.E./Reece Road to a point two hundred feet upstream of the water intake of the salmon hatchery during the period the first Saturday in June through September 15. Night closure and anti-snagging rule September 16 through November 30. Fishing from any floating device prohibited November 1 through February 15. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches. Salmon: Open only September 16 through November 30. Daily limit three coho.~~

~~From 200 feet upstream of the water intake of the salmon hatchery to Wallace Falls: November 1 through January 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.~~

~~From Wallace Falls upstream including all tributaries and their tributaries: First Saturday in June through October 31 season:))~~

(1) From the mouth to 363rd Ave. S.E./Reece Rd:

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect June 1 through November 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device November 1 through February 15.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through February 15.

(d) Trout (except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout), minimum length 14 inches.

(e) It is permissible to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length 20 inches.

(f) Salmon:

(i) Open September 16 through November 30.

(ii) Daily limit 3 coho only.

(2) From 363rd Avenue S.E./Reece Road to 200 feet upstream of the water intake of the salmon hatchery:

(a) Night closure and anti-snagging rule in effect September 16 through November 30.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device November 1 through February 15.

(c) Open September 16 through February 15.

(d) Trout (except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout): Minimum length 14 inches.

(e) It is permissible to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length 20 inches.

(f) Salmon:

(i) Open September 16 through November 30.

(ii) Daily limit 3 coho only.

(3) From 200 feet upstream of the water intake of the salmon hatchery to Wallace Falls:

(a) Open November 1 through January 31.

(b) It is unlawful to fish from any floating device.

(c) Trout (except Dolly Varden/Bull Trout): Minimum length 14 inches.

(d) It is permissible to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length 20 inches.

(4) From Wallace Falls upstream, including all tributaries and their tributaries: Open the Saturday before Memorial Day through October 31.



Walla Walla River (Walla Walla County):

~~((From mouth to the Touchet River: Year-round season. Trout: Barbless hooks required when fishing for steelhead. Trout: Release trout April 1 through May 31. Daily limit three hatchery steelhead. Channel catfish: No daily limit.~~

~~From the Touchet River upstream to state line: Trout: All tributaries except Mill Creek, maximum length twenty inches. Channel catfish: No daily limit. Additional season November 1 through March 31. All species: Barbless hooks required and release all fish except hatchery steelhead. Trout: Daily limit three hatchery steelhead.))~~

(1) There are no size restrictions and no daily limits for bass, walleye, or channel catfish for all portions of the Walla Walla River and its tributaries that are open to game fish angling.

(2) From the mouth to the Touchet River:

(a) Open year-round.

(b) Trout:

(i) Release trout April 1 through May 31.

(ii) Daily limit 3 hatchery steelhead.

(iii) Barbless hooks are required when fishing for steelhead.

(3) From the Touchet River upstream to state line:

(a) Open from the first Saturday in June through October 31; daily limit 3 hatchery steelhead.

(b) From November 1 through March 31:

(i) Barbless hooks are required when fishing for steelhead.

(ii) Release all fish, except up to 3 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) All tributaries are closed, except Mill Creek and the Touchet River as provided in this section.

Walupt Lake (Lewis County): Closed waters: All inlet streams. Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length ten inches.

Wannacut Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Wapato Lake (Chelan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. From August 1 through October 31: Selective gear rules. Trout: Release all trout.

Wapato Lake (Pierce County): Juveniles only.

Ward Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): From mouth upstream: All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Ward Lake (Ferry County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Ward Lake (Thurston County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Warden Lake and Warden Lake, South (Grant County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Washburn Island Pond (Okanogan County): ~~((April 1 through September 30 season. Fishing from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor prohibited.))~~

(1) Open April 1 through September 30.

(2) It is unlawful to fish with use of an internal combustion motor. An internal combustion motor may be attached to a floating device, but must not be used.

Washburn Lake (Okanogan County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit two.

Washington Creek (Mason County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Washington, Lake, including that portion of the Sammamish River from the 68th Avenue N.E. Bridge downstream (King County): Fishing from floating device prohibited one hundred yards either side of the floating bridges. Chumming permitted. Game fish: Open year-round. Trout: Open July 1 through November 30. Open December 1 through last day in February, daily limit 5, no minimum length. Release steelhead and rainbow trout over twenty inches in length. Open March 1 through June 30, daily limit 5, minimum length twelve inches. Release steelhead and rainbow trout over twenty inches in length. Kokanee/sockeye less than fifteen inches in length are kokanee while those fifteen inches and over in length are sockeye salmon. Salmon: Open only September 16 through October 31 north of Highway 520 Bridge and east of Montlake Bridge. Daily limit four coho salmon.

Washington, Lake, Ship Canal (King County) (waters east of a north-south line 400 feet west of the fish ladder at the Chittenden Locks and west of a north-south line at the eastern ends of the concrete abutments east of the Montlake Bridge): West of Fremont Bridge: Fishing from floating device prohibited. East of Fremont Bridge: Chumming permitted.

From west boundary to a north-south line 400 feet east of the eastern end of the northern wing wall of Chittenden Locks: Closed waters.

From 400 feet east of the eastern end of the northern wing wall of Chittenden Locks to the east boundary. Game fish: Open year-round. Trout: December 1 through last day in February daily limit five, no minimum length. Release steelhead and rainbow trout over twenty inches in length. March 1 through June 30, daily limit five, minimum length twelve inches. Release steelhead and rainbow trout over twenty inches in length. Kokanee/sockeye less than fifteen inches in length are kokanee and fifteen inches and over in length are sockeye salmon.

Washougal River (Clark County): ~~((Night closure year-round.~~

~~From mouth to bridge at Salmon Falls: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season. Closed waters from 200 feet (or posted markers) below to 200 feet above the temporary weir while the weir is installed in the river. Anti-snagging rule and stationary gear restriction July 1 through October 31. When anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained. Trout: Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained. Salmon: Open only August 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult Chinook. Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.~~

~~From mouth to Mt. Norway Bridge: Additional April 16 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June season.~~

~~Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.~~

~~From bridge at Salmon Falls to its source, including tributaries: Closed waters:))~~

~~(1) Night closure in effect year-round.~~

~~(2) From the mouth to the bridge at Salmon Falls:~~

~~(a) Closed waters from 200 feet (or posted markers) below to 200 feet above the temporary weir when the weir is installed in the river.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through March 15.~~

~~(c) Anti-snagging rule and stationary gear restrictions apply July 1 through October 31 from the mouth to Mount Norway Bridge, and from September 1 through October 31 from Mount Norway Bridge upstream. When the anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked inside the mouth may be retained.~~

~~(d) Trout: Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.~~

~~(e) Open August 1 through December 31 for salmon:~~

~~(i) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 salmon may be adult hatchery Chinook.~~

~~(ii) Release chum, wild coho, and wild Chinook.~~

~~(3) In addition to the season listed in subsection (2) of this definition, the waters from the mouth to Mount Norway Bridge are open April 16 through the Friday before the first Saturday in June:~~

~~(a) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(b) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~(c) Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.~~

~~(4) From the bridge at Salmon Falls to its source, including tributaries: Closed.~~

Washougal River, West (North) Fork (Clark/Skamania counties):

From mouth to the water intake at the department hatchery: Closed waters.

From intake at department hatchery to source: The first Saturday in June through March 15 season. Trout: Release all trout except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.

Watson Lake (Columbia County): March 1 through October 31 season. Fishing from any floating device prohibited. Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

Waughop Lake (Pierce County): Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Wenaha River tributaries within Washington: The first Saturday in June through August 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Release all steelhead.

Wenatchee Lake (Chelan County): Selective gear rules. Trout except kokanee: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches. Release kokanee. Kokanee/sockeye under six-

teen inches will be considered kokanee while those sixteen inches and over will be considered sockeye salmon.

Wenatchee River(~~(, including Lake Jolanda))~~ (Chelan County): ~~((December 1 through March 31 season, from mouth to Highway 2 Bridge at Leavenworth only. Whitefish gear rules apply.))~~

(1) Open for whitefish December 1 through March 31 from the mouth to the Highway 2 Bridge at Leavenworth only; whitefish gear rules apply.

(2) Lake Jolanda is closed.

Wentworth Lake (Clallam County): Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion engine.

West Evans Pond (Asotin County): Trout: No more than 2 trout over 13 inches in length may be retained.

West Twin River (Clallam County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules and release all fish.

Whatcom Creek (Whatcom County):

From mouth to markers below footbridge below Dupont Street in Bellingham. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through December 31. The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon: Open only August 1 through December 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which not more than 2 may be adult salmon. Anglers fishing lawfully, within 50 yards of the Bellingham Technical College Hatchery Collection Tube, and on the hatchery side of the creek, that hook and land chum salmon, may remove those chum salmon from the water and immediately place them unharmed into the Hatchery Collection Tube.

From footbridge below DuPont Street in Bellingham to Woburn Street Bridge. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through December 31. The first Saturday in June through last day in February season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

From stone bridge at Whatcom Falls Park upstream to Lake Whatcom: Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Juveniles only. Anti-snagging rule and night closure August 1 through October 31. Trout: No minimum length.

Whatcom, Lake (Whatcom County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season, except those waters between the Electric Avenue Bridge and the outlet dam are closed waters: Trout: Release cutthroat trout.

Whatcom, Lake, tributaries (Whatcom County): Closed waters.

Wheeler Creek (Klickitat County): Trout: Release all trout.

White Creek (Skagit County) (Sauk River tributary): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Selective gear rules and release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.

White River (Chelan County), from mouth upstream to White River Falls: Closed waters.

White (Stuck) River (Pierce County):

~~((From mouth to R Street Bridge in Auburn: October 1 through January 15 season: Selective gear rules and night closure. October 1 through October 31 all species: Fly fishing only and release all fish. November 1 through January 15: Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.~~

~~From R Street Bridge to Highway 410 Bridge at Buckley: October 1 through October 31 season. Night closure and selective gear rules. Closed waters: Puget Power canal, including the screen bypass channel, above the screen at Dingle Basin. Trout: 14 inch minimum size.~~

~~From the Weyerhaeuser 6000 Road Bridge (Bridge Camp) to its source: July 1 through October 31 season. Night closure October 1 through October 31. Selective gear rules and unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release all game fish. Whitefish: Additional November 1 through January 31 season. Whitefish gear rules apply.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to R Street Bridge in Auburn:~~

~~(a) Selective gear rules and night closure are in effect October 1 through January 15.~~

~~(b) Open October 1 through October 31 for fly fishing only; release all fish.~~

~~(c) Open November 1 through January 15; trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(2) From R Street Bridge to the Highway 410 Bridge at Buckley:~~

~~(a) Puget Power canal, including the screen bypass channel, above the screen at Dingle Basin, is closed.~~

~~(b) Open October 1 through October 31:~~

~~(i) Night closure and selective gear rules are in effect.~~

~~(ii) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(3) From the Weyerhaeuser 6000 Road Bridge (Bridge Camp) upstream to its source:~~

~~(a) July 1 through October 31 season:~~

~~(i) Night closure in effect October 1 through October 31.~~

~~(ii) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(iii) Catch and release only.~~

~~(b) Open for whitefish November 1 through January 31; whitefish gear rules apply.~~

Whitechuck River (Snohomish County): All species: Selective gear rules. First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Legal to retain Dolly Varden/Bull Trout as part of trout daily limit, minimum length twenty inches.

White Salmon River (Klickitat/Skamania counties):

~~((From mouth to county road bridge below powerhouse: Bank fishing only downstream from the Highway 14 Bridge. August 1 through December 31: Anti-snagging rule. Year-round season, except game fish other than steelhead closed April 1 through July 31. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches. Salmon and steelhead: Open April 1 through July 31, daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release wild Chinook. Salmon: Open August 1 through March 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon except from the mouth to the Hwy. 14 Bridge the daily limit follows the most liberal regulations of the adjacent mainstem Columbia or White Salmon rivers when both areas are open concurrently for salmon. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.~~

~~From county road bridge below powerhouse to Northwestern Lake Road Bridge: Closed waters.~~

~~From Northwestern Lake Road Bridge to Big Brothers Falls at river mile 16: Closed waters from Big Brothers Falls downstream 400 feet. First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All game fish: Catch and release except up to two hatchery steelhead may be retained.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to the county road bridge below the powerhouse:~~

~~(a) From the mouth to the Hwy. 14 Bridge, the daily limit follows the most liberal regulations of the adjacent mainstem Columbia or White Salmon rivers, when both areas are open concurrently for salmon.~~

~~(b) Bank fishing only downstream from the Highway 14 Bridge.~~

~~(c) Open August 1 through March 31:~~

~~(i) Anti-snagging rule applies August 1 through December 31.~~

~~(ii) Trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(d) Salmon and steelhead:~~

~~(i) From April 1 through July 31, daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead or one of each; release wild Chinook.~~

~~(ii) Open for salmon only August 1 through March 31:~~

~~(A) Daily limit 6 fish; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.~~

~~(B) Release wild Chinook and wild coho.~~

~~(2) From the county road bridge below the powerhouse upstream to Big Brothers Falls (river mile 16):~~

~~(a) Closed waters from Big Brothers Falls downstream 400 feet.~~

~~(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31.~~

~~(c) Selective gear rules apply.~~

~~(d) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.~~

~~(e) Catch and release only, except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.~~

Wide Hollow Creek (Yakima County): Juveniles only.

Widgeon Lake (Grant County): April 1 through September 30 season.

Wildberry Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season.

Wildcat Creek (Grays Harbor County) (Cloquallum Creek tributary): From mouth to confluence of Middle and East forks: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Wildcat Creek, East Fork (Grays Harbor County) (Cloquallum Creek tributary): From mouth to Highway 108 Bridge (Simpson Avenue, in the town of McCleary): The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Wildcat Lake (Kitsap County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Wilderness Lake (King County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Wilkeson Creek (Pierce County) (South Prairie Creek tributary) upstream of confluence with Gale Creek: First Saturday in June through October 31 season.

Willame Lake (Lewis County):

(1) Selective gear rules apply.

(2) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(3) Open fourth Saturday in April through October 31: trout daily limit 2, minimum length 15 inches.

Willapa River (Pacific County): ((All species: Unlawful to fish from a floating device from second bridge on Camp One Road upstream to the mouth of Mill Creek (approximately 0.5 miles) from August 1 through November 30.

From mouth (city of South Bend boat launch) to Highway 6 Bridge approximately two miles below mouth of Trap Creek: The first Saturday in June through March 31 season. All species: Night closure, single point barbless hooks required from August 1 through November 30. Stationary gear restriction from August 1 through November 30, except from the mouth of the Willapa River to the WDFW access site at the mouth of Ward/Wilson creek. All game fish: Release all game fish except that up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day. Salmon: Open August 1 through November 30. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than three may be adult salmon, and of the three adults, only two may be wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Open December 1 through January 31. Daily limit six fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon and of the two adult salmon, only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Sturgeon: Open year-round from mouth to Highway 6 Bridge.

From Highway 6 Bridge to Fork Creek: The first Saturday in June through July 15 and October 1 through March 31 seasons. All species: Night closure, single point barbless hooks, and stationary gear restriction October 1 through November 30. All game fish: Release all fish except that up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Salmon: Open October 1 through November 30. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 3 may be adult salmon, and of the three adult salmon only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook. Open December 1 through January 31. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than two may be adult salmon, of which only one may be a wild coho. Release chum and wild Chinook.

From Fork Creek upstream: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. All species: Night closure and single point barbless hooks from August 16 through October 31. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.))

(1) From the mouth (city of South Bend boat launch) to the Highway 6 Bridge approximately 2 miles below mouth of Trap Creek:

(a) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device from the second bridge on Camp One Road upstream to the mouth of

Mill Creek (approximately 0.5 miles) from August 1 through November 30.

(b) Night closure in effect and single-point barbless hooks are required from August 1 through November 30.

(c) Stationary gear restriction applies from August 1 through November 30, except from the mouth of the Willapa River to the WDFW access site at the mouth of Ward/Wilson creek.

(d) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31: release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(e) Salmon:

(i) Open August 1 through November 30:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only 2 may be adult wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be an adult wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(f) Sturgeon open year-round.

(2) From Highway 6 Bridge to Fork Creek:

(a) Night closure in effect, single-point barbless hooks are required, and stationary gear restriction applies October 1 through November 30.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through July 15 and from October 1 through March 31: release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(c) Salmon:

(i) Open October 1 through November 30.

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be an adult wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(ii) Open December 1 through January 31:

(A) Daily limit 6; no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained, and only one may be an adult wild coho.

(B) Release wild Chinook and chum.

(3) From Fork Creek upstream:

(a) Night closure in effect and single-point barbless hooks are required August 16 through October 31.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31: release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Willapa River, South Fork (Pacific County): ((Closed waters from falls/fish ladder downstream 400 feet in Section 6, Township 13 North, and Range 8 West.

From mouth to bridge on Pehl Road: Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Night closure and anti-snagging rule from August 1 through November 30. Selective gear rules first Saturday in June through July 31. All game fish: First Saturday in June through last day in February season. Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained. Salmon: Open only August 1 through January 31. Daily limit 6 fish, of which no more than 3 may be adult salmon. Release chum, wild Chinook and wild coho.

From Pehl Road upstream: First Saturday in June through last day in February season. Release all game fish except that up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained per day.))

(1) From the mouth to bridge on Pehl Road:

(a) Closed waters from the falls/fish ladder downstream 400 feet in Section 6, Township 13 North, and Range 8 West.

(b) Selective gear rules apply from the first Saturday in June through July 31.

(c) Night closure in effect and anti-snagging rule applies August 1 through November 30.

(d) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February: Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

(e) Salmon:

(i) Open August 1 through January 31.

(ii) Daily limit 6; no more than 3 adult salmon may be retained.

(iii) Release wild Chinook, wild coho, and chum.

(2) From Pehl Road upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through last day in February.

(b) Release all fish except up to 2 hatchery steelhead may be retained.

Williams Creek (Pacific County) (Nemah River North Fork tributary): First Saturday in June through October 15 season. Trout: Minimum length eight inches and daily limit two fish. All species: Release all fish except up to two hatchery steelhead per day may be retained.

~~((Williams Lake (Lewis County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length fifteen inches.))~~

Williams Lake (Spokane County): Fourth Saturday in April through September 30 season.

Williams Lake (Stevens County): December 1 through March 31 season. All species: Catch and release except up to five rainbow trout may be retained.

Wilson Creek (Pacific County) (Willapa River tributary): All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Wilson Creek, North Fork (Pacific County): All game fish: First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules.

Wilson Creek (two branches within Ellensburg city limits) (Kittitas County): Juveniles only.

Winchester Wasteway (Grant County): Within Winchester Game Reserve: February 1 through September 30 season.

Wind River (Skamania County):

~~((Mouth to four hundred feet below Shipherd Falls: August 1 through March 15 season, except salmon and steelhead. All species: Two pole fishing allowed with two pole endorsement from mouth to Burlington Northern Railroad Bridge May 1 through June 30. Night closure March 16 through June 30. May 1 through June 30: Anti-snagging rule from Burlington Northern Railroad Bridge upstream. August 1 through October 31: Anti-snagging rule. When anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked in the mouth may be~~

~~retained. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Salmon and steelhead: Open March 16 through July 31: Daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead or one of each. Release wild Chinook. Salmon: Open August 1 through October 31. Daily limit 6 fish of which no more than 2 may be adult salmon except from the mouth to the Hwy. 14 Bridge the daily limit follows the most liberal regulations of the adjacent mainstem Columbia or Wind rivers when both areas are open concurrently for salmon. Release wild coho and wild Chinook.~~

~~From four hundred feet below to one hundred feet above Shipherd Falls fish ladder: Closed waters.~~

~~From one hundred feet above Shipherd Falls to source, including all tributaries: Closed waters: From 400 feet below to 100 feet above the Coffey Dam. Closed waters from a boundary marker approximately 800 yards downstream from Carson National Fish Hatchery upstream, including all tributaries December 1 through September 15. Closed waters: From the Moore Bridge on the Wind River Highway approximately one mile north of the Carson National Fish Hatchery upstream including all tributaries September 16 through November 30. May 1 through June 30: Anti-snagging rule and night closure. When anti-snagging rule is in effect, only fish hooked in the mouth may be retained. September 16 through November 30 season, except salmon. Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. All species: Release all fish. Salmon and additional steelhead season: Open May 1 through June 30. Daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead or one of each.))~~

~~(1) From the mouth to 100 feet above Shipherd Falls:~~

~~(a) Closed waters from 400 feet below to 100 feet above Shipherd Falls fish ladder.~~

~~(b) Night closure in effect March 16 through June 30.~~

~~(c) Anti-snagging rule applies August 1 through October 31.~~

~~(d) Anti-snagging rule applies from Burlington Northern Railroad Bridge upstream May 1 through June 30.~~

~~(e) Fishing two poles is permissible from mouth to Burlington Northern Railroad Bridge from May 1 through June 30, so long as the angler possesses a two-pole endorsement.~~

~~(f) Open for game fish other than trout July 1 through March 15.~~

~~(g) Open for trout August 1 through March 14; trout minimum length 14 inches.~~

~~(h) Salmon and steelhead.~~

~~(i) Open March 16 through July 31:~~

~~(A) Daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each.~~

~~(B) Release wild Chinook.~~

~~(ii) Open August 1 through October 31 for salmon only from the mouth to the Highway 14 Bridge:~~

~~(A) When the adjacent mainstem Columbia and the Wind rivers are open concurrently for salmon, the daily limit follows the most permissive regulations.~~

~~(B) Daily limit 6; up to 2 adult salmon may be retained.~~

~~(C) Release wild coho and wild Chinook.~~

~~(2) From 100 feet above Shipherd Falls to boundary marker approximately 800 yards downstream of Carson National Fish Hatchery:~~

~~(a) Closed waters:~~

(i) All tributaries; and

(ii) From 400 feet below to 100 feet above the Coffey Dam.

(b) Night closure in effect and anti-snagging rule applies from May 1 through June 30.

(c) Open for game fish September 16 through November 30:

(i) Catch and release only;

(ii) Selective gear rules apply; and

(iii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(d) Open May 1 through June 30 for salmon and steelhead; daily limit 2 salmon or 2 hatchery steelhead, or one of each.

(3) From boundary marker approximately 800 yards downstream of Carson National Fish Hatchery to Moore Bridge:

(a) Open for game fish September 16 through November 30:

(b) Catch and release only;

(c) Selective gear rules apply; and

(d) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.

(4) Closed waters from Moore Bridge upstream to the river source, including all tributaries.

Winston Creek (tributary to Cowlitz River) (Lewis County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length ten inches.

Wishkah River (Grays Harbor County): ~~((All species:))~~

(1) Single-point barbless hooks are required August 16 through November 30.

(2) From mouth to West Fork:

(a) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ~~((season: Trout: Minimum length 14 inches)).~~

(b) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(c) Salmon(±) open October 1 through January 31:

(i) From October 1 through November 30.

(ii) Daily limit ~~((six))~~ 6 fish ~~((of which))~~; no more than ~~((two may be))~~ 2 adult salmon may be retained, and ~~((of the two adult salmon))~~ only one may be ~~((a))~~ an adult wild coho.

(iii) Release Chinook and chum ~~((and Chinook)).~~ ~~((Additional season))~~

(iv) From December 1 through January 31 ~~((:))~~:

(A) Daily limit ~~((six))~~ 6 fish ~~((of which))~~; no more than ~~((two may be))~~ 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(B) Release Chinook, wild coho, and chum ~~((Chinook, and wild coho)).~~

(3) From mouth of West Fork to 200 feet below the weir at the Wishkah Rearing Ponds:

(a) From the weir at the Wishkah Rearing Ponds, downstream 200 feet: Closed.

(b) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through the last day in February ~~((season: Trout: Minimum length 14 inches)).~~

(c) Trout: Minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(d) Salmon(±) open October 1 through December 31 ~~((:))~~:

(i) Daily limit ~~((six fish, of which))~~ 6; no more than ~~((two may be))~~ 2 adult salmon may be retained.

(ii) Release chum, Chinook, and wild coho.

~~((From 200 feet below to the weir at the Wishkah Rearing Ponds: Closed waters:))~~

(4) From the weir upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ~~((season: All species:)).~~

(b) Selective gear rules apply.

Wishkah River, East and West forks (Grays Harbor County): All species: The first Saturday in June through the last day in October season. Selective gear rules.

Wolf Creek, mouth to mouth of south fork (Okanogan County): Closed waters.

Woodard Creek (Thurston County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches.

Wood Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Woodland Creek (Thurston County): First Saturday in June through October 31 season. Selective gear rules. Trout: Minimum length fourteen inches.

Woods Creek (Snohomish County) (Skykomish River tributary): East Fork ~~((and its))~~, including tributaries ~~((including))~~ and beaver ponds upstream of Old Pipeline Road (above Woods Creek Falls): Open the first Saturday ~~((the June))~~ before Memorial Day through October 31 ~~((season))~~.

Wooten Lake (Mason County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Wye Lake (Kitsap County): Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit 5, no more than two over 14 inches in length may be retained, except no size restriction for kokanee.

Wynoochee River (Grays Harbor County):

(1) From the mouth to the WDFW White Bridge Access Site:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks are required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Bait prohibited September 16 through November 30.

(c) Open for game fish the first Saturday in June through March 31 ~~((season: Single point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. All species: Bait prohibited September 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches)).~~ Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(d) Salmon(=) open September 16 through November 30(=):

(i) Daily limit ((six fish, of which) 6; no more than ((two may be) 2 adult salmon(=, and of the two adults) may be retained, and only one salmon may be ((a) an adult wild coho.

(ii) Release Chinook and chum ((and Chinook)).

(2) From the WDFW White Bridge Access Site to the 7400 line bridge above mouth of Schafer Creek:

(a) Single-point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30.

(b) Bait is prohibited September 16 through November 30.

(c) Open the first Saturday in June through March 31 ((season. Single point barbless hooks required August 16 through November 30. Bait prohibited September 16 through November 30. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches)).

(d) Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(3) From the 7400 line bridge to 400 feet below Wynoochee Dam, including the confluence of the reservoir upstream to Wynoochee Falls:

(a) Closed waters from 400 feet downstream of Wynoochee Dam and from barrier dam near Grisdale.

(b) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season. Trout: Minimum length 14 inches. Additional) and from December 1 through March 31:

(i) From the first Saturday in June through October 31: Trout minimum length 14 inches, except it is permissible to retain hatchery (adipose clipped) trout less than 14 inches in length as part of the daily limit.

(ii) From December 1 through March 31 ((season.)):

(A) Selective gear rules apply. ((All species=)

(B) Release all fish, except up to ((two) 2 hatchery steel-head may be retained per day.

(4) From Wynoochee Falls upstream:

(a) Open the first Saturday in June through October 31 ((season. All game fish.))

(b) Selective gear rules apply. ((Trout: Eastern Brook Trout are not counted in daily trout limit and the daily limit for this species is five fish, no minimum size. Once daily limit of trout other than Eastern Brook Trout is obtained, then must stop fishing.))

(c) Eastern brook trout daily limit is 5. Eastern brook trout do not count toward the daily trout limit. However, once the daily limit of trout other than eastern brook trout is reached, the limit for all species of trout is reached and the angler must cease fishing.

Wynoochee Reservoir (Grays Harbor County) upstream to head waters: The first Saturday in June through October 31 season. Trout: Daily limit two, minimum length twelve inches. Salmon: Landlocked salmon rules apply.

Yakima River (Yakima County): ((Release all steelhead in mainstem and tributaries. Channel catfish: No daily limit.

From mouth to 400 feet below Prosser Dam: March 1 through October 22 season. Closed waters: From the WDFW white markers 200 feet downstream of the USBR Chandler Powerhouse/Pumping Station spillway chute to the power-

line crossing immediately upstream of the powerhouse September 1 through October 22. Chumming permitted. Trout: Release all trout. Salmon: Open only September 1 through October 22. Daily limit 6 fish of which not more than 2 may be adult salmon. All species: Anti-snagging rule and night closure September 1 through October 22.

From Prosser Dam to Highway 223 Bridge: May 1 through October 31 season. Trout: Release all trout.

From mouth to Highway 223 Bridge: Bass: Bass 12 to 17 inches in length may be retained. No daily limit for bass, but not more than 3 bass greater than 15 inches in length may be retained.

From Highway 223 Bridge to 400 feet below Sunnyside Dam: Trout: Minimum length twelve inches and maximum length twenty inches. Additional season December 1 through last day in February. Whitefish gear rules apply.

From Sunnyside Dam to thirty five hundred feet below Roza Dam: Closed waters: From Yakima Avenue Terrace Heights Bridge upstream 400 feet. All species: Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches and maximum length twenty inches. Additional season December 1 through last day in February. Whitefish gear rules apply.

From thirty five hundred feet below Roza Dam to Roza Dam December 1 through last day in February season. Whitefish gear rules apply.

From Roza Dam to four hundred feet below Easton Dam and from Lake Easton to the base of Keechelus Dam: Year-round season. Fishing from floating devices equipped with motors allowed only from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation restricted area signs at Roza Dam upstream to the boat launch ramp on the Roza Access Area (approximately one half mile). Selective gear rules except bait and one single point barbed hook three sixteenths or smaller point to shank may be used December 1 through last day in February. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor December 1 through the last day of February. Trout: From Roza Dam to 400 feet below Easton Dam: Release all trout. Lake Easton to the base of Keechelus Dam: Release all trout except eastern brook trout. Eastern brook trout: No daily limit and no minimum size.))

(1) General River Rules:

(a) Release all steelhead in the mainstem and tributaries.

(b) There is no daily limit for channel catfish within the mainstem or tributaries open to game fish angling.

(c) There is no daily limit and no length restrictions for bass or walleye, within the mainstem or tributaries open to game fish angling.

(2) Rules by River Section:

(a) From the mouth to 400 feet below Prosser Dam:

(i) Closed waters from the WDFW white markers 200 feet downstream of the USBR Chandler Powerhouse/Pumping Station spillway chute to the powerline crossing immediately upstream of the powerhouse from September 1 through October 22.

(ii) Anti-snagging rule and night closure in effect September 1 through October 22.

(iii) Open March 1 through October 22 for game fish.

(iv) Chumming is permitted.

(v) Bass:(A) Bass 12 to 17 inches in length may be retained.(B) There is no daily limit for bass, but not more than 3 bass greater than 15 inches in length may be retained.(vi) Release all trout.(vii) Open September 1 through October 22 for salmon; daily limit 6 fish, no more than 2 adult salmon may be retained.(b) From Prosser Dam to Highway 223 Bridge:(i) Open May 1 through October 31.(ii) Release all trout.(iii) Bass:(A) Fish 12 to 17 inches in length may be retained.(B) There is no daily limit for bass, but no more than 3 bass greater than 15 inches in length may be retained.(c) From Highway 223 Bridge to 400 feet below Sunnyside Dam:(i) Trout minimum length is 12 inches, maximum length is 20 inches.(ii) Open December 1 through the last day in February for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.(d) From Sunnyside Dam to 3,500 feet below Roza Dam:(i) Closed waters from Yakima Avenue-Terrace Heights Bridge upstream 400 feet.(ii) Selective gear rules apply.(iii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor from the I-82 Bridge at Selah Gap to 3,500 feet below Roza Dam.(iv) Trout minimum length is 12 inches, maximum length is 20 inches.(v) Open December 1 through last day in February for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.(e) From 3,500 feet below Roza Dam to 400 feet below Roza Dam:(i) Open December 1 through last day in February for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.(ii) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.(f) From Roza Dam to 400 feet below Easton Dam and from Lake Easton to the base of Keechelus Dam:(i) Open year-round.(ii) It is permissible to fish from floating devices equipped with motors only from the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation restricted area signs at Roza Dam upstream to the boat launch ramp on the Roza Access Area (approximately 0.5 mile).(iii) Selective gear rules apply, except December 1 through the last day in February.(iv) Trout:(A) From Roza Dam to 400 feet below Easton Dam, release all trout.(B) From Lake Easton to the base of Keechelus Dam, release all trout except eastern brook trout; eastern brook trout have no daily limit and no minimum size restriction.(v) Open December 1 through the last day in February, for whitefish only; whitefish gear rules apply.

Yakima Sportsmen's Park Ponds (Yakima County): Juveniles only.

Yale Reservoir (Cowlitz County): Trout: Kokanee not counted in daily trout limit. Kokanee daily limit sixteen. Landlocked salmon rules.

Yellowhawk Creek (Walla Walla County): Closed waters.

Yellowjacket Creek (tributary to Cispus River) (Lewis County): Selective gear rules. Unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor. Trout: Minimum length twelve inches.

Yocum Lake (Pend Oreille County): ~~((Fourth Saturday in April through October 31 season. Unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1 1/2 inch or less along the longest axis.))~~(1) Open the fourth Saturday in April through October 31.(2) It is unlawful to use lead weights or lead jigs that measure 1.5 inches or less along the longest axis.(3) It is unlawful to fish from a floating device equipped with an internal combustion motor.Youngs Creek (Snohomish County) (Skykomish River tributary) and its tributaries ~~((, including))~~ and beaver ponds above ~~((the))~~ Potson Road ~~((+))~~ (299th Avenue S.E. Bridge) (Elwell Creek tributary, Skykomish River tributary near town of Sultan): ~~((First))~~ Open the Saturday ~~((in June))~~ before Memorial Day through October 31 ~~((season))~~.**WSR 13-02-096****PROPOSED RULES****OFFICE OF****INSURANCE COMMISSIONER**

[Insurance Commissioner Matter No. R2012-12—Filed January 2, 2013, 10:08 a.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-10-079.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Risk adjustment program.

Hearing Location(s): Office of the Insurance Commissioner, Training Room T-120, 5000 Capitol Way South, Olympia, WA 98504, on February 5, 2013, at 10:00 a.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 6, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Meg Jones, P.O. Box 40258, Olympia, WA 98504, e-mail rulescoordinator@oic.wa.gov, fax (360) 586-3109, by February 4, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Lorie Villaflores by February 3, 2013, TTY (360) 586-0241 or (360) 725-7087.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: RCW 48.43.720 directs the commissioner to establish the state's risk adjustment program by rule. This proposed rule accomplishes that directive. The proposed rule establishes an annual process to determine whether the state or United State Department of Health and Human Services will administer the program for the following year, based on consultation with an advisory group comprised of issuer representatives, the state health



benefit exchange, and the administrator for the program (if in place). The proposed rule incorporates the modeling of data as a key resource for the advisory group, to be collected and retained by an independent actuarial firm retained by the commissioner. The proposed rule defers to federal administration of the program for 2014-2015 benefit years.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: The commissioner worked with an advisory group of carriers to review options for the risk adjustment program prior to issuing this proposed text. The proposed rules represent the group's consensus recommendation, based on modeling using voluntarily submitted data from the carriers to inform this approach.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 48.02.060, 48.43.720.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 48.43.720.

Rule is necessary because of federal law, Pub. Law 111-148, as amended (2010).

Name of Proponent: Office of the insurance commissioner, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Meg Jones, 302 Syd Snyder Boulevard, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-7170; Implementation: Barb Flye, 302 Syd Snyder Boulevard, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-7043; and Enforcement: Carol Sureau, 5000 Capitol Boulevard South, Olympia, WA, (360) 725-7050.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. None of the affected entities constitutes a small business.

A cost-benefit analysis is required under RCW 34.05.-328. A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting Meg Jones, P.O. Box 40258, Olympia, WA 98502 [98504], phone (360) 725-7170, fax (360) 586-3109, e-mail rulescoordinator@oic.wa.gov.

January 2, 2013  
Mike Watson  
Chief Deputy  
Insurance Commissioner

## NEW SECTION

**WAC 284-170-002 Risk adjustment program** (1) An issuer of a non-grandfathered individual or small group plan in Washington state must participate in the permanent risk adjustment program (program) established pursuant to RCW 48.43.720.

(2) Beginning September 1, 2015 or on an alternate date established by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), the commissioner will annually publish a notice of benefit and payment parameters (notice). The notice must include a statement of intent regarding whether the state or HHS will administer the program. The commissioner will determine the form of the notice, which will be consistent with the form required by HHS.

(3) HHS will administer the program for 2014-2015. Issuers must comply with HHS requirements for the risk adjustment program.

(4) Prior to publishing the annual notice of benefit and payment parameters, the commissioner will consult with an advisory group comprised of representatives from issuers who participate in the program, from the Health Benefit

Exchange, and, if under contract or otherwise established by the legislature, the commissioner's designated administrative entity for the state risk adjustment program.

(a) The role of the advisory group is to review the prior state level performance of the risk adjustment program, and assist the commissioner in determining the benefit to state insurance markets of using:

(i) state-specific factors for risk adjustment; and  
(ii) a state specific methodology for risk adjustment incorporating both the issuer and the enrollee's perspective.

(b) If an issuer wishes to participate in the advisory group, it must notify the commissioner in writing of its designated participant not later than May 1 of each year.

(c) The advisory group must review the modeling and make recommendations based on the principles of preserving enrollment on existing plans for enrollees, ensuring market stability, and addressing adverse selection risk and experience in Washington state.

(5) For a benefit year during which HHS administers the program, within thirty days of its submission of program data to HHS, an issuer must submit to an actuarial firm designated by the commissioner, the same data that it submits to HHS. Corrected data must also be submitted. All issuers participating in the risk adjustment program in Washington state, not just those participating in the advisory group, must conform to this requirement.

(a) The data may only be used to perform modeling to inform the advisory group and commissioner in the annual decision-making process described in this section. Modeling done using the data must de-identify both issuers and any enrollees. Each advisory group participant is entitled to review all modeling reports, and upon request, learn which deidentified issuer represents their data set. The actuarial firm may not otherwise disclose the identity of data set sources.

(b) The actuarial firm and each issuer must execute all necessary privacy and security agreements to ensure the confidentiality and privacy of personal health information, establish remedies for unauthorized release or distribution of the data that are consistent with state and federal law, provide for the retention of the data for not less than ten years, and for the destruction of the data after a ten year period of time. The commissioner will prepare a template for use by the actuarial firm and issuers. The agreement must be identical for each issuer, unless the commissioner specifically agrees to an exception or change requested by an issuer or the actuarial firm for good cause. The commissioner will resolve disputes between the actuarial firm and an issuer.

(6) An issuer that does not submit data pursuant to this rule is subject to enforcement under title 48 RCW.

**WSR 13-02-098**  
**PROPOSED RULES**  
**DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE**

[Filed January 2, 2013, 10:12 a.m.]

Supplemental Notice to WSR 12-21-138.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-05-107.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Greenhouse gas emission performance standard, the greenhouse gas emission performance standard is the average greenhouse gas emission rate of new combined-cycle natural gas thermal electric generation turbines commercially available and offered for sale by manufacturers and purchased in the United States.

Hearing Location(s): Washington State Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street S.E., Olympia, WA 98504, on February 6, 2013, at 2:00 p.m.

Date of Intended Adoption: February 14, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: Carolee Sharp, P.O. Box 42525, Olympia, WA 98504-2525, e-mail carolee.sharp@commerce.wa.gov, fax (360) 725-3118, by 8:00 a.m., February 7, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Carolee Sharp by February 5, 2012 [2013], TTY (360) 586-0772 or (360) 725-3118.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: Establish the state greenhouse gas emission performance standard for utility baseload electric generation as nine hundred and seventy pounds per megawatt-hour, the average greenhouse gas emission rate as directed by RCW 80.80.050.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: This rule making is required by RCW 80.80.050.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 80.80.050.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 80.80.050.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, as to Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, and Fiscal Matters: The Washington state department of commerce finds the average greenhouse gas emission performance standard to be nine hundred and seventy pounds per megawatt-hour. The Washington state department of ecology will be responsible for the implementation and enforcement of the standard.

The survey required by RCW 80.80.050 is described in the legislative report "Survey of Combined Cycle Combustion Turbine Greenhouse Gas Emission Rates," dated November 2012, and available at the legislature's web site <http://apps.leg.wa.gov/reportstothelegislature/>. Amendments to the survey, responding to comments received after the notice of proposed rule making WSR 12-21-138, are available on commerce's web site <http://www.commerce.wa.gov>. A description of commerce's consideration of system reliability and consumer cost under the changed emission performance standard is also available on commerce's web site. Hard copies of all documents may be obtained by contacting Carolee Sharp at carolee.sharp@commerce.wa.gov, (360) 725-3118, or P.O. Box 42525, Olympia, WA 98504-2525.

Name of Proponent: Washington state department of commerce, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Greg Nothstein, Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street S.E., Olympia, WA 98504-2525, (360) 725-3112; Implementation and Enforcement: Washington State Department of Ecology, 300 Desmond Drive S.E., Lacey, WA 98503, (360) 407-6000.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. A small business economic impact statement is not required for this rule making as none of the affected entities are small businesses. Not applicable.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. Subsection (5)(a)(i) of RCW 34.05.328 does not require commerce to provide a cost-benefit analysis. Not applicable.

January 2, 2013

Nick Demerice

Director Government Affairs

## Chapter 194-26 WAC

### GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS PERFORMANCE STANDARD

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 194-26-010 Authority.** This chapter is promulgated pursuant to the authority granted in RCW 80.80.040, requiring the department of commerce to adopt the average available greenhouse gases emissions output as determined under RCW 80.80.050 as the greenhouse gas emissions performance standard for all baseload electric generation for which electric utilities enter into long-term financial commitments.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 194-26-020 Average available greenhouse gas emissions output.** The energy policy division of the department of commerce has surveyed new combined-cycle natural gas thermal electric generation turbines commercially available and offered for sale by manufacturers and purchased in the United States, and finds the average rate of emissions of greenhouse gases for these turbines to be nine hundred and seventy pounds per megawatt-hour.

## WSR 13-02-102 PROPOSED RULES DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES

[Filed January 2, 2013, 10:45 a.m.]

Original Notice.

Preproposal statement of inquiry was filed as WSR 12-16-098.

Title of Rule and Other Identifying Information: Debarment procedures.

Hearing Location(s): Presentation Room, 1500 Jefferson, Olympia, WA 98501, on March 13, 2013, at 1 p.m. PST.

Date of Intended Adoption: April 17, 2013.

Submit Written Comments to: On-line <https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/DESRulemaking>, e-mail rules@des.wa.gov, comments will be accepted through March 25, 2013.

Assistance for Persons with Disabilities: Contact Amy Julsrud at (360) 407-9317 or e-mail amy.julsrud@des.wa.gov.

Purpose of the Proposal and Its Anticipated Effects, Including Any Changes in Existing Rules: Chapter 39.26 RCW, procurement reform, goes into effect January 1, 2013. RCW 39.26.200 grants the director of the department of enterprise services (DES) the authority to debar a vendor from future state contracting opportunities if the director finds cause, provides notice to the vendor and any affiliates and affords an opportunity to be heard. RCW 39.26.200 (1)(a) provides that the department must establish the debarment process by rule. The purpose of this proposal is to establish the debarment process by rule as required.

Reasons Supporting Proposal: The director of DES will not be able to exercise the new authority to debar vendors and affiliates without enactment of rules that set out the process for a debarment. The process must provide for due process of the law, so that vendors and affiliates may not be debarred without notice and an opportunity to be heard.

Statutory Authority for Adoption: RCW 39.26.200.

Statute Being Implemented: RCW 39.26.200.

Rule is not necessitated by federal law, federal or state court decision.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, as to Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement, and Fiscal Matters: To obtain a copy of the rules, or to submit written comments on the rules, please contact either Jack Zeigler, Policy and Rules Manager, phone (360) 407-9209, e-mail jack.zeigler@des.wa.gov; written comments on-line <https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/DESRulemaking>, e-mail rules@des.wa.gov.

Name of Proponent: DES, governmental.

Name of Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting[, Implementation and Enforcement]: Roselyn Marcus, 1500 Jefferson Avenue, P.O. Box 41408, Olympia, WA 98504, (360) 407-8569.

No small business economic impact statement has been prepared under chapter 19.85 RCW. The implementation of these rules have no or minimal cost to small business.

A cost-benefit analysis is not required under RCW 34.05.328. DES is not an agency listed in RCW 34.05.328 (5)(a)(i). Further, DES does not voluntarily make section 201 applicable to this rule adoption nor to date, has the joint administrative rules review committee made section 201 applicable to this rule adoption.

December 31, 2012

Jack Zeigler  
Policy and Rules Manager

## Chapter 200-305 WAC

### DEBARMENT PROCEDURES

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-010 Definitions.** The definitions in this section apply throughout this chapter unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

(1) "Affiliate" means a person that is in affiliation with another person or persons. Persons are affiliates of each other and an affiliation exists if, directly or indirectly, either one controls or has the power to control the other or a third party controls or has the power to control both. Factors used to determine control include:

(a) Interlocking management or ownership;

(b) Identity of interests among family members;

(c) Shared facilities and equipment;

(d) Common use of employees; or

(e) A business entity organized following the debarment or proposed debarment of a person which has the same or similar management, ownership, or principal employees as the person that was debarred or proposed for debarment.

(2) "Agency" means any state office or activity of the executive and judicial branches of state government, including state agencies, departments, offices, divisions, boards, commissions, institutions of higher education as defined in RCW 28B.10.016, and correctional and other types of institutions.

(3) "Bid" means an offer, proposal, or quote for goods or services in response to a solicitation issued for such goods or services by the department or an agency of Washington state government.

(4) "Bidder" means an individual or entity who submits a bid, quotation, or proposal in response to a solicitation issued for such goods or services by the department or an agency of Washington state government.

(5) "Contractor" means an individual or entity awarded a contract with an agency to perform a service or provide goods.

(6) "Conviction" means:

(a) A judgment or any other determination of guilt of a criminal offense by any court of competent jurisdiction, whether entered upon a verdict or plea, including a plea of nolo contendere; or

(b) Any other resolution that is the functional equivalent of a judgment, including probation before judgment and deferred prosecution. A disposition without the participation of the court is the functional equivalent of a judgment only if it includes an admission of guilt.

(7) "Covered transaction" means submitting a bid, having a bid considered, entering into a state contract, or subcontracting on a state contract.

(8) "Debar" means to prohibit a contractor, individual, or other entity from submitting a bid, having a bid considered, or entering into a state contract during a specified period of time as set forth in a debarment order.

(9) "Debarring official" means the director of the department of enterprise services or the director's designee.

(10) "Department" means the department of enterprise services.

(11) "Director" means the director of the department of enterprise services.

(12) "Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, unit of government, or legal entity, however organized.

(13) "Principal" means:

(a) An officer, director, owner, partner, principal investigator, or other person within a bidder or contractor with man-

agement or supervisory responsibilities related to a covered transaction; or

(b) A consultant or other person, whether or not employed by the bidder or contractor, who:

(i) Is in a position to handle state funds;

(ii) Is in a position to influence or control the use of those funds; or

(iii) Occupies a technical or professional position capable of substantially influencing the development or outcome of an activity required to perform the covered transaction.

(14) "Service" for any delivery required under this chapter means personal delivery, delivery by US postal mail service, electronic mail delivery, or delivery by other reasonable commercially acceptable means of delivery.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-020 Causes for debarment.** The director may debar a contractor based on a finding of one or more of the causes specified in RCW 39.26.200. A debarment may include any affiliate of the contractor if specifically named and given notice of the proposed debarment pursuant to this chapter. The director may also debar a contractor or affiliate for any other cause the director determines to be so serious and compelling as to affect responsibility as a state contractor, including debarment by another governmental entity for any cause listed in regulations.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-030 Mitigating and aggravating factors.** The following are the mitigating and aggravating factors that the reviewing official and debaring official may consider in determining whether to debar and the length of the debarment period.

(1) The actual or potential harm or impact that resulted or may result from the wrongdoing.

(2) The frequency of incidents and/or duration of the wrongdoing.

(3) Whether there is a pattern or prior history of wrongdoing.

(4) Whether the contractor or affiliate has been excluded or disqualified by an agency of the federal government or has not been allowed to participate in state or local contracts or assistance agreements on a basis of conduct similar to one or more of the causes for debarment specified in this rule.

(5) Whether the contractor or affiliate has entered into an administrative agreement with a federal agency or a state or local government that is not government-wide but is based on conduct similar to one or more of the causes for debarment specified in this rule.

(6) Whether the contractor or affiliate has accepted responsibility for the wrongdoing and recognizes the seriousness of the misconduct that led to the cause for debarment.

(7) Whether the contractor or affiliate has paid or agreed to pay all criminal, civil and administrative liabilities for the improper activity, including any investigative or administrative costs incurred by the government, and has made or agreed to make full restitution.

(8) Whether the contractor or affiliate has cooperated fully with the government agencies during the investigation

and any court or administrative action. In determining the extent of cooperation, the reviewing official or debaring official may consider when the cooperation began and whether the contractor or affiliate disclosed all known pertinent information.

(9) The kind of positions held by the individuals involved in the wrongdoing.

(10) Whether the contractor or affiliate took appropriate corrective action or remedial measures, such as establishing ethics training and implementing programs to prevent recurrence.

(11) Whether the contractor or affiliate brought the activity cited as a basis for the debarment to the attention of the appropriate government agency in a timely manner.

(12) Whether the contractor or affiliate has fully investigated the circumstances surrounding the cause for debarment and, if so, made the result of the investigation available to the reviewing official or debaring official.

(13) Whether the contractor or affiliate had effective standards of conduct and internal control systems in place at the time the questioned conduct occurred.

(14) Whether the contractor or affiliate has taken appropriate disciplinary action against the individuals responsible for the activity that constitutes the cause for debarment.

(15) Other factors appropriate to the circumstances of a particular case.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-040 Referring a person for debarment.** (1) Any person may file a referral for debarment with the department. The referral must be in writing. The referring party may complete the department's debarment referral form. The referral should include the following information:

(a) The name and contact information of the person submitting the referral;

(b) The specific facts supporting the request for debarment, including the dates and locations for all events upon which the referral is made;

(c) The cause or causes specified in RCW 39.26.200(2) upon which debarment may be based that the referring party believes are supported by the facts presented; and

(d) The name of the contractor and any affiliates the referring party believes should be subject to debarment.

(2) The person submitting the referral should provide additional information if requested by the department.

(3) The department will make an initial assessment of the submittal. If the department determines that the facts as presented, if true, support a debarment, the department will conduct a review to substantiate the allegations. Otherwise, the department will reject the referral.

(4) The department will notify the referring party in writing and state whether the referral will be reviewed or rejected.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-050 Review.** (1) If the department accepts a debarment referral and conducts a review, the department will notify the contractor and affiliates in writing.

(2) The notice must:

(a) State the applicable cause(s) for debarment and the factual allegations supporting each cause in terms sufficient to put the contractor and affiliates on notice of the specific reasons for the review;

(b) Identify the statutory and administrative code provisions addressing debarment;

(c) Request a written response to the allegations including any documents that support the response, and state that failure to respond will result in the department making a decision without the recipient's input; and

(d) State the effects of a debarment order.

(3) At the conclusion of the review, the reviewing official will issue a report that includes the following information:

(a) Facts found by the reviewing official;

(b) Whether the facts support debarment; and

(c) Either a recommendation that the referral be dismissed with no further action taken or that a debarment order be issued, including the duration of the debarment.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-060 Notice of recommended debarment.** (1) If, based on the review, the reviewing official determines that the facts support debarment the reviewing official shall notify the affected contractor and affiliates. The reviewing official shall cause service of the notice of recommended debarment on the affected contractor and affiliates. The notice shall include the following information:

(a) Date when the recommended debarment takes effect;

(b) Each cause for the recommended debarment and the facts that the reviewing official found that support each cause;

(c) The period of the recommended debarment;

(d) How the recommended debarment will impact either the contractor or affiliates or both;

(e) Either the contractor or affiliates or both may request a hearing in accordance with WAC 200-305-070 to dispute the recommended debarment or the recommended debarment period. The notice shall state that if no hearing is requested within thirty days of the date of issuance of the notice, the debarring official shall issue a final, unappealable debarment order; and

(f) The recommended debarment order will not go into effect until the resolution of the hearing in accordance with WAC 200-305-080.

(2) In the event either an affected contractor or affiliate or both does not request a hearing, the reviewing official will provide the report and recommendation to the debarring official, who may issue a final debarment order. The order shall include the effective date of the debarment order.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-070 Request for a hearing on recommended debarment.** Either the contractor or affiliate or both may request a hearing on the recommended debarment. The request must be filed with the director within thirty days after the date the reviewing official issued the notice of recom-

mended debarment. The person requesting the hearing must also serve a copy of the request on the reviewing official.

The request for hearing must be in writing and must specify:

(1) The name of the person requesting the hearing and the person's contact information; and

(2) The items, facts or conclusions in the notice of recommended debarment that the requestor contests.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-080 Hearing on recommended debarment.** (1) The director may hear the appeal personally or may delegate the authority to hold the hearing and draft a proposed decision to another person or to an administrative law judge pursuant to chapter 34.12 RCW. The reviewing official, on behalf of the department, shall be the petitioner in the hearing, and the contractor and affiliates shall be the respondents.

(2) The reviewing official shall have the burden of proving the basis for the cause for debarment and the debarment period as set forth in the notice for recommended debarment.

(3) The hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, chapter 34.05 RCW and to the extent not covered in this chapter, by the uniform procedural rules in chapter 1-08 WAC.

(4) If the director presides over the hearing, the director shall issue a final decision in writing that includes findings of fact, conclusions of law, and, if appropriate the debarment period. The director shall cause service of the final decision on all parties.

(5) If the director's delegate or an administrative law judge presides over the hearing, she or he shall issue a proposed decision that includes findings of fact, conclusions of law and if appropriate the debarment period. The proposed decision shall also include instructions on how to file objections and written arguments or briefs with the debarring official. Objections and written arguments and briefs must be filed within twenty (20) days from the date of receipt of the proposed decision.

(6) The parties shall agree to the method of service, as defined in WAC 200-305-010(14) for the proposed decision.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-090 Final decision.** (1) The debarring official shall review the proposed decision in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, chapter 34.05 RCW and any objections, written arguments and briefs timely filed by the parties. The debarring official may:

(a) Allow the parties to present oral arguments;

(b) Allow the parties to submit additional information if circumstances so warrant; or

(c) Remand the matter to the delegate or administrative law judge for further proceedings;

(2) The debarring official shall issue a final decision that adopts in whole or in part, modifies or rejects the proposed decision. If the decision is to issue a debarment order, the debarment becomes effective on the date specified in the debarment order, but in no event will the debarment order go into effect sooner than five (5) days from the date issued.

(3) The debarring official shall cause service of the final decision on all parties. Either the contractor or affiliate or both may file a petition for review of the final decision to superior court. If neither the contractor nor affiliate appeals within the period set by RCW 34.05.542, the debarring official's decision is conclusive and binding on all parties. The appeal must be filed within 30 days from service of the final decision.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-100 Effect of a debarment order on the contractor and affiliate.** The effects of a debarment order on the contractor and affiliate are:

(1) A debarred contractor and affiliate is ineligible to be a participant in any covered transaction or act as a principal of a person participating in any covered transaction as defined in WAC 200-305-010(7).

(2) Debarment constitutes debarment of all divisions or other organizational elements of the debarred person, unless the debarment decision is limited by its terms to specific divisions, organizational elements, or commodities.

(3) A person's debarment shall be effective in every agency, unless the director states in writing the compelling reasons justifying continued business dealings between an agency and the debarred person.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-110 Effect of a debarment order on state agencies.** The effects of a debarment order on state agencies are:

(1) Agencies shall not permit debarred persons to participate in covered transactions, unless the debarring official determines in writing that there is a compelling reason to do so.

(2) If the period of debarment expires or is terminated prior to award, the contracting officer may, but is not required to, consider a debarred persons bid.

(3) Notwithstanding debarment, agencies may continue contracts or subcontracts in existence at the time the person was debarred unless the debarring official determines otherwise.

(4) Agencies shall not add new work, exercise options, or otherwise extend the duration of current contracts or orders for debarred persons, unless the debarring official makes a written determination of the compelling reasons for doing so.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 220-305-120 Relief from a debarment order.**

(1) A debarred contractor or affiliate may request that the debarring official grant relief from the final debarment order or reduce the time period or scope of the final debarment order.

(2) The debarring official may reduce or terminate the debarment based on:

- (a) Newly discovered material evidence;
- (b) A reversal of the conviction upon which debarment was based;
- (c) A bona fide change in ownership or management;

(d) Elimination of other causes for which the debarment was imposed; or

(e) Other reasons the debarring official finds appropriate.

#### NEW SECTION

**WAC 200-305-130 Delivery to the department.** (1)

Any notice, objection or information that is required or allowed by these rules may be delivered to:

Department of Enterprise Services  
1500 Jefferson Street SE  
Olympia, WA 98504-1466  
Attn: Office of the Director

(2) Or, mailed, by certified mail, return receipt requested to:

Department of Enterprise Services  
Office of the Director  
1500 Jefferson Street SE  
MS: 41466  
Olympia, WA 98504-1466

(3) Or, electronically mailed to Department of Enterprise Services at the following email address:

director@des.wa.gov

**WSR 13-02-103**  
**WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSED RULES**  
**DEPARTMENT OF**  
**FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS**  
(By the Code Reviser's Office)  
[Filed January 2, 2013, 11:49 a.m.]

WAC 208-620-440, proposed by the department of financial institutions in WSR 12-13-072 appearing in issue 12-13 of the State Register, which was distributed on July 5, 2012, is withdrawn by the code reviser's office under RCW 34.05.335 (3), since the proposal was not adopted within the one hundred eighty day period allowed by the statute.

Kerry S. Radcliff, Editor  
Washington State Register